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1 	 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, JULY 9, 2014 

2 

3 

	

4 	 THE COURT: okay. 	First of all, let's get 

	

5 	appearances of counsel so that my court reporter has 

	

6 	all the names. 

	

7 	 MR. COOPER: Jonathan Cooper on behalf of 

	

8 	the state. 

	

9 	 MS. FERRERA: Xiomara Ferrera and Nadia 

	

10 	Hojjat for the defense. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: okay. Do you need any 

	

12 	spellings, or can you get those? 

	

13 	 THE REPORTER: I've got everything, 

	

14 	Your Honor. Thank you. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. Great. 

	

16 	 All right. 	Sorry. 	Go ahead, Nis. Hojjat. 

	

17 	 MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, when the 

	

18 	defense submitted proposed jury instructions last 

	

19 	night to Your Honor via e-mail, I did include a 

	

20 	bench memorandum in support of certain instructions. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Yes. 

	

22 	 ms. HO)3AT: I do have a copy, a hardcopy 

	

23 	here today, that I wanted to file just so that the 

	

24 	record is clear on precisely what it was the defense 

	

25 	has submitted to the Court to consider. The copy 
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1 	sent to the court last night didn't have the filing 

2 	page on it. 

3 	 THE COURT: It didn't have the caption, 

4 	right. 

	

5 	 ms. HOIJAT: It didn't have a caption or 

	

6 	anything like that, but the text of the document is 

	

7 	the same. If I can approach the clerk and -- 

	

8 	 THE COURT: That's fine. we'll go ahead 

	

9 	and do it that way. As I said, I wasn't sure if you 

	

10 	wanted to do it that way or if you wanted to make 

	

11 	your memo a Court's exhibit because once we settle 

	

12 	instructions; but I think it is better to be filed. 

	

13 	And then of course, we'll have a filing of any 

	

14 	instructions that were proposed by either side that 

	

15 	weren't given with their own caption. 

	

16 	 But go ahead and approach. 

	

17 	 ms. HOJJAT: Thank you, if I can approach. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Give that to the clerk. 

	

19 	 ms. HOJJAT: Thank you very much. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: I also want to note, for the 

	

21 	record, that I do have now a file-stamped copy of 

	

22 	the second Amended Information reflecting the 

	

23 	changes that we had approved, discussed, and i guess 

	

24 	mandated from our discussion yesterday. And that 

	

25 	language will, of course, be reflected in the 
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I 	instructions. 

	

2 	 my intention is to complete the State's 

	

3 	case, and what we may do is we may wait to -- we may 

4 	break the jury then, and we may wait to come back to 

	

5 	ask the Defense so we can canvass Mr. McNeil and 

	

6 	ultimately ask if the Defense rests before we 

	

7 	proceed, rather than doing it now because I won't 

	

8 	have time. 

	

9 	 I don't want to do the last witness, move 

	

10 	the jury out, canvass Mr. McNeil, move the jury back 

	

11 	in, then say we're resting for a couple of hours and 

	

12 	then send them back out again. So if it works to do 

	

13 	it that way, I think that's the best way to go. But 

	

14 	so what we'll do is as soon as we -- 

	

15 
	

THE COOPER: It's working. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: As soon as the Defense rests, 

	

17 	then we will move right into settling the jury 

	

18 	instructions. And it is my intent right now because 

	

19 	it's hard for me to predict how long we're going to 

	

20 	have to argue, and then of course I need time to 

	

21 	pull the final version together. 

	

22 	 I'm intending to possibly to break the 

	

23 	jury, depending on when we finish, until about 

	

24 	2:00 o'clock. So but we may go later to the lunch 

	

25 	hour to finish what we need to do. So we might get 
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1 	an hour to an hour and a half a lunch, but depending 

2 	on the time frame. But I just need that extra time. 

3 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I think there 

4 	might be just -- 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Well, I have one outstanding 

	

6 	issue too, but I wanted to see if anybody had any 

	

7 	questions about the schedule or anything like that. 

	

8 	 MR. COOPER: Not for the schedule, 

	

9 	Your Honor. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: All right. I had the 

	

11 	outstanding of the issue of the mistrial request 

	

12 	that was made yesterday. 

	

13 	 Is there anything else though before we 

	

14 	address that? 

	

15 	 MR. COOPER: There is, Your Honor. I don't 

	

16 	know if you want them to go first or you want me to 

	

17 	go first. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Things that you all have or 

	

19 	something related from yesterday? 

	

20 	 MR. COOPER: 	No, for the mistrial. I 

	

21 	thought we were -- I'm sorry. 

	

22 
	

MS. HOJJAT: I thought we had already 

	

23 	submitted arguments, and the Court was - 

	

24 
	

THE COURT: We did. 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yeah. 
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1 	 THE COURT: No, I wasn't asking for 

	

2 	argument. I was just saying that's the issue that 

	

3 	have outstanding to put in the record as my 

4 	determination. But I did indicate last night that, 

	

5 	you know, as the dust settled and as we all went 

6 	home and it was quite late, if anybody wanted to say 

	

7 	anything else, you would be welcome -- 

	

8 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: -- to do so. 

	

10 	 MR. COOPER: And my understanding was i was 

	

11 	also able to look for cases, if anything was -- 

	

12 	 THE COURT: I opened the door to either 

	

13 	side if they wanted to add anything to the record. 

	

14 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I would just 

	

15 	show that it was -- the actual case name is 

	

16 	G-E-I-G-E-R -- so I just didn't want to butcher 

	

17 	it -- vs. state, 112 Nevada 3- -- 938. 

	

18 	 And essentially, in this case, the 

	

19 	defendant was asking for a mistrial, and basically 

	

20 	the facts are important because he was 

	

21 	subsequently -- he was charged with a residential 

	

22 	burglary in 4 case, and through an error of the 

	

23 	court clerk, they read to the jury that he had 

	

24 	previously been convicted of a burglary. And the 

	

25 	supreme court said that that was not enough for a 
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1 	mistrial. 

	

2 	 So in a case where somebody is convicted of 

	

3 	a burglary, the jury finding out that they have 

4 	previously been convicted -- I'm sorry. In a case 

	

5 	where someone is charged with a burglary and the 

6 	jury finding out that they have previously been 

	

7 	convicted of a burglary, even that was not enough 

	

8 	just to be a mistrial. The Court goes through the 

	

9 	limiting instruction that they can give, and that 

	

10 	was given in that case, and that was sufficient. 

	

11 	And I think that's akin to this case but to a far 

	

12 	more severe degree. 

	

13 	 In this case, the jury would already know 

	

14 	he's a sex offender; in this case, the jury already 

	

15 	knew that he was on lifetime supervision; and quite 

	

16 	candidly, the jury already knew that the parole 

	

17 	board -- not probation, but the parole board, which 

	

18 	only supervises people after they're released from 

	

19 	prison -- was involved in this case. 

	

20 	 so i mean, these issues that the jury had 

	

21 	no idea what's going on and we can sanitize this any 

	

22 	more than we already have, I think they're far left 

	

23 	field, and I don't think they're appropriate. 

	

24 	think we have sanitized it. And at least in that 

	

25 	case -- we've got far more than what's happening in 
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1 	that case, and the error in that case was far more 

	

2 	egregious than anything that happened in our case. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: That case, it was not one of 

	

4 	the ones that I looked, so I don't know if -- 

	

5 	because several of the cases that I looked at 

	

6 	certainly did have one of the reasons why the Court 

	

7 	seemed to find harmlessness to the error was because 

	

8 	it was a postconviction proceeding; they were able 

	

9 	to look at the entire record and they were able to 

	

10 	see that there was an overwhelming evidence of guilt 

	

11 	in some of those cases. 

	

12 	 I tend to, from my review, discount those 

	

13 	types of cases and look more squarely at the types 

	

14 	of cases where they were just addressing the court's 

	

15 	exercise of discretion. The cases that I all saw 

	

16 	found other circumstances that I find to be more 

	

17 	egregious than what we have in this case, also to 

	

18 	not have warranted mistrial or at least the Supreme 

	

19 	court to confirm the District court's denial of a 

	

20 	mistrial. 

	

21 	 one thing that you didn't answer though, 

	

22 	Mr. cooper, and I'm not expecting a case 

	

23 	necessarily, but do you want to address part of the 

	

24 	argument yesterday from Ms. Hojjat was we're talking 

	

25 	about a cumulative effect now because we have, of 
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1 	the state's two witnesses, each one saying something 

	

2 	that should not have been said. 

	

3 	 1 don't interpret anything that was said by 

	

4 	officer Mangan as being intentional or a desire to 

	

5 	inform the jury that Mr. McNeil had been previously 

	

6 	incarcerated. It clearly came about as a result of 

	

7 	a dispute about the documents and whether the 

	

8 	documents would be allowed and a desire for 

	

9 	additional foundation of the circumstances, a desire 

	

10 	by the court primarily, for additional foundation of 

	

11 	why there would be several copies. 

	

12 	 And we already knew going in that one of 

	

13 	those copies was signed while he was.incarcerated, 

	

14 	and I found that her utterance of this was someone 

	

15 	who was incarcerated was inadvertent, and of course 

	

16 	that was immediately addressed with a curative 

	

17 	instruction. 

	

18 	 And the second then incident involved the 

	

19 	final witness from the state of the day, and that 

	

20 	was a general reference to the severity of the 

	

21 	nature of a crime that would warrant lifetime 

	

22 	supervision. And some additional dialogue that was 

	

23 	a more extensive statement related to that, was not 

	

24 	related directly to the defendant's case; but by the 

	

25 	way of the conversation was being had, it would have 
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1 	to be interpreted, since he is on lifetime 

	

2 	supervision, that he falls into this category of the 

	

3 	23 worst, or however it was worded. so it's, in 

	

4 	part, that standalone. But it's also, in part, to 

	

5 	those two things taken together. 

	

6 	 Did you want to address the potential for 

	

7 	cumulative effect? 

	

8 	 MR. COOPER: 	Yes, Your Honor. 	I still 

	

9 	think the cumulative affect, I'm taking both of 

	

10 	those as a -- together. I think when the supreme 

	

11 	court, they look at these cases, they try to 

	

12 	obviously see what was going on in the trial at the 

	

13 	time, obviously, and that's hard to do based on the 

	

14 	record. 

	

15 
	 So I mean, it's important to take into 

	

16 
	context how both those things happened. Neither one 

	

17 
	of those statements was a standalone. The witness 

	

18 
	

looks over and says, "He was in prison" or "He's one 

	

19 	of the 23 most worst." Both those statements happen 

	

20 	in kind of a -- in kind of an already they were -- 

	

21 	they were already speaking some other things, and 

	

22 	that happened as well 

	

23 	 But when I actually heard that, i looked 

	

24 	over to the jury, and I didn't see any of the jurors 

	

25 	looking up in disbelief or they're extremely 
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1 	shocked, like, "oh, my God. 	i can't believe this 

	

2 	happened" or "he's the worst of the worst." I mean, 

	

3 	just the facts remain that we've sanitized this case 

	

4 	as much as we possibly can, and the issue that comes 

	

5 	is that -- I mean, there's nothing more we can do. 

	

6 	 It's the fact that he is on lifetime 

	

7 	supervision. It's the fact that he is one of the 

	

8 	23 worst. i mean, every sex offender is not put on 

	

9 	lifetime supervision. And it's clear by the 

	

10 	testimony, without anyone explicitly saying it, 

	

11 	there are sex offenders that have lifetime 

	

12 	supervision and there's sex offenders that don't 

	

13 	have lifetime supervision, regardless of if it's 

	

14 	50 crimes or 100 crimes or whatever it is that 

	

15 	actually requires lifetime supervision versus not 

	

16 	lifetime supervision. 

	

17 	 I mean, that's something that we can't 

	

18 	sanitize against. It's going to be out there, and 

	

19 	don't think anything either witness said was 

	

20 	obviously meant to the prejudice the defendant; nor 

	

21 	•do I think it did prejudice the defendant. And 

	

22 	especially taken in a cumulative effect, it was 

	

23 	nowhere near as egregious as saying, "This guy has 

	

24 	been previously been convicted of a burglary" during 

	

25 	a burglary trial. 
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1 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. 

	

2 
	

Ms. Hojjat. 

	

3 
	

MS. HWJAT: And, Your Honor, I think 

4 	made most of my arguments yesterday to the court. 

	

5 	I'll just briefly address the state's argument and 

	

6 	the Court's inquiry. 

	

7 	 when we say the "cumulative effect," what 

	

8 	we're talking about is this is an issue that was 

	

9 	decided before trial started. This was an issue 

	

10 	that things that were going to come in were sex 

	

11 	offender subject to lifetime supervision. At that 

	

12 	point, the State has an obligation to admonish their 

	

13 	witnesses. 

	

14 	 when they know that all that is supposed to 

	

15 	come in is sex offender on lifetime supervision. 

	

16 	Yet two state's witnesses got up, one right after 

	

17 	the other, and say things that they should have been 

	

18 	admonished not to say. The State has the burden of 

	

19 	controlling their witnesses, and that is in the case 

	

20 	law. 

	

21 	 The State has the burden of admonishing of 

	

22 	them the things that could potentially come out that 

	

23 	are not supposed to come out. Two witnesses in a 

	

24 	row and both going to the same topic. Certainly 

	

25 	after the first witness slipped up on it, the second 
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1 	witness should have been especially admonished on 

2 	it. But no such admonishment occurred, and the 

3 	second witness got up there and said the same thing. 

4 	 So I would argue that this is not analogous 

	

5 	to the situation where a clerk of the court 

6 	accidentally read something. This is a situation 

	

7 	where they should have been admonished ahead of 

	

8 	time. when the first accident happened, there 

	

9 	should have been special care taken care before the 

	

10 	second witness got on the stand. And indeed, 

	

11 	Your Honor inquired of the district attorney, "Are 

	

12 	you ready with the next witness? DO you need time 

	

13 	to admonish." 

	

14 	 So the situations are not analogous, and we 

	

15 	are arguing there is a cumulative effect here. And 

	

16 	it's not just two prejudicial facts. They are two 

	

17 	prejudicial facts having to do with the same 

	

18 	prejudicial overall thing that the court has ruled 

	

19 	the jury is not supposed to know about. They get to 

	

20 	know he's a sex offender. They get to know he's on 

	

21 	lifetime supervision. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: okay. Thank you. 

	

23 	 And some of the other cases that I looked 

	

24 	at, and I don't have a case name to provide now, but 

	

25 	there is some body of law from our supreme Court 
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1 	that also goes into its analysis in terms of 

	

2 	determining whether when the court, if the Court 

	

3 	denies a mistrial request, whether the abuse of 

	

4 	discretion exists. 

	

5 	 And the Court will look at, you know, 

	

6 	again, the specific circumstances surrounding what 

	

7 	the incident was but also something that I kind of 

	

8 	touched upon yesterday, which is that the nature of 

	

9 	the charge in this case and the history of the 

	

10 	individual. It's already understood -- and they'll 

	

11 	look at what, you know, the jurors might have 

	

12 	already had known to them or presupposed, that they 

	

13 	were presupposing. 

	

14 	 And in this particular case, again, we have 

	

15 	a circumstance where we have an individual who was 

	

16 	charged with a violation, violation of lifetime 

	

17 	supervision by a convicted sex offender. we did 

	

18 	note that the stipulation was too that there was -- 

	

19 	that he is a convicted sex offender, a convicted 

	

20 	felon, and on lifetime supervision. 

	

21 	 we have sanitized, at this point, to remove 

	

22 	what was the primary concern -- at that time, 

	

23 	anyway -- of the prior, other underlying charge, 

	

24 	attempt lewdness with a child under the age of 14, 

	

25 	to avoid any of those potential biases that that 
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1 	could engender with the jury. 

	

2 	 But at the end of the day, this jury is 

	

3 	aware that this is a convicted sex offender; the 

	

4 	jury is aware that this individual is on lifetime 

	

5 	supervision. 	It has to be, on some level, 

	

6 	understood by the jury that there was incarceration, 

	

7 	at some point in time and that it -- you don't get 

	

8 	the designation of needing the lifetime supervision 

	

9 	without it being somewhat serious. 

	

10 	 But we have avoided any reference to the 

	

11 	charge itself, which is again I think the primary 

	

12 	concern. 1 do not find that there is a cumulative 

	

13 	effect here that would so prejudice this jury or 

	

14 	prejudice the potential outcome of this trial that, 

	

15 	again, it would serve to be a manifest injustice for 

	

16 	the defendant or to this case, and I'm going to deny 

	

17 	the mistrial. 

	

18 	 I am, however, going to give a curative 

	

19 	instruction similar to the one that I gave 

	

20 	yesterday. You don't wish us to do that? 

	

21 	 ms. FERRERA: No, Your Honor. We don't 

	

22 	wish any more attention to be brought to that 

	

23 	statement. so we would not want the -- 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Well, I don't want to -- 

	

25 	guess I'm going to respectfully disagree. I'm not 
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1 	going to bring attention to the statement in any way 

	

2 	to say, you know, such and such said x and now 

	

3 	disregard x. I do, however, want to -- 

	

4 	 And i should have been more clear. 

	

5 	apologize. That the nature of the curative 

	

6 	instruction that I want to give is to remind them 

	

7 	again that this case is about whether or not this 

	

8 	defendant violated his -- you know, is guilty of the 

	

9 	violation of lifetime supervision by a convicted 

	

10 	sex offender and that nothing about how he became a 

	

11 	sex offender on lifetime supervision is -- you know, 

	

12 	up to this point -- is relevant to those charges. 

	

13 	 It's simply what is the quantum of proof; 

	

14 	do they meet their burden beyond a reasonable doubt. 

	

15 	It's something along those lines. 

	

16 	 ms. HOJJAT: Right. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: So I wasn't necessarily going 

	

18 	to intend to do it. But I thought it would behoove 

	

19 	us to remind them again that how we got here is not 

	

20 	relevant to these charges. 

	

21 	 MS. FERRERA: That would be great, 

	

22 	Your Honor. Thank you. 

	

23 	 ms. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: That's something that was -- 

	

25 	think we need to do. 
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1 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, I guess the only 

	

2 	issue that State would have -- I know we're trying 

	

3 	to get the jury in -- but my next witness was a 

	

4 	counselor for this defendant, and I know she can't 

	

5 	obviously go into any of the reason -- any of the, 

	

6 	guess, the legal opinions as to his likelihood to 

	

7 	reoffend or anything like that. 

	

8 	 But one of the concerns I had, and I wanted 

	

9 	to bring it to the Court's attention before I put 

	

10 	her on, because I don't want another mistrial 

	

11 	argument, is that the defendant did make statements 

	

12 	to her in open group that resulted in part of the 

	

13 	reason why he was terminated. 

	

14 	 obviously, she's able to talk about what 

	

15 	statements he made to her. And I just want to make 

	

16 	sure that I'm okay going down that road because they 

	

17 	are statements from a defendant, and those 

	

18 	statements were a basis of the reason he was 

	

19 	terminated. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: And can you be more specific as 

	

21 	to what they are? 

	

22 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, yes. So I guess, 

	

23 	in generally, there's a group of sex offenders who 

	

24 	are doing counseling, one sex offender says, "I was 

	

25 	grooming my victim for two months." And then the 
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1 	defendant yells out, "well, you must not have did a 

	

2 	good job because she told." 

	

3 	 THE DEFENDANT: That's all hearsay. 

	

4 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor -- 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Your counsel is very capable, 

	

6 	Mr. McNeil. 

	

7 	 MR. COOPER: Obviously, Your Honor, that 

	

8 	goes directly to the fact that he was showing no 

	

9 	progress. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: And with all due respect, it's 

	

11 	the Court's determination what's hearsay and what 

	

12 	isn't. 

	

13 	 MR. COOPER: That was going directly to the 

	

14 	fact that he had little to no progress; his attitude 

	

15 	at the time, and that's relevant. I mean, it comes 

	

16 	in obviously as defendant's statement. There's no 

	

17 	reason to keep it out. 

	

18 	 I was just making sure the Court was aware 

	

19 	of that, because I know I'm going to get "object." 

	

20 	I know they're going to say, "Hey, I want a mistrial 

	

21 	now because they weren't supposed to say that." So 

	

22 	I just want to make sure the Court's -- I wanted the 

	

23 	court's ruling before that came out. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: well, Mr. Cooper, do me a 

	

25 	favor. Let's try to change tactics today. 
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1 	 MR. COOPER: 	I'm sorry. 

2 	 THE COURT: Between both sides' counsels, 

3 	you know, let's leave the editorializing out about 

4 	what we think each counsel might do. Okay. Here's 

5 	the deal: If they ask for a mistrial, they're going 

6 	to ask for a mistrial because they think that 

7 	somebody has said something that warrants it, and 

8 	you have two witnesses that got up here and said 

9 	something that they shouldn't have said. 

10 	 MR. COOPER: I agree, Your Honor. 

11 	 THE COURT: I've already denied the 

12 	mistrial, but let's save it that there's going to 

13 	be, oh, another mistrial request, like somehow 

14 	they're rationing this out because they're not. So 

15 	what I want to make sure is your witness doesn't get 

16 	up here and say anything that she's not supposed to 

17 	say. 

18 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

19 	 THE COURT: And what we're not going to do 

20 	to this jury what I've tried mightily to avoid is 

21 	turning this case into, you know, "We don't like 

22 	this gentleman because we don't like what he said; 

23 	we don't like what he did; we don't like that he's 

24 	on food stamps; we don't like that he's" -- you 

25 	know, I can't ultimately control what's in the minds 
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1 	of •the jury. 

	

2 	 But what I can do is remind them again that 

	

3 	their job is to determine whether the State has met 

	

4 	its burden to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that 

	

5 	he didn't comply with the conditions. All she has 

6 	to testify to is that he was terminated from the 

	

7 	treatment and the basis for that termination. 

	

8 	 She doesn't have to go into the details of 

	

9 	things that he said that are going to be considered 

	

10 	to be potentially inflammatory. I do find that a 

	

11 	statement like that, the substantial prejudice would 

	

12 	outweigh any relevancy to the fact that he wasn't 

	

13 	making progress and that he got terminated. so  i am 

	

14 	absolutely going to preclude that kind of thing. 

	

15 	 maybe we need to have the doctor in here 

	

16 	just to discuss and admonish in terms of what the 

	

17 	scope -- 

	

18 
	

MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

19 
	

THE COURT: -- of the questioning should 

	

20 	be 

	

21 	 MR. COOPER: And so I just want to make 

	

22 	sure I understand. So are -- is it a blanket ruling 

	

23 	that none of his previous statements come out, or -- 

	

24 	 THE COURT: I don't know what his previous 

	

25 	statements are, but maybe, depending on if they're 
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1 	going to be things like that. 

	

2 	 MR. COOPER: And that's the problem, 

	

3 	Your Honor, because I can give you -- the only other 

4 	issue I know of or the only other statement would be 

	

5 	there was a situation where he became very 

	

6 	aggressive, and that is one of the reasons he was 

	

7 	terminated. 

	

8 	 And the reason he was very aggressive was 

	

9 	because it was a situation, again in group, where 

	

10 	the counselor says, "You shouldn't be able -- you 

	

11 	shouldn't date anyone with children"; and then he 

	

12 	got really mad, saying that, "What do you mean? I 

	

13 	can't have a normal life? What do you mean I can't 

	

14 	be around children?" Blah-blah-blah, and I'm not 

	

15 	going to ask her to go down the road of why he can't 

	

16 	he be around children. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: M. Cooper, here's the part 

	

18 	that I think that we're losing the focus on. One of 

	

19 	the underpinnings to his alleged violation of 

	

20 	lifetime supervision was that he was -- he didn't 

	

21 	complete his counseling and was terminated from 

	

22 	counseling. 

	

23 	 MR. COOPER: Terminated, yes, Your Honor. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: The exact wording was that he 

	

25 	was terminated. The only testimony we need from 
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1 	this doctor is that he was terminated from 

	

2 	counseling. 

	

3 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

4 	 THE COURT: And I have no problem with, and 

	

5 	I think it is appropriate for her to give some basis 

6 	for why he was -- if she made the determination to 

	

7 	terminate him, why did she terminate it. But going 

further into all of his behaviors at the time, 

	

9 	mean, that's not relevant; and that is absolutely 

	

10 	maybe not intended, but it sounds like intended, but 

	

11 	certainly will inflame this jury to perhaps be 

	

12 	biased in terms of how they reach a verdict, and 

	

13 	don't want that. 

	

14 	 MR. COOPER: And I apologize, Your Honor. 

	

15 	It's definitely not intended. That's why i wanted 

	

16 	to bring it to the Court's attention first. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: well, I'm glad you did. 

	

18 	 MR. COOPER: So I didn't want to do it and 

	

19 	then there be issues. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: But I guess I'm trying to 

	

21 	understand why you would even want to have the 

	

22 	inquiry go into that level of detail of things that 

	

23 	he said and did in groups just because they happen 

	

24 	to be some of the things that she weighed to 

	

25 	terminate, when the relevant information is he 
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1 	terminated, and he terminated for legitimate 

	

2 	reasons. 

	

3 	 I mean, that's one of the reasons why I'm 

	

4 	not just letting her get up there and say, "Here's 

	

5 	my form and yes, I checked these boxes." I mean, 

	

6 	she's able to say that he needed to be terminated 

	

7 	and that it was legitimate. Because we already got 

	

8 	an argument happening here that, you know, there was 

	

9 	bias with the officer and that's why he, you know, 

	

10 	he's -- things are happening. 

	

11 	 There has to be able to be the ability for 

	

12 	this witness to testify that she legitimately 

	

13 	terminated him. But she doesn't have to go into the 

	

14 	details of those circumstances. 

	

15 	 MR. COOPER: That's fine with the state, 

	

16 	Your Honor. I just want to make sure I'm clear. Is 

	

17 	that -- is it okay if she just says, "Statements he 

	

18 	made showed he made little-to-no progress." It 

	

19 	doesn't talk about the statements, but she does need 

	

20 	to actually -- 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Generally, his behaviors and 

	

22 	his statements and without her saying what they are, 

	

23 	absolutely she's able to do that. 

	

24 	 MR. COOPER: That's fine, Your Honor. I 

	

25 	would just need to make sure I re-admonish my 
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1 	witness. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: No, I'm going to have her come 

3 	in here, and we're going to talk to her all 

4 	together. 

	

5 
	

MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

6 
	

THE COURT: Let's have her come in now and 

7 	do that. 

	

8 	 MR. COOPER: Do you want her -- 

	

9 	 THE COURT: what do you anticipate your 

	

10 	examination time with this witness? 

	

11 
	

MR. COOPER: Ten. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Fairly quick. 

	

13 	 MR. COOPER: Ten minutes, yeah, I mean. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Just trying to gauge again in 

	

15 	terms of how long we might be into lunch hour to 

	

16 	settle the instructions. We do need to be as quick 

	

17 	as possible in settling instructions, folks, because 

	

18 	I need to get them done and I need to get the jury 

	

19 	back in here. 	So, you know, we just -- we'll figure 

	

20 	it out. We'll make it work. 

	

21 	 What's the doctor -- what's her last name 

	

22 	again, "Lee"? 

	

23 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. Marcia Lee. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Marcia Lee. And I'm sorry. I 

	

25 	say "doctor" because I kind of tend to use that 
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1 	terminology for everybody. But is she a doctor? 

	

2 	 MR. COOPER: 	No. 	I think she's a licensed 

	

3 	therapist. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: She's a licensed LCSW or an 

	

5 	MFT7 

	

6 
	

MR. COOPER: LFT 	MFT, 

	

7 	 THE COURT: MFT, marriage and family 

	

8 	therapist, okay. 

	

9 	 MS. FERRERA: So she's not a doctor. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: I don't think -- 

	

11 	 MS. FERRERA: Okay. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Most counselors are not 

	

13 	doctors. But like I said, I tend to use that 

	

14 	terminology. I don't want to slip and use that 

	

15 	terminology. 

	

16 	 MS. FERRERA: And my only concern is that, 

	

17 
	

at this point, Your Honor, if she is referred to as 

	

18 
	

"doctor" -- 

	

19 
	

THE COURT: I won't. 

	

20 
	

MS. FERRERA: -- then she gets into expert 

	

21 
	

testimony. 

	

22 
	

THE COURT: Ms. Lee, come on up if you can, 

	

23 
	

please. Just be easier to have you sit here, kind 

	

24 
	

of get familiar with how all this works. When you 

	

25 
	

come in later, you're going to kind of come up 
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1 	there, and we'll have you stand when you first come 

	

2 	in, when the jury is present, raise your hand and 

	

3 	get sworn. But you don't have to do that right now. 

	

4 	 we're bringing you in in advance because 

	

5 	there has been a lot of discussion amongst counsel 

	

6 	and requests made to the court for what the proper 

	

7 	scope of your testimony will be, and I wanted to 

	

8 	sort of give you some basic admonishments, for lack 

	

9 	of a better word, of what is and is not appropriate 

	

10 	to discuss. 

	

11 	 As we know, the charges against Mr. McNeil 

	

12 	are for violation of lifetime supervision by a 

	

13 	convicted sex offender and prohibited acts by a sex 

	

14 	offender, and your testimony, relevancy goes to that 

	

15 	first charge because one of the bases upon which 

	

16 	he's been charged with violation is that he was 

	

17 	terminated from counseling. 

	

18 	 so there has been some discussion about how 

	

19 	much information can be given, certainly the fact 

	

20 	that he terminated, certainly the basis upon which 

	

21 	he terminated, and the determination was made to 

	

22 	terminate him is fine. 

	

23 	 But what we cannot have happen with this 

	

24 	jury is the kind of sort of details of what was said 

	

25 	or what was done in the group setting or in the 
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1 	individual settings that would cause the jury 

	

2 	perhaps to become biased against him just because of 

	

3 	that behavior. The determination needs to be made 

	

4 	on whether or not he violated his conditions, which 

	

5 	is the termination. 

	

6 	 i have not told the counsel that he needs 

	

7 	to limit his questioning of you or your answers to 

	

8 	him to just "yes, he terminated" and "Yes, these are 

	

9 	the boxes I checked on the form." But we have 

	

10 	removed from the form any references to your belief 

	

11 	of what his future propensities are or propensity to 

	

12 	reoffend. That cannot be testified to. I believe 

	

13 	you've probably already been admonished as to that. 

	

14 	 But what we also want to avoid, even though 

	

15 	you can explain that there were 	that he said 

	

16 	things or did things in the treatment that caused 

	

17 	you to believe that he was, as you checked the box, 

	

18 	making little or no progress, however you're going 

	

19 	to testify to that. 

	

20 	 But what we cannot have and what we will 

	

21 	not allow is the specifics of what he said or what 

	

22 	he did in group or treatment to come into the 

	

23 	testimony. 

	

24 	 Is that clear enough to you to be able to 

	

25 	answer the questions? 
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1 	 Did counsel -- obviously, I'm going to give 

	

2 	him some leeway to lead, if necessary. But, again, 

	

3 	we want the jury to make its determination on 

	

4 	whether this defendant is guilty based on the 

	

5 	elements and the underlying details. 

	

6 	 The court has determined that those would 

be substantially prejudicial and outweigh the 

relevance of that testimony, So which is why we're 

precluding the details of the statements made or the 

actions taken in group or individual. 

MB. LEE: which is why he was terminated, 

part of why, a large part of why he was terminated. 

THE COURT: understood. 

Nis. LEE: 	okay. 

THE COURT: But is it impossible for you to 

say, "The defendant said things that caused me to 

terminate him"'versus "This is what the defendant 

said." 

appreciate your desire perhaps to want to say more. 

23 But what I'm going to do, as the gatekeeper of this 

	

24 	trial, is do my very best to ensure that when the 

	

25 	jury renders its verdict, it is rendering its 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Do you understand the difference? 

MB. LEE: Yeah, I get the difference. 

THE COURT: I appreciate it, and 
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1 	verdict only on the information that is necessary to 

	

2 	render its verdict on and not on other things that 

	

3 	would tend to potentially cause them to render their 

4 	verdict on something that is based on bias or other 

	

5 	impermissible reasons. 

6 	 I don't have a choice here. So I very much 

	

7 
	

appreciate your job and what you do. But I also 

	

8 
	

appreciate your understanding of that there are 

	

9 
	

certain pieces of evidence that are relevant, and 

	

10 
	

then there are certain pieces of evidence that, 

	

11 
	

although they are relevant, are too prejudicial to 

	

12 
	

the trial to be able to come in. 

	

13 
	

MS. LEE: 	Okay. 

	

14 
	

THE COURT: Okay. I very much appreciate 

	

15 
	

taking the time and having the opportunity to speak 

	

16 
	

with you about that. As soon as we can have you 

	

17 
	re-exit, then we'll bring the jury in and call you 

	

18 
	

back in. Okay? 

	

19 
	

MS. LEE: Okay. 

	

20 
	

MR. COOPER: And, your Honor, it might just 

	

21 
	

be easier if she just goes in the witness room right 

	

22 
	

there. 

	

23 
	

THE COURT: Yeah, of course. That's what 

	

24 
	

assumed she would do, or she can even have a seat. 

	

25 
	

Bring the jury in, so just if you would like to -- 
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1 	 MR. COOPER: my PowerPoint is still on the 

	

2 	screen, so i think we should take that off before 

3 	the jury gets here. 

4 	 THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: I don't control that. 

6 	 THE REPORTER: I'm not sure how to do this. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: )onathan will show you. 

	

8 	 Are you going to need to use the Elmo with 

	

9 	this witness? 

	

10 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: well, if you are, let's get it 

	

12 
	

all ready to go. And then, again, this is a 

	

13 
	

different reporter. so we're not perhaps as well 

	

14 
	

versed in the moving back and forth, so. 

	

15 
	

MS. HOJJAT: 	Judge, I apologize. 	i just 

	

16 
	

want to make sure I don't open any doors during 

	

17 
	

cross. So can I just kind of make a proffer. 

	

18 
	

THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, Your Honor. 

	

19 
	

THE COURT: Hold on a second. 

	

20 
	

Yes, Susan -- I mean, Dana. Sorry. 

	

21 
	

THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. I couldn't do 

	

22 
	

both at the same time with the deputy --i can't 

	

23 
	

report. 

	

24 
	

THE COURT: Understood. we're waiting. 

	

25 
	

THE REPORTER: Thank you. 
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1 	 MS. HWJAT: And, Your Honor, I just want 

	

2 	to make sure I don't open any doors on 

	

3 	cross-examination. so I just kind of wanted to make 

	

4 	a proffer to the Court and make sure the Court was 

	

5 	okay with a specific question x was going to ask in 

	

6 	terms of not opening any doors. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: well, the witness is still in 

	

8 	the courtroom. Are you sure you want to do it while 

	

9 	she's sitting there? can -- 

	

10 	 I'm sorry. Ms. •Lee, can you step into the 

	

11 	anteroom. 

	

12 	 MS. HOJJAT: I apologize, Your Honor. 

	

13 	 And it's directly testimony, an answer that 

	

14 	she gave on direct in, at the preliminary hearing 

	

15 	was he was terminated because he was disruptive; and 

	

16 	when she was asked how he was disruptive, she said, 

	

17 	"He'd argue. with everybody and wouldn't accept 

	

18 	feedback." 

	

19 	 And so I kind of wanted to just cross her 

	

20 	on that. T just want to make sure that going into 

	

21 	that doesn't open the door to how else was he 

	

22 	disruptive and us going down that path. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: well, I mean, at the end of the 

	

24 	day, as I've said, I think we can have testimony 

	

25 	with regard to that he did things and said things 
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1 	without exactly what those things were that he did 

	

2 	and exactly what those things were that he said. 

	

3 	 However, if you do ask questions that open 

	

4 	the door and she gives the answer, you know, I've 

	

5 	already admonished her. 	I mean, basically, 

	

6 	probably went too far in the admonishments, but 

	

7 	did -- i wanted to make sure the witness was 

	

8 	understanding what I was trying to say. 

	

9 	 But, you know, tread lightly here. okay? 

	

10 	It goes both ways. 

	

11 	 Ms. H033AT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: So we'll see. 

	

13 	 Ms. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: All right. 

	

15 	 All right. 	Let's have the jury. 

	

16 	 (The following proceedings were held in the 

	

17 	presence of the jury:) 

	

18 	 THE COURT: You can, of course, take your 

	

19 	seats as you reach them. Just a quick reminder to 

	

20 	make sure your cell phones are off or silenced, 

	

21 	please. 

	

22 
	

Go ahead. Everybody can have a seat as 

	

23 	well. 

	

24 
	

All right. Thank you, ladies and 

	

25 	gentlemen. Resuming the trial on the matter of the 
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1 	State of Nevada vs. Steven Dell McNeil. 

	

2 	 I do have one matter that I have to address 

	

3 	with the court -- or address with the jury before we 

4 	get started. i just, i want to admonish or remind 

	

5 	the jurors, based on the testimony that was given 

6 	yesterday with both witnesses but additionally with 

	

7 	the last witness of the day, to remind the jury that 

	

8 	any information that goes to the history, shall we 

	

9 	say, of this defendant in terms of how he became a 

	

10 	convicted sex offender or the fact that he is in 

	

11 	fact on lifetime supervision is not relevant to this 

	

12 	trial. 

	

13 	 what is relevant to this trial is that, in 

	

14 	fact, those facts have been stipulated to; he is a 

	

15 	convicted sex offender and he's on lifetime 

	

16 	supervision. The issue is that what he's been 

	

17 	charged with, violation of lifetime supervision and 

	

18 	prohibited acts, and whether or not you find from 

	

19 	the evidence and that the law, as we will instruct 

	

20 	you later today, that he is in fact guilty, beyond a 

	

21 	reasonable doubt, to those charges. That is the 

	

22 	only relevant information. 

	

23 	 so T instruct you generally to disregard 

	

24 	any information that may lead to discussion and 

	

25 	certainly to direct you to not have and allow it to 
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1 	enter into your deliberations or be part of your 

	

2 	deliberations in any way the underlying matters that 

	

3 	brought us to the point where these charges were 

	

4 	brought. 

	

5 	 Okay. So with that general admonishment, I 

6 	think we can proceed, and I would ask now for the 

	

7 	State to call their next witness. 

	

8 	 MR. COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

9 	 And, Your Honor, the State's next witness 

	

10 	is Marcia Lee. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: All right. Ms. Lee. 

	

12 	 Thank you, Ms. Lee. If you'll just come 

	

13 	all the way through up to the chair and remain 

	

14 	standing by the chair, then my clerk here to the 

	

15 	left will swear you in. 

	

16 	 (witness sworn.) 

	

17 	 THE WITNESS: I do. 

	

18 	 THE CLERK: Please be seated. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Go ahead. 

	

20 	 THE CLERK: Will you please state your name 

	

21 	and spell it, for the record. 

	

22 	 THE WITNESS: Marcia Lee. spelled 

	

23 	M - A - R - C - I -A L - E - E. 

	

24 	 THE CLERK: Thank you. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Lee. 
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1 	 Before Mr. Cooper gets started, I just 

	

2 	wanted to make sure is your monitor there on the 

	

3 	desk on, can you tell? 

	

4 	 THE WITNESS: Yeah, appears to be. 

	

5 	think. 

	

6 
	

THE COURT: okay. Thank you. 

	

7 
	

Go ahead, mr. Cooper. 

	

8 
	

MR. COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

9 

	

10 	Thereupon -- 

	

11 	 MARCIA LEE, 

	

12 	having been first duly sworn to testify to the 

	

13 	truth, was examined and testified as follows: 

14 

	

15 	 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

	

16 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

17 	Q. 	Ms. Lee, what's your current occupation? 

	

18 	A. 	I'm a licensed marriage and family 

	

19 	therapist. 

	

20 	Q. 	And based on that occupation, what are some 

	

21 	of the ordinary course of things you do on a daily 

	

22 	basis? 

	

23 	A. 	I see people for all kinds of issues, for 

	

24 	depression and adjustment disorders and that sort of 

	

25 	thing. But I'm also a referral source for Parole 
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1 	and Probation for working with adult sex offenders. 

	

2 	Q. 	And do you recognize anyone in court here 

3 	today that you worked with as a sex offender? 

4 	A. 	I do. 

	

5 	Q. 	Can you please point at that person and 

	

6 	describe something he's wearing. 

	

7 	A. 	It's Mr. McNeil, and he's sitting with a 

	

8 	tan shirt and a plaid tie. 

	

9 	 MR. COOPER: And may the record reflect the 

	

10 	witness has identified the defendant. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: The record will so reflect. 

	

12 	Thank you. 

	

13 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

14 	Q. 	When was the first time you came in contact 

	

15 	with Mr. McNeil? 

	

16 	A. 	He began treatment with me in March of 

	

17 	2008. 

	

18 
	

Q. 
	And, generally, what does sex offender 

	

19 	treatment entail? 

	

20 
	

A. 	Well, it entails several parts. My program 

	

21 	addresses both objective and subjective measures, 

	

22 	which means we do some testing. We also do 

	

23 	subjectively best in our clinical experience with 

	

24 	working with people who have sex offenses. 

	

25 	 we also have -- we have three different 
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1 	steps that we do. One is a psycho-ed portion, at 

	

2 	which point they take a sexual history, do a sexual 

	

3 	history; take a sexual history polygraph. They move 

	

4 	on from that to a group where they do some specific 

	

5 	homework, and then they do a maintenance group to 

	

6 	finish up. 

	

7 
	

Q. 	Is the homework and the polygraph, is that 

	

8 
	

the objective portion? 

	

9 
	

A. 	Yes. 

	

10 
	

Q. 	And was the defendant ever terminated in the 

	

11 
	

objective portion? 

	

12 	A. 	He was not. 

	

13 
	

Q. 	NOW, you said after that, you go on and you 

	

14 
	

do some group stuff as well? 

	

15 
	

A. 	we do, uh-huh. 

	

16 
	

Q. 	well, let me ask you this. How long have 

	

17 
	

you been, I guess, a sex offender counselor? 

	

18 
	

A. 	I've been doing this for about 20 years. 

	

19 	Q. 	And at some point during the subjective part 

	

20 	of the counseling, was the defendant subsequently 

	

21 	terminated? 

	

22 	A. 	He was, 

	

23 	Q. 	And did you do something called a 

24 	Termination Summary as a result of that? 

25 	A. 	i did. 

436 



39 

1 	 MR. COOPER: Permission to approach the 

	

2 	witness, Your Honor. 

3 	 THE COURT: You may. 

4 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

5 	Q. 	And I'm now showing you what's been 

6 	previously marked as State's Proposed Exhibit 11. 

	

7 
	

DO you recognize that? 

	

8 
	

A. 	I do. 

	

9 
	

Q. 	And what is that? 

	

10 
	

A. 	It is just a form that I use for a 

	

11 
	

Termination Summary. I send it to the Department of 

	

12 
	

Parole and Probation or to his probation, parole 

	

13 
	

officer. 

	

14 
	

Q. 	And is this a correct copy of that form that 

	

15 
	

you would have sent? 

	

16 
	

A. 	Yes. 

	

17 
	

MR. COOPER: At this point, Your Honor, the 

	

18 
	

State would move to admit State's Proposed 

	

19 
	

Exhibit 11. 

	

20 
	

MS. HOJJAT: No objection, Your Honor. 

	

21 
	

THE COURT: State's Exhibit 11 is admitted. 

	

22 
	

(whereupon State's Exhibit No. 11 was 

	

23 
	

admitted into evidence.) 

	

24 
	

MR. COOPER: And permission to publish, 

	

25 	Your Honor. 
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I 	 THE COURT: Yes. 

	

2 	 MR. COOPER: Thank you. 

	

3 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

4 	Q. 	And, ms. Lee, if you look to your right 

	

5 	there, I think this screen should show this document. 

	

6 
	

A. 	Yes. 

	

7 	Q. 	Okay. So it looks like on the left-hand 

	

8 	side of this document, there's a couple of boxes that 

	

9 	are checked. 

	

10 
	

A. 	Yes. 

	

11 
	

Q. 
	Do you see those? 

	

12 
	

A. 	I do. 

	

13 	Q. 	And one of them says "Client cannot make 

	

14 	payments." What does that mean? 

	

15 	A. 	It means that he was behind in his fees to 

	

16 	therapy. 

	

17 	Q. 	Now, would being behind in fees alone, would 

	

18 	that -- would you terminate somebody for that? 

	

19 	A. 	Obviously not, no. 

	

20 	Q. 	What about the little or no progress in 

	

21 	treatment, what do you mean when you check that box? 

	

22 	A. 	That was the subjective matters that I had 

	

23 	noted in his behavior and his progress in group. 

	

24 	Q. 	Okay. And when you terminated him, that was 

	

25 	in December of 2012? 
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7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 	A. 	It was. 

2 	Q. 	And it looks like on the right, on the upper 

3 	left right-hand portion of this, it says Officer 

4 	Ron (sic) Paige. 

5 	 Would that be your contact at P & P? 

6 	A. 	It was it's officer Ryan Paige. 

Q. 
	oh, I'm sorry. 	Ryan Paige. 

A. 	Yeah. 

Q. 	And at that time, that would have been the 

defendant's probation officer? 

A. 	It was. 

Q. 	And it looks like on the bottom here, it 

talks about treatment. It says that he was intaked 

on march 8th, 2008? 

A. 	Yes, he was. 

Q. 
	And the last date was December 14th, 2012? 

A. 	It was. 

Q. 
	was that the last session? 

A. 	That was the last session he attended. 

Q. 
	was he supposed to attend a session after 

that? 

A. 	He was to have come in on the 21st, but he 

called and canceled. 

Q. 	And was that the reason -- was that another 

reason for the termination? 
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1 	A. 	Yes. Based on the conversation that had 

	

2 	taken place in the previous session. 

	

3 	Q. 	And it says under Source B right here, 

	

4 	"Therapist initiated"? 

	

5 	A. 	Yes. 

	

6 	Q. 	And that's because you're the one that 

	

7 	initiated the termination? 

	

8 	A. 	Myself and the co-therapist in the group, 

	

9 	yes. 

	

10 	 MR. COOPER: 	Court's brief indulgence. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Yes. 

	

12 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

13 	Q. 	And at any time after December 2012, did the 

	

14 	defendant come back to you for counseling? 

	

15 	A. 	No. 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor -- 

	

17 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

18 	Q. 	And your office is in Clark County, Nevada? 

	

19 	A. 	It is. 

	

20 	 MR. COOPER: 	I'll pass the witness, 

	

21 	Your Honor. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

	

23 	 Ms. Hojjat. 

	

24 	 MS. HOJJAT: Very briefly, Your Honor. 

	

25 	/1/ 
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1 	 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

	

2 	BY MS. HOJJAT: 

	

3 
	

Q. 	Good afternoon, ms. Lee. 

	

4 
	

A. 	Good afternoon. 

	

5 
	

Q. 	How are you doing today? 

	

6 	A. 	Pretty good. 

	

7 	Q. 
	guess it's almost afternoon. 

	

8 	A. 	Sort of. 

	

9 	Q. 	You testified that he started treatment in 

	

10 	March of 2008? 

	

11 	A. 	i did. 

	

12 
	

Q. 
	And he continued through December of 2012? 

	

13 
	

A. 	He did. 

	

14 
	

Q. 
	So that's over four years? 

	

15 
	

A. 	It was. 

	

16 
	

Q. 
	And he completed the homework? 

	

17 	A. 	He did a homework group. He was having 

	

18 	trouble doing the homework on his own. And so we
 

	

19 	transferred him into a homework group where it
 was 

	

20 	done more one on one; although, there were 
three or 

	

21 	four in the group at the time, where it's done
 

	

22 	verbally instead of having to read and write
 it, 

	

23 	where some people have problems with that. 

	

24 
	

Q. 
	okay. But he did -- 

	

25 	A. 	which took about a year of time, yeah. 
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Q. 	Okay. But he did do the homework? 

2 
	

A. 	He did do the homework. 

3 
	

Q. 
	He completed that portion? 

4 
	

A. 	Yes, he did. 

5 
	

Q. 
	And he completed the second portion? 

6 
	

A. 	The group portion? 

7 
	

Q. 
	Yeah, the polygraph portion. 

8 
	

A. 	The polygraph portion, he did. 

9 
	

Q. 
	Okay. And in that four years, he wasn't 

10 	terminated for constant failures to show up or 

11 	anything? 

12 	A. 	No, he was not. 

13 	Q. 	Okay. He was showing up? 

14 	A. 	He did. 

15 	Q. 	Okay. And -- 

16 	 Court's indulgence. 

17 	 THE COURT: Yes. Excuse me. 

18 	 MS. H033AT: 	pass the witness, 

19 	Your Honor. 

20 	 THE COURT: Mr. Cooper, any redirect? 

21 	 MR. COOPER: 	just have one question, 

22 	Your Honor. 

23 	/ / / 

24 	/ / / 

25 	/ / / 
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1 	 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

	

2 	BY MR. COOPER: 

	

3 	Q. 	On average, how long is the sex offender 

4 	counseling? 

	

5 	A. 	Runs from a year to three years. It 

6 	depends a lot on the individual. The first part is 

	

7 	controlled, the first portion, which is the 

	

8 	psycho-ed portion, is pretty much controlled by the 

	

9 	therapist. 

	

10 	 The second part, which is the group part 

	

11 	where they're doing the homework on their own is 

	

12 	controlled primarily by the client and how fast they 

	

13 	work through the homework and do the process in 

	

14 	group. 

	

15 	Q. 	And do you remember, off the top of your 

	

16 	head, how long the defendant was in that second part? 

	

17 
	

MS. NO33AT: 	Judge, I'm going to object, 

	

18 
	

relevance and outside the scope. 

	

19 
	

THE COURT: overruled. 

	

20 
	

You may answer. 

	

21 
	

THE WITNESS: He was in group probably -- 

	

22 
	and I'm guessing because I don't have the notes in 

	

23 
	

front of me -- about a year perhaps, when we 

	

24 
	

realized that he was really struggling with the 

	

25 
	

homework, and that's when we moved him to the 
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1 	homework group. And I believe he was in that group 

	

2 	for about a year. i did not do the homework with 

3 	him. Another therapist did, and then he came back 

4 	to the process group where I was. 

	

5 	 MR. COOPER: 	No further questions, 

6 	Your Honor. 

7 
	

THE COURT: Any further questions? 

	

8 
	

MS. HOJJAT: 	No further questions, 

	

9 
	

Your Honor. 

	

10 
	

THE WITNESS: May I see by a show of hands 

	

11 
	

if any jurors have questions for this witness. 

	

12 
	

Seeing none then, ms. Lee, then you are 

	

13 
	

excused. Thank you for your time today. 

	

14 
	

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: Does the State have any 

	

16 
	

additional witnesses to call? 

	

17 
	

MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I've just 

	

18 
	

inquired of the clerk as to the status of my 

	

19 
	

exhibits. 

	

20 
	

THE COURT: All -- the clerk indicates all 

21 of the exhibits are admitted. 

	

22 	 MR. COOPER: And with the admission of all 

	

23 	my exhibits, Your Honor, the State has no further 

	

24 	witnesses, and the State would rest this matter. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: All right. The State has 
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1 	rested now. It's about ten minutes to 12:00. we 

	

2 	were not entirely sure how long the questioning of 

	

3 	this witness would take, we do have some matters 

	

4 	that we have to address, including finalizing the 

	

5 	jury instructions for you. so what we are going to 

6 	do is give you an extended lunch recess. 

	

7 	 we couldn't quite be sure if that was going 

	

8 	to happen or not or how that would happen. so 

	

9 	apologize for the additional time that you will 

	

10 	have. BUt the goal here has been to complete the 

	

11 	trial. we will return and resume with the defense 

	

12 	case, and then we will ultimately proceed with 

	

13 	instructions and closings and deliver the trial to 

	

14 	you today, as we indicated. 

	

15 	 But I am going to give you a lunch recess 

	

16 	that is going to be until 2:00 p.m. That is when 

	

17 	you will return. we will expect to start promptly 

	

18 	at 2:00 p.m. That, again, gives the court the 

	

19 	opportunity to complete its needs with the counsel 

	

20 	and also for the counsel and staff to have a brief 

	

21 	recess, lunch recess as well. So, again, 

	

22 	apologize for the additional time. But we will get 

	

23 	back to business at 2:00 and deliver this case to 

	

24 	you as soon as we can. 

	

25 	 All right. 	Enjoy your lunch recess. By 
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1 	the way, don't get up yet. I've got to admonish 

	

2 	you, because our supreme court will have a fit if 

	

3 	that's not in the record that I did so. 

	

4 	 Not to talk or converse amongst yourselves 

	

5 	or with anyone else on any subject connected with 

	

6 	this trial; or read, watch, or listen to report of 

	

7 	or commentary of the trial or any person connected 

	

8 	with this trial by any medium of information, 

	

9 	including, without limitation, newspapers, 

	

10 	television, radio, internet, or social media or for
m 

	

11 	or express any opinion on any subject connected 
with 

	

12 	the trial until the case is finally submitted to 

	

13 	you. 

	

14 	 And we'll see you back here at 2:00 o'clock. 

	

15 	 (Pause in the proceedings.) 

	

16 	 (The following proceedings were held 

	

17 	outside the presence of the jury:) 

	

18 	 THE COURT: All right, we'll get started 

	

19 	with the jury instructions. 

	

20 	 Go ahead and have a seat. I did receive, 

	

21 	of course last night, the Defense Proposed Exh
ibits, 

	

22 	with and without cites, as well as the memorandum
, 

	

23 	which has now been filed with its own caption 

	

24 	indicating, you know, summarizing the argument w
ith 

	

25 	regard to what I think is sort of the gravamen
 of 
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1 	the dispute as to what the instructions should b e  

	

2 	which is one of the components of lifetime 

	

3 	supervision and whether or not these requirements 

	

4 	set forth in the lifetime supervision agreement and 

	

5 	the -- okay -- and what has been asserted as some or 

	

6 	all of the bases for alleging violation of lifetime 

	

7 	supervision are actually legal requirements that are 

	

8 	mandated and can support the charge. 

	

9 	 And, of course, the instructions then, we 

	

10 	have the -- we have the proposal by the State for 

	

11 	the instructions with regard to that. Now, there 

	

12 	are some overlap obviously in the Defendant's 

	

13 	Proposed, specifically the witness's -- the 

	

14 	defendant's right to take the stand or not and some 

	

15 	of the credibility. I don't know how we want to do 

	

16 	them. It might be easier to kind of go through the 

	

17 	defendant's. 

	

18 	 my thought process coming into today, but 

	

19 	I'm open to your suggestions, was to go through the 

	

20 	Defendant's Proposed and allow that to be the 

	

21 	argument. we'll obviously note where either are 

	

22 	overlaps with what state has proposed or whatever 

	

23 	are kind of typical stocks. I didn't necessarily 

	

24 	see in the ones that you were putting in there that 

	

25 	there was -- in the some of the stocks, that there 
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1 	was a real differentiation. so I may have missed 

	

2 	something. But to go through those, and then of 

3 	course, when we get to the substantive ones, then we 

4 	can have that argument. 

	

5 	 It seems to make more sense to do it that 

6 	way, and then we can obviously hear argument from 

	

7 	the State; the Court will make its determination, 

	

8 	and then at the end of the day, we'll see if there's 

	

9 	any of the others the state has that are in 

	

10 	question. 

	

11 
	

Does anybody want to do it a different way, 

	

12 
	

think there's a better way to do it? 

	

13 
	

Ms. HOJJAT: I have no objection to that, 

	

14 
	

Your Honor. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Mr. Cooper. 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: No objection, Your Honor. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: All right. So just for the 

	

18 	record, so that it's a little bit easier to do, and 

	

19 	I did appreciate that there were page numbers 

	

20 	associated with the Defendant's Proposed. 

	

21 	 So the first one, which would be on 

	

22 	page 1 -- it's not actually numbered page 1 because 

	

23 	the page numbers don't actually begin until 

	

24 	page 2 -- but I honestly wasn't quite clear of the 

	

25 	basis for this proposal. 
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1 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. And to 

	

2 	clarify, there was clearly a conversation had in the 

	

3 	office of Officer zanna. It started in Officer 

	

4 	mangan's office -- and I'm sorry -- Sergeant zanna, 

	

5 	and eventually transpired in sergeant zanna's 

	

6 	office. But clearly, there was some sort of 

	

7 	incident and interaction, whatever occurred. There 

	

8 	was testimony about it. 

	

9 	 so the mere presence instruction basically 

	

10 	says just because the defendant is present at the 

	

11 	scene of an incident, something occurring, some 

	

12 	conversation happening, whatever it is, doesn't mean 

	

13 	that that's it, now he's guilty because he was 

	

14 	there. we're not disputing he was there, but we are 

	

15 	saying him being there doesn't mean he's guilty. So 

	

16 	I believe this instruction is on point because 

	

17 	that's basically what it's telling the jury. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: All right. 

	

19 	 Mr. cooper. 

	

20 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I don't think 

	

21 	there's any facts in evidence to support this 

	

22 	instruction. I mean, mere presence at the scene is 

	

23 	usually used in a robbery-type scenario when there 

	

24 	was an actual crime committed at that particular 

	

25 	specific moment and the defendant is like, HI was at 
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1 	the scene, but I wasn't the one that committed the 

2 	robbery." 

3 	 I mean, this just doesn't go to the facts 

4 	whatsoever. I mean, they're saying that he was in 

	

5 	the office, but we're not saying that he did 

6 	anything in the office? well, I'm not -- I guess it 

	

7 	just doesn't make sense factually. And it's hard 

	

8 	for me to even, I guess, argue it 

	

9 	 Ms. H03JAT: If i can just briefly respond 

	

10 	to that. what we're saying is he was in the office, 

	

11 	but that doesn't mean he's guilty of a crime. The 

	

12 	fact that they've proven he was in the office is not 

	

13 	the burden that they need to meet. And this 

	

14 	instruction is an accurate instruction of the law, 

	

15 	and we believe it's on point in this case. 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, it is an 

	

17 	accurate instruction of the law. But as she said, 

	

18 	it still needs to be on point, and the facts still 

	

19 	need to support this instruction. I can't just put 

	

20 	any instruction that has law behind it in any case. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: The Court is not going to give 

	

22 	the proposed instruction, and the basis for that is 

	

23 	that, while it might be a correct statement of the 

	

24 	law generally, I do not see it being a point in this 

	

25 	case, and I see it potentially confusing to the 
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1 	jury. 

	

2 	 It would be one thing if the instruction 

	

3 	was written -- and I'm not suggesting this because 

	

4 	don't believe the instruction needs to be given, 

	

5 	period -- but if it were written as the mere fact 

	

6 	that certain dialogue was had in, you know, 

	

7 	Sergeant zanna's office doesn't itself mean that the 

	

8 	defendant is guilty of the crimes charged. But we 

	

9 	just simply don't give instructions that go along 

	

10 	those lines. 

	

11 	 And this general instruction, I have every 

	

12 	reason to believe would entirely confuse the jury as 

	

13 	to why it is being given because there isn't an 

	

14 	incident -- an incident attendant to what, again, 

	

15 	was a circumstance of a crime is one thing. what 

	

16 	we're talking about here is evidence that's been 

	

17 	received of various supervisors or treater, 

	

18 	treatment providers to the defendant and their 

	

19 	testimony with regard to was his residency notified 

	

20 	and established; was he terminated from treatment, 

	

21 	that type of thing. 

	

22 	 so i believe that this instruction would be 

	

23 	misleading to the jury and is not applicable in the 

	

24 	facts of the case. So I will not be giving it. 

	

25 	 The next instruction, which again i would 
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1 	consider to be a stock, "The defendant is presumed 

	

2 	innocent unless the contrary is proved. Presumption 

	

3 	placed upon the state, the burden." And this is the 

	

4 	reasonable doubt instruction. I didn't necessarily 

	

5 	see where this differed. 

	

6 	 So am I missing something? 

	

7 	 ms. Ho3JAT: 	NO, Your Honor. It doesn't 

differ. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: okay. so it's -- and let me 

	

10 	just get the page number that corresponds with the 

	

11 	state's Proposed. I had it a minute ago, and then 

	

12 	lost it. 	I apologize. 

	

13 	 MR. COOPER: mine is page 6, Your Honor. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Page 6. Thank you. 

	

15 	 Yeah, I didn't see that difference. i just 

	

16 	wanted to make sure I didn't miss anything. So that 

	

17 	instruction is going to be given. It's already part 

	

18 	included in the state's packet. But that 

	

19 	instruction will be given. 	But it's not, again, a 

	

20 	distinct instruction. so just to be clear on the 

	

21 	record in that. 

	

22 	 Next instruction which appears, proposed 

	

23 	instruction by Defense, is on page 3. That's of 

	

24 	course the constitutional right of the defendant not 

	

25 	to be compelled to testify. And we do need to 
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1 	complete that canvass obviously again before we 

	

2 	break or before we presume your case in chief. 

	

3 	 But I already read this language, and this 

	

4 	is the same as what the State is proposing. So this 

	

5 	instruction will also be given but is already 

	

6 	included in the State's packet. 

	

7 	 Page 4, the credibility or believability of 

	

8 	a witness, this one, if I can
 find it. Yeah, this 

	

9 	one also matches to the State's. I couldn't 

	

10 	remember if something had been deleted from this 

	

11 	one. But it looks like this one is also in keeping
 

	

12 	with the stock and what the state is proposing. 

	

13 	 So is there anything that I've missed here? 

	

14 	 MS. HOJJAT: No, Your Honor. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. So page 4, Defendant's 

	

16 	Proposed, which is the credibility, believabilit
y of 

	

17 	a witness instruction will also be given as match
es 

	

18 	what's in the State's packet. 

	

19 	 The page 5, the circumstantial evidence 

	

20 	clarification, for lack of a better way to put
 it. 

	

21 	I have not typically given this instruction, and 
I 

	

22 	wanted to have some discussion on why you believe
 

	

23 	this instruction would be appropriate. 

	

24 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

25 	 we don't have a circumstantial instruction 
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1 	in Nevada. unfortunately, there is no stock. so  

	

2 	looked to California, which is the State that we 

	

3 	often look to here in Nevada; when we don't have our 

4 	own stocks, California is the stock that we most 

	

5 	typically go to. This is the california stock. It 

6 	is an accurate statement of the law. This jury does 

	

7 	need -- 

	

8 
	

THE COURT: Accurate statement of 

	

9 
	

California law or accurate statement of Nevada law? 

	

10 
	

MS. HOJJAT: It's an accurate statement of 

	

11 
	

how circumstantial evidence should be taken into 

	

12 
	

account. unless the Court found something 

	

13 
	

different, I haven't found anything in Nevada law 

	

14 
	

that says this is expressly incorrect. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: I have not. 

	

16 	 ms. HOJJAT: And so my understanding is 

	

17 	this has never been found to be -- nothing in here 

	

18 	contradicts Nevada law, that I'm aware of. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: okay. I don't have anything 

	

20 	that would disagree with that. 

	

21 	 maybe M. Cooper does, but -- 

	

22 	 MR. COOPER: I do, Your Honor. It starts 

	

23 	off by saying, "Before you may rely on the 

	

• 24 	circumstantial evidence to conclude that a fact 

	

25 	necessarily," and it goes down. i guess they're 
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1 	saying that you can't just rely on circumstantia
l 

	

2 	evidence alone. But the law makes no distinctio
n 

	

3 	between the weight to be given between direct 
and 

	

4 	circumstantial evidence. 

	

5 	 So to say that you can't rely on 

	

6 	circumstantial evidence alone is a 

	

7 
	

mischaracterization of Nevada law. 

	

8 
	

THE COURT: Well, you read it that way. I 

	

9 
	

mean, I think what it's ultimately indicating and 

	

10 
	

what the stock instruction would say, of course, is 

	

11 
	

that it defines what circumstantial evidence is and 

	

12 
	

talks about it being facts and circumstances which, 

	

13 
	

you know, taken together are a fact which can prove 

	

14 
	

another fact. 

	

15 
	

So I don't think it's a misstatement of the 

	

16 
	

law, but I understand if you read it to indicate 

	

17 
	

that somehow circumstantial evidence isn't to be 

	

18 
	

given the same weight, then yes, that would be 

	

19 
	

inaccurate. But I'm not sure that that's what that 

	

20 
	

says. 

	

21 
	

MR. COOPER: And I'm sorry, Your Honor. It 

	

22 
	

says, "Before you can rely on circumstance 

	

23 
	

circumstantial evidence to conclude that a fact 

	

24 
	

necessary to find the defendant guilty has been 

	

25 	proven, you must be convinced that the Stat
e has 
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1 	proven each fact essential to the conclusion beyond 

	

2 	a reasonable doubt." 

3 	 So i guess i -- it's basically saying that 

4 	the State has to prove its case without 

	

5 	circumstantial evidence before you are able to 

6 	consider circumstantial evidence. That's my 

	

7 	interpretation of it. so i think -- 

	

8 	 THE COURT: I understand your interpretation 

	

9 	of it. 

MR. COOPER: me having years legal -- and 

I'm saying I'm no road scholar by my means, but I 

have went to law school, and I think it's going to 

	

13 	be misinformed to the jury. The jury is going to be 

	

14 	mistaken as to the law because it either, A, needs 

	

15 	to be worded differently; or, B, doesn't need to be 

	

16 	given at all. Because it is misleading, at least to 

	

17 	me, and individuals who do not have a legal degree, 

	

18 	I think they would also be confused as to what they 

	

19 	can do with circumstantial evidence. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything further, 

	

21 	ms. Hojjat? 

	

22 	 MS. HOIJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

23 	 I would just respond I don't believe that 

	

24 	the State's reading is belied by the words. It's 

	

25 	saying that before you can rely on a fact to then go 
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1 	to the step of circumstantial evidence, that fact 

	

2 	has to be proven. The classic example that the 

	

3 	courts always give is the rainwater. 

4 	 If you're not actually present to see it 

	

5 	rain, but when you're driving home, the ground is 

6 	dry; you go into your house, you wake up the next 

	

7 	morning, you come out, there's water on the lawn, 

	

8 	there's water on the ground, there's water in the 

	

9 	shudders; the idea is they do actually have to prove 

	

10 	the ground was dry the day before and there's water 

	

11 	on the lawn and water on the shutters. 

	

12 	 It's not saying you can't rely on 

	

13 	circumstantial evidence. You can't rely on the fact 

	

14 	that there's water to reach the conclusion. It's 

	

15 	not saying that. It's simply saying they do 

	

16 	actually have to -- they can't just say there was 

	

17 	water without proving there was water. There needs 

	

18 	to be the proof of that. And that's an accurate 

	

19 	statement of the law of circumstantial evidence, 

	

20 	Your Honor. 

	

21 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, just saying 

	

22 	that there was water would not be circumstantial 

	

23 	evidence. But the ground being wet, or something 

	

24 	like that and you didn't see the rain or something 

	

25 	like that, that would be circumstantial evidence. 
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1 	But the law makes no distinction between direct 

	

2 	evidence and circumstantial evidence and the weight 

	

3 	to be given. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Now you're repeating yourself, 

	

5 	Mr. cooper. 

	

6 	 MR. COOPER: But it just -- that's 

	

7 	basically it's just -- that's basically what she's 

	

8 	saying is that, well, they have to actually prove by 

	

9 	direct evidence that the ground was wet at one point 

	

10 	before they can use the circumstantial evidence to 

	

11 	prove that it was raining. I mean, it's going back 

	

12 	and forth. 

	

13 	 But essentially, they're saying that you've 

	

14 	got to do all this direct evidence stuff before 

	

15 	can even get to the circumstantial evidence. And 

	

16 	that's not what the correct statement of the law is. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Anything else, for the record, 

	

18 	ms. Hojjat? 

	

19 	 ms. HOJJAT: 	I'll submit it, Your Honor. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. And, you know, we'll see 

	

21 	timing wise, I am a little sensitive to the time. 

	

22 	It's not going to -- you're not going to win because 

	

23 	you're the last one who speaks. And this is the 

	

24 	whole point is just to make the record. I've 

	

25 	already pretty much got an idea of what x want to do 
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1 	with these instructions. So I'm happy to hear some 

	

2 	argument. 

	

3 	 But let's just keep it to, like you said, 

	

4 	this is the California version. YOU don't believe 

	

5 	it's an incorrect statement. Mr. cooper indicates 

	

6 	he believes it is incorrect statement. The court 

	

7 	has indicated I believe it is a fair statement of 

	

8 	what you the law is. However, the court does -- it 

	

9 	is my typical process to follow what the stock 

	

10 	instructions are and only to change the stock 

	

11 	instructions or add to the stock instructions if 

	

12 	feel that is necessary, because the stock 

	

13 	instructions themselves are not complete and do not 

	

14 	properly instruct on the law in Nevada. 

	

15 	 I believe our stock instruction with regard 

	

16 	to circumstantial evidence and what is proposed by 

	

17 	the state, specifically on their page number 8, 

	

18 	which then goes into further details in terms of how 

	

19 	to weigh the evidence and what may be weighed and 

	

20 	how to look at evidence is sufficient to instruct 

	

21 	the jury. And I do not believe that this additional 

	

22 	clarification on what is circumstantial evidence 

	

23 	needs to be given at this time. 

	

24 	 Although, I think your example was a good 

	

25 	one, personally. But I do not believe this 
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1 	instruction is necessary and that the instruction 

	

2 	that we have, the state's Proposed, page number 8 is 

	

3 	sufficient. 

	

4 	 You have, and it was somewhat repeated. 

	

5 	Hold on a second. Let me just make my note. You 

	

6 	had a second -- another instruction, I should say, 

	

7 	on page 6, which incorporates some of the same 

	

8 	information on which you had proposed on your 

	

9 	page 5. But this is a specific statement with 

	

10 	regard to evidence being susceptible to two 

	

11 	interpretations, one pointed to guilt, one point
ing 

	

12 	to innocence. 

	

13 	 I do, by the way, make all changes to 

	

14 	instructions so we don't use the word "innocence.
" 

	

15 	we use the words "defendant guilty" or "defend
ant 

	

16 	not guilty." I did note that the state's Propos
ed 

	

17 	does do that already, but I will always make a
ny 

	

18 	adjustments to remove that language. But th
at it is 

	

19 	your duty to adopt the interpretation which po
ints 

	

20 	to defendant's not being guilty. 

	

21 	 Again, we already have some instructions 

	

22 	that touch upon this, but let's hear your ar
gument 

	

23 	for the basis for this. 

	

24 	 MS. HOnAT: And, Your Honor, my argument 

	

25 	is this is presumption of innocence instructio
n. 
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1 	This goes to the heart of what presumption of 

	

2 	innocence is, is the idea that you have to assume 

	

3 	he's not guilty unless they prove beyond a 

	

4 	reasonable doubt otherwise. And they need to 

	

5 	actually prove beyond a reasonable doubt. YOU can't 

	

6 	just guess him to guilt essentially. 

If there's a fact that's in contention and 

	

8 	you don't know one away or the other, the 

	

9 	presumption of innocence trumps. The presumption of 

	

10 	innocence must trump if the jury is unclear and 

	

11 	going, "I don't know, it could be this, or it could 

	

12 	be this." one points to guilt; one points to 

	

13 	innocence. 

	

14 	 so I think this instruction is very on 

	

15 	point for the presumption of innocence. Nevada does 

	

16 	not have a stock instruction for the presumption of 

	

17 	innocence. The Nevada Supreme court has held that 

	

18 	this is an accurate statement of the law. They've 

	

19 	held that multiple times. 

	

20 	 And they have also said that -- i know it's 

	

21 	not usually offered as a presumption of innocence 

	

22 	instruction, which is why I included the "Crawford" 

	

23 	cite, because we are proffering it as a presumption 

	

24 	of innocence instruction. There is no presumption 

	

25 	of innocence instruction currently proffered by the 
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1 	State at all, and we believe we're entitled to a 

	

2 	presumption of innocence instruction. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: M. Cooper. 

mR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I think it is 

	

5 	somewhat duplicative. I thought there was an 

instruction i had that talks about that the 

	

7 	defendant is presumed innocent unless he's proven 

	

8 	guilty. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: well, we have the reasonable 

	

10 	doubt instruction, and we have a few others that go 

	

11 	to, I call it the "bad act instruction." But it's 

	

12 	the one that says where if you, you know, received 

	

13 	evidence that might indicate, you know, something 

	

14 	else, you're not to determine that here. 

	

15 	 And then of course we have the "You're here 

	

16 	to determine if the defendant is guilty or not 

	

17 	guilty from the evidence, not a verdict of guilt or 

	

18 	innocence as to anyone else." so we've got two or 

	

19 	three that sort of touch upon this, but I don't 

	

20 	think we have any that would go squarely to 

	

21 	presumption of innocence. 

	

22 	 Again, that's not part of Nevada stock 

	

23 	instructions. It would be an addition. We do have 

	

24 	the reasonable doubt instruction though, which is on 

	

25 	State's page 6, which is that the defendant is 
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I 	presumed innocent unless the contrary is proved, and 

	

2 	that places the burden of proving beyond a 

	

3 	reasonable doubt every material element, but it does 

4 	not go into this discussion. 

	

5 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I think that 

	

6 	is sufficient in order to let the jury know exactly 

	

7 	what the law is. But I mean, that's basically the 

	

8 	only argument I have. 

	

9 	 MS. HOJJAT: And , i'm sorry. 	If I could 

	

10 	just supplement just a little bit. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Go ahead, ms. Hojjat. That's 

	

12 	fine. 

	

13 	 MS. HOJJAT: I forgot to say something. 

	

14 	 Essentially, the reason that it's our 

	

15 	position we're actually entitled an instruction on 

	

16 	presumption of innocence is the same reason we don't 

	

17 	just say the state has to prove beyond a reasonable 

	

18 	doubt, period, end of sentence, that's the 

	

19 	instruction. The State gets elaboration on what is 

	

20 	beyond a reasonable doubt. It's not a doubt that, 

	

21 	you know, is mere speculation. It's a doubt based 

	

22 	in reason. 

	

23 	 The idea, and what the Court says in 

	

24 	"crawford," we don't expect jurors to be legal 

	

25 	scholars; we don't expect just a sentence to explain 
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1 	to them what's going on; and when we don't expect 

2 	that for the state has to prove it beyond a 

3 	reasonable doubt, we also shouldn't be expecting it 

4 	on the defendant is presumed innocence. 

5 	 The idea of the presumption of innocence is 

6 	engrained in us because we do this every day. But 

7 	for jurors, it doesn't necessarily connect that, 

8 	"Oh, if I'm confused about a fact, I need to presume 

9 	him innocence." That connection isn't made, and so 

10 	we want an instruction to make that connection. 

11 	 THE COURT: well, at the risk of this 

12 	potentially being something that would be 

13 	irreversible error, I have not yet determined to 

14 	give this instruction. I had some concerns about 

15 	the way that it was worded, but my overall 

16 	determination is that the presumption of innocence, 

17 	as it's stated in the reasonable doubt instruction 

18 	and the remainder of the reasonable doubt 

19 	instruction is sufficient to meet the needs of the 

20 	jury in understanding what their burden is. 

21 	 we've already had any number of 

22 	discussions, prior to the beginning of the trial, 

23 	with the general instructions given then. But of 

24 	course, these are the primary instructions that they 

25 	are going to rely on. And I have gone back and 
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1 	forth in my mind whether or not we needed to add and 

	

2 	should add to the court's, essentially to the 

	

3 	court's stock instructions, a presumption of 

	

4 	innocence instruction. 

	

5 	 And I have ultimately determined that the 

	

6 	reasonable doubt instruction, as the stock is 

	

7 	worded, is sufficient. But again, this is an area 

	

8 	where I hope, at some point, we will have some 

	

9 	change perhaps in the stocks, if that's what our 

	

10 	supreme court or what is determined to be the case. 

	

11 	But I am not going to give this instruction for 

	

12 	those reasons stated. 

	

13 	 Now we get into, I think -- 

	

14 	 MS. Ho3JAT: The defense special 

	

15 	instructions. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: The defense specials. And, 

	

17 	excuse me. And let's start with page 7, since we're 

	

18 	keeping in the order, and I think that's makes the 

	

19 	record cleaner that -- and we've had this 

	

20 	discussion. Lifetime supervision begins after any 

	

21 	period of probation or term of imprisonment has 

	

22 	ended, and it gives specific years in which the 

	

23 	defendant was on lifetime supervision, therefor, not 

	

24 	on parole and probation. 

	

25 	 There's a lot going on in this proposed 
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1 	instruction, and I guess I was trying to get in your 

	

2 	head to try to figure out what you were trying to 

	

3 	achieve with it. I don't think it's necessarily a 

	

4 	misstatement of the facts of this case. But I'm not 

	

5 	quite sure what it does to aid and assist the jury 

	

6 	as far as it being the law that they need to have. 

	

7 	So maybe you could help me understand. 

	

8 	 ms. HOJJAT: And I apologize, Your Honor, 

	

9 	i just saw a typo in it that I didn't see before. 

	

10 	The beginning "in," I would not have. So it would 

	

11 	just be "The defendant in this case was on lifetime 

	

12 	supervision in 2012 or 2013." 

	

13 	 The reason for this specific instruction, 

	

14 	it is an accurate statement of the 'law. Lifetime 

	

15 	supervision is not probation and parole. i think 

	

16 	that's been blurred a little bit for the jury, 

	

17 	particularly when officer Mangan got up there. 

	

18 	"Basically the same thing; it's basically the same 

	

19 	thing." She said that several times. It's been a
 

	

20 	little bit blurred for the jury about whether this 

	

21 	is probation and parole or whether this is lifetime 

	

22 	supervision. 

	

23 	 I'm going to have further instructions 

	

24 	about lifetime supervision, and that's why I think 

	

25 	this -- and I understand we're going in order, and 
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1 	so it kind of -- 

	

2 
	

THE COURT: It just seems to be more of 

	

3 	a -- 

	

4 	 ms. HOJJAT: They're all kind of connected 

	

5 	together, and it's really -- it's the other 

	

6 	instructions are going to be -- if those are given, 

	

7 	this one will clarify for the jury we're talking 

	

8 	about lifetime supervision. we're not talking about 

	

9 	probation and parole. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Yeah, and I think that, you 

	

11 	know, we have to be clear; and I think they are, at 

	

12 	this point, should be clear that we are talking 

	

13 	about lifetime supervision. The first part of the 

	

14 	instruction is, you know, how it -- when it begins 

	

15 	and ends. Fair enough. But I guess if there was 

	

16 	some argument that there was a time frame in which 

	

17 	he wasn't under it, that he was being accused of 

	

18 	violating it, then there would see the relevance to 

	

19 	that instruction on the law. 

	

20 	 And I don't typically instruct on facts, 

	

21 	which I think the remainder of this instruction are 

	

22 	simply facts. But I guess I'm still not clear on 

	

23 	how it aids and assists the jury in what they need 

	

24 	to do. But as you said, perhaps because of the way 

	

25 	it ties into the others. I didn't get that, but 
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1 	maybe we'll table this one for now and come back to 

2 	t. 

3 	 Mr. cooper, did you have anything you 

4 	wanted to add to this? 

	

5 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, I mean, basically 

6 	I was just going to say the same thing -- 

	

7 	 THE REPORTER: 	I'm sorry. Counsel, could 

	

8 	you just slow down just a tad. Thank you. 

	

9 	 MR. COOPER: I don't understand how it 

	

10 	would benefit the jury with this instruction. 

	

11 	mean, I don't think there was ever an issue that 

	

12 	came into play where there was a question of whether 

	

13 	or not he was on parole or whether or not he was in 

	

14 	prison or on probation or on lifetime supervision. 

	

15 	If that was the situation, then this instruction 

	

16 	would be an accurate statement of the law and would 

	

17 	be, I think, needed. 	But that didn't happen in this 

	

18 	case. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: okay. Let's move on to the 

	

20 	remainder of the specials, and I don't know if this 

	

21 	is the appropriate time in which you want to sort of 

	

22 	make the argument that's set forth in your memo -- 

	

23 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: -- about the, sort of the 

	

25 	remainder of these. 
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1 	 MS. HOJJAT: 	Yes. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: And then we can sort of, 

	

3 	think, go from there to see how we -- 

	

4 	 ms. HOJJAT: And I filed the memo in part, 

	

5 	or I submitted the memo and filed it in part just 

	

6 	because i don't want to stand here and argue for 

	

7 	45 minutes -- 

	

8 	 THE COURT: No, no. 

	

9 	 MS. HO)JAT: 	to the Court. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: I wish we had the time for me 

	

11 	to get everything done and do that. 

	

12 	 MS. HOJJAT: I'm not going to be repeating 

	

13 	the arguments that I already said in here, but i am 

	

14 	going to expand just a little bit on the fact that 

	

15 	the Nevada Supreme Court has been very, very clear; 

	

16 	and the united States Supreme court has been very 

	

17 	very clear: we look at the plain language of the 

	

18 	statute first. we don't start reading things into 

	

19 	it unless there's a problem with the plain language. 

	

20 	 And by "problem," it's not, well, P & P 

	

21 	thinks they should have more rights or more control 

	

22 	and they don't have more control; it's on its face, 

	

23 	does this statute make sense if we just read it; 

	

24 	does it lay out what's a crime; does it lay out what 

	

25 	the punishment is? And is that it, are we concluded 
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1 	there? Is there vagueness; is there overbreadth? 

	

2 	 If there's no vagueness and there's no 

	

3 	overbreadth and the statute clearly lays out what 

	

4 	the crime is, what the punishment is, we don't go 

	

5 	any further. That's the first definite step. In 

	

6 	this case, that is met in NRS 213.1243. There is no 

	

7 	vagueness, and there is no overbreadth. There is no 

	

8 	question in NRS 213.1243. It says -- it lays out 

	

9 	precisely what violations of lifetime supervision 

	

10 	are. 

	

11 
	

It even lays out: These are the 

	

12 
	

requirements that are mandatory, and these are the 

	

13 
	

requirements that were -- you know, they can choose 

	

14 
	

to do electronic monitoring, if they want to. we're 

	

15 	not making that one mandatory. we've got the 

	

16 	permissive requirements; we've got the mandatory 

	

17 	requirements. We have absolutely no catchall. 

	

18 	There isn't any statement that says, "P & P may, a
t 

	

19 	its -- the department may, at its discretion, add 

	

20 	more requirements." 

	

21 	 The department may -- 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Did you look at the Nevada 

	

23 	Administrative Code that corresponds to this statute 

	

24 	to see if there's any catchall there? 

	

25 	 Ms. HOJ3AT: I was not able to locate that. 
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1 	 Did the Court? 

	

2 	 THE COURT: I did. 

	

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: And I do believe that there is 

	

5 	language that pertains to the argument. It's -- and 

	

6 	I can give you a copy, if you wish. But I just 

	

7 	wanted to see if you were going to tie that into 

	

8 	your argument at all. Let me -- when I was looking 

	

9 	at the statute, because I really wanted 

	

10 	to -- this is the first trial that I've had where 

	

11 	this has been the charge. 

	

12 	 I've certainly had these issues come up 

	

13 	generally in other means and circumstances. But 

	

14 	went and I looked at the NRS, of course, 213.1243 

	

15 	under which the defendant is charged and then the 

	

16 	reference indicating -- and I'm trying to put my 

	

17 	hands on it now where I put my statute. It opens 

	

18 	up, obviously, initially with, "The board shall 

	

19 	establish by regulation a program of lifetime 

	

20 	supervision." 

	

21 	 And in seeing that reference, then it 

	

22 	occurred to me that the Nevada Administrative code, 

	

23 	which is where any regulations that are established 

	

24 	by any governmental entity would be included, would 

	

25 	have something. And I found a Nevada Administrative 
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1 	Code 213.290, and the title of that code provision 

	

2 	is "Notification, Report, Hearing, Request to Modify 

	

3 	Conditions," and then in parentheses, it has 

	

4 	NRS 213.1243 as its corresponding reference. 

	

5 	 And when you get down into Subsection -- 

	

6 	well, there' s -- there' s four subsections. But it 

	

7 	does reference that the, in subsection 3, once the 

	

8 	notifications, which are what are determined and how 

	

9 	they' re completed in Sections 1 and 2 when you have 

	

10 	someone who' s coming off of probation or coming off 

	

11 	of parole who is subject to this special sentence of 

	

12 	lifetime  supervision, it then di rects the board to 

	

13 	make a determination 	And it says specifically, 

	

14 	"Establish the conditions of lifetime supervision 

	

15 	for the sex offender." 

	

16 	 And then it goes on to talk about how that 

	

17 	determination would be made, and then it goes on 

	

18 	further in Section 4 to say, "At least 30 days 

	

19 	before the date on which the hearing is scheduled to 

	

20 	make that determination, the division shall provide 

	

21 	the board a report of the status of the sex offender 

	

22 	who is the subject of the hearing. The report would 

	

23 	include, without limitation, summary of progress. 

	

24 	And then it will go on recommendations for condition 

	

25 	of lifetime  supervision." 
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1 	 I mean, there's numerous references in this 

	

2 	Nevada Administrative code. i wouldn't call it a 

	

3 	catchall. i understand when you say "catchall," 

	

4 	what you mean because, as you said, we have other 

	

5 	statutes that are perhaps analogous where it kind of 

	

6 	says, "oh, and by the way, parole and probation can 

	

7 	also add it, whatever it needs to add," and this 

	

8 	doesn't include this. 

	

9 	 However, in the Nevada Administrative code, 

	

10 	it does give the board, who ultimately is the one 

	

11 	that signs off on these conditions of lifetime 

	

12 	supervision, the authority to determine what those 

	

13 	conditions should be based on who the offender is 

	

14 	and what the offender's progress has been with 

	

15 	regard to their -- and as it's specifically stated, 

	

16 	"Progress of the sex offender while on parole and 

	

17 	probation or an institution or facility of the 

	

18 	department, as applicable." 

	

19 	 ms. HOJJAT: And if I can respond to that. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Please. 

	

21 
	

MS. HOJJAT: I may be misunderstanding the 

	

22 	process at that point. But my understanding is the 

	

23 	Nevada Administrative code, that's the board is 

	

24 	establishing that. That's not the legislature 

	

25 	that's doing the Nevada Administrative code. 
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1 	 i could be mistaken if the Court -- 

	

2 	 THE COURT: No. The legislature -- it's 

	

3 	the legislature has committees that ultimately 

	

4 	determine, and basically what happens is in 

	

5 	odd-number years, you have the legislature meet to 

	

6 	pass statutes; and in the even-numbered years, you 

	

7 	have the legislature and these boards and 

	

8 	commissions meet, and then it gets put into the 

	

9 	code. 

	

10 	 MS. HOJJAT: Right. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: And so there's a lot of us in 

	

12 	committees and whatnot, and it is ultimately a 

	

13 	regulation that is adopted by the entity that's 

	

14 	charged by the statute, but it's still the law. 

	

15 	It's not the legislature. 

	

16 	 And I'm not going to interrupt you further 

	

17 	to make your argument that the legislature has to 

	

18 	set forth the law. what the legislature does is it 

	

19 	empowers the agencies that are to carry out the law, 

	

20 	to interpret the law in the way that they need to 

	

21 	carry it out, and then the board or commissioner, 

	

22 	whomever, then goes and does those regs; and those 

	

23 	things taken together are, in fact, the law. 

	

24 	 And what the legislature has empowered the 

	

25 	board to do is to establish a program of lifetime 
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1 	supervision. And what the board then has done, 

	

2 	through the regulation, is has determined that it 

	

3 	will set forth what those conditions of lifetime 

	

4 	supervision are. so i believe that the fair reading 

	

5 	of the statute and the regs together is that there 

	

6 	are additional conditions allowed to be established 

	

7 	for lifetime supervision by the board, pursuant to 

	

8 	the legislature's grant of authority and that that 

	

9 	is accomplished and that is what we see in the 

	

10 	lifetime supervision agreement. 

	

11 	 But that's --I just kind of cut you at 

	

12 	that point because I wanted to give you that insight 

	

13 	in case that had not been taken into account in your 

	

14 	memo, but I certainly want to allow you to complete 

	

15 	your record as far as your memo. 

	

16 	 MS. HOJJAT: NO, and I appreciate the 

	

17 	insight into where the court's concerns lie. 

	

18 	try to address them. Essentially, I understand what 

	

19 	the Court is saying it's, the legislature is 

	

20 	essentially giving the board permission to establish 

	

21 	program of lifetime supervision. we're not 

	

22 	disagreeing that they're to set up the program. 

	

23 	 But the idea of the statute, there's 

	

24 	nothing in here -- again, I would submit to the 

	

25 	Court, were the intention should be: Board, you can 
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1 	set up a program and you can make whatever rules you 

	

2 	want; they would have put in here, "And you can make 

	

3 	whatever rules you want." They said you can set up 

	

4 	a program, but essentially the board has given the 

	

5 	board power is what we have in this situation. 

	

6 	 That's great that the board decided to read 

	

7 	NRS 213.1243 and say, "This means that we get to 

	

8 	decide whatever the right for -- whatever rules we 

	

9 	want for lifetime supervision," but that's not what 

	

10 	the statute says. The statute only says, "we want 

	

11 	you to be monitoring the program. YOU guys set up 

	

12 	the program." 

	

13 	 And the reason for that, it's logical is 

	

14 	because P & P has the resources. They're the 

	

15 	organization with the best resources for doing 

	

16 	things like electronic monitoring, because that's 

	

17 	what they're doing already is electronic monitoring, 

	

18 	things like that. But, again, we've got a statute 

	

19 	that, on its face, is not granting this power. 

	

20 	 i would argue to the court, if the Court is 

	

21 	going to find that this power granting is occurring, 

	

22 	now we've got a problem of a separation of powers, 

	

23 	and we've got a problem with vagueness and 

	

24 	overbreadth in the statute. And I'd move to strike 

	

25 	the statute as being unconstitutional for those 
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1 	reasons because it's inappropriate for the 

	

2 	legislature to sit back and say, "You make the 

3 	rules, you decide what's a crime. we're letting the 

4 	executive branch do this now." 

	

5 	 The board is definitely a member of the 

6 	executive branch, and the separation of powers 

	

7 	doctrine is very clear from the united states 

	

8 	constitution. while the legislature can say things 

	

9 	like, "we're giving this organization the power to 

	

10 	do these things," they certainly can't give the 

	

11 	organization the power to set laws. That's a power 

	

12 	granted only to the legislature, and the courts have 

	

13 	been very clear on that issue. Boards don't get to 

	

14 	set laws. Boards don't get to say something -- 

	

15 	 THE COURT: 1 just make sure that 

	

16 	understand your argument. so your argument is that 

	

17 	unless, whatever the activity is is a violation of 

	

18 	the statute and not anything outside of the statute, 

	

19 	then it can't support the crime charged. 

	

20 	 The subsection 8 to NRS 213.1243 says 

	

21 	obviously, "Except as otherwise provided in 

	

22 	subsection 7," which would not be applicable; that's 

	

23 	the removal of the electronic monitoring device -- 

	

24 	"a sex offender who commits a violation of a 

	

25 	condition imposed upon him -- imposed on him or her 
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1 	pursuant to the program of lifetime supervision is 

	

2 	guilty of a Category B felony." 

	

3 	 Now, that language tracks right back up to 

	

4 	subsection 1: 	"The board shall establish, by 

	

5 	regulation, a program of lifetime supervision." 

	

6 	 MS. H033AT: 	Right. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: so the statute, the legislature 

	

8 	has then seen fit -- 

	

9 	 ms. HOJJAT: 	Right. 

	

10 
	

THE COURT: 	to authorize the board to 

	

11 	establish a program of lifetime supervision. And 

	

12 	down in section 8, it says, "You violate the 

	

13 	condition imposed upon him from the program of 

	

14 	lifetime supervision," that's the guilty. But 

	

15 	you're still arguing that, unless it is literally 

	

16 	set forth in the four corners of NRS 213.1243, it 

	

17 	cannot constitute a violation of law. 

	

18 	 Is that what you're arguing? 

	

19 	 ms. NC:03AT: That is my argument. And the 

	

20 	reason for that argument, Your Honor, is yes, the 

	

21 	board has the ability to set up: we're going to 

	

22 	have an office; we're going to have P & P officers 

	

23 	specifically dedicated to lifetime supervision. 

	

24 	You're a sergeant; you're an officer. That's a 

	

25 	program of lifetime supervision. conditions of 
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1 	lifetime supervision are different. 

	

2 	 There's nothing in here that says the board 

	

3 	has the authorization to establish the conditions of 

4 	lifetime supervision, and it says specifically a 

	

5 	violation of a condition of lifetime supervision is 

	

6 	what creates the crime. And, again, my argument 

	

7 	would be weaker if there wasn't a whole host of 

	

8 	conditions laid out in this statute, but the statute 

	

9 	has so many conditions that they've laid out 

	

10 	themselves. There is a maxim of law that we 

	

11 	presume that the legislature took into consideration 

	

12 	and rejected what is not contained in the four 

	

13 	corners of a -- of a document, of a statute. 

	

14 	 And that's something that the Nevada 

	

15 	supreme Court has spoken about, been cited to in 

	

16 	making their decisions, we don't assume, well, they 

	

17 	just forgot to put the catchall in there. we assume 

	

18 	they thought about it and rejected it. That is the 

	

19 	maxim of law, particularly in the state of Nevada 

	

20 	because the Nevada supreme court, and Justice 

	

21 	Douglas in particular, has cited to this in opinions 

	

22 	and oral arguments. 

	

23 	 so we can't presume, well, they intended 

	

24 	for the board to set the conditions, they just 

	

25 	forgot to write it down here. They've given the 
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1 	board the jurisdiction to establish a program. But 

	

2 	the word "program," we're talking about essentially 

	

3 	an organization. They needed -- they have a unit. 

4 	They have a sex offender unit; they have a sex 

	

5 	offender lifetime supervision officer. 

6 	 They have -- it's different than now you 

	

7 	get to make the rules. They're not saying now you 

	

8 	get to make the rules. They're saying now you get 

	

9 	to set up the process, the program. And so my 

	

10 	argument to the court is, had they intended for the 

	

11 	conditions to also be determined, they would have 

	

12 	either put a catchall in here, or they would have 

	

13 	put those conditions in here. 

	

14 	 And I want to draw the Court's attention - 

	

15 	I didn't include this in my memo -- but I'd like to 

	

16 	draw the court's attention to NRS 213.1245 -- I'm 

	

17 	sorry. 	.1245 and .1255. 	I don't think I have -- 

	

18 	oh, I've got .1245 here, but not 1255, which 

	

19 	expressly outlines the conditions of parole for 

	

20 	sex offenders and does enumerate these conditions. 

	

21 	 If the legislature's intention was just the 

	

22 	board gets to decide everything, we've allowed them 

	

23 	to set up a program, we don't enumerate conditions, 

	

24 	then they wouldn't have enumerated the conditions in 

	

25 	the other statute. 
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1 	 And if I can approach with that statute, 

	

2 	Your Honor. 

3 	 THE COURT: That's fine. 

4 	 MS. HOIJAT: Thank you. And I have a copy 

	

5 	for the District Attorney as well. 

6 
	

MR. COOPER: I have it right now. 

	

7 
	

MS. HO.JJAT: 	Okay. 

	

8 
	

THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

9 
	

Ms. HOIJAT: So we don't have a situation 

	

10 
	

here where the legislature is just -- ah, we don't 

	

11 
	

put conditions in our statutes. we let P & P deal 

	

12 
	

with it. They expressly put conditions in this 

	

13 
	

statute because these are conditions for parole. 

	

14 
	

Arguably, the parole board has even greater leniency 

	

15 
	

in deciding parole conditions because, again, that 

	

16 
	

person is under a sentence of imprisonment. This is 

	

17 
	

just a benefit that's been granted. 

	

18 
	

The legislature feels that it's so 

	

19 
	

important to enumerate these conditions and the 

	

20 
	

parole statute, for us to say, "But you know what, 

	

21 
	

they just decided to leave it out of the lifetime 

	

22 
	supervision statute." You've got one individual 

	

23 
	who's under a sentence of imprisonment, been granted 

	

24 
	a boon and is just being supervised on that boon. 

	

25 
	

You've got another individual who's maxed out their 
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1 	sentence of imprisonment. Technically, they have 

	

2 	their constitutional rights returned but for the 

3 	rights that felons are denied. 

4 	 so arguably, if either -- if one of these 

	

5 	two statutes should be more specific in the 

6 	conditions, it should be the statute that governs 

7 	the people whose constitutional rights are being 

	

8 	restored. TO say that the legislature feels the 

	

9 	need to enumerate in such detail the conditions of 

	

10 	the person who's still under the sentence of 

	

11 	imprisonment, but then just, ah, board can do 

	

12 	whatever they want on the person whose 

	

13 	constitutional rights are restored, it wouldn't 

	

14 	be --I mean, I would argue that these two statutes 

	

15 	don't -- wouldn't make sense together when read 

	

16 	together that way. 

	

17 	 Additionally, to which, again, we don't 

	

18 	assume that the legislature just forgot stuff. we 

	

19 	assume they thought about it and put it aside, if 

	

20 	it's in not in the plain language. It's not in the 

	

21 	plain language here. And they really do impose 

	

22 	conditions. section 3, "Except as otherwise 

	

23 	provided in subsection 9, the board" - 

	

24 	 THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, counsel, please. 

	

25 	 Ms. HOJJAT: I apologize. 
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1 	 Section 3, "Except as otherwise provided in 

	

2 	Subsection 9, the board shall require as a condition 

	

3 	of lifetime supervision." They are laying out their 

	

4 	conditions in the statute, Your Honor. When they're
 

	

5 	talking -- 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Well, it goes on specifically 

	

7 	to talk about the location, the residence. I mean, 

	

8 	that just goes to residence -- 

	

9 	 ms. HOJJAT: 	Right. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: -- because then four has 

	

11 	another aspect of a condition down to the seven 

	

12 	which talks about electronic monitoring. 

	

13 	 Ms. HOJJAT: And that's my point is that 

	

14 	when they're talking about Subsection 8, which 

	

15 	Your Honor mentioned earlier, "Except as otherwise 

	

16 	provided, a sex offender who commits a violation 
of 

	

17 	a condition imposed," they're talking about the
ir 

	

18 	own conditions. They've defined everything 
they've 

	

19 	put down as a condition. They're saying you vi
olate 

	

20 	one of the things we've enumerated, you're gu
ilty of 

	

21 	a Category B felony, but they've enumerated the
ir 

	

22 	own conditions. 

	

23 	 They've enumerated -- and not just we were 

	

24 	enumerating mandatory conditions; they've num
erated 

	

25 	both mandatory and permissive conditions for 
P & P 
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1 	to impose. For us to think that here, they intended 

	

2 	for P & P to be able to add all this other stuff and 

	

3 	just forgot to mention it, but here in 12.45, they 

4 	specifically go into all of these requirements. 

5 	These two statutes can't be read together with that 

6 	interpretation. I would argue that it's -- they 

7 	don't work together that way. 

	

8 	 And as a followup argument, if the Court is 

	

9 	not going to accept that, then I would move to 

	

10 	strike NRS 213.1243 as being unconstitutionally 

	

11 	vague, overbroad, and a violation of the separation 

	

12 	of Powers Doctrine. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: okay. I'm going to, just for 

	

14 	our record as complete, I'm going to deny the motion 

	

15 	to find that the statute and the regulations are 

	

16 	unconstitutional, but I'll have that in the record. 

	

17 	There, i don't find that it is vague or overbroad. 

	

18 	If they were rated on the bases upon which you just 

	

19 	asserted, I apologize. 

	

20 	 Obviously, at some point in time, if there 

	

21 	is to ultimately be that challenge, that may be 

	

22 	something that would be addressed on appeal. That 

	

23 	may be something that may be addressed by motion 

	

24 	practice. But the Court, at this time -- I see the 

	

25 	distinction that you are drawing between the two 
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1 	statutes, but the basic tenet of statutory 

	

2 	construction and the basic allowance for the 

3 	legislature to authorize entities to do things and 

4 	then allow those entities to proceed by regs to 

	

5 	complete those processes, i don't find that what 

6 	see here would violate that basic tenet of how our 

	

7 	laws are constructed. 

8 	 i mean by analogy, maybe this works; maybe 

	

9 	it doesn't. But you kind of -- you have good 

	

10 	hypotheticals and good analogies. so let me try 

	

11 	back at you. If you go to look at the statutes that 

	

12 	talk about having a driver's license, it basically 

	

13 	just says the DMV issues a driver's license. It 

	

14 	doesn't go into any details about what has to be in 

	

15 	that driver's license, how you put things in the 

	

16 	driver's license, how you qualify for certain 

	

17 	things. 

	

18 	 i have some familiarity with this just 

	

19 	because I've worked on some legislation involving 

	

20 	those individuals who are transgender and they're 

	

21 	changing of their gender marker and what's entailed 

	

22 	with that and how that works. And all of that is 

	

23 	dictated to by the DMV in their regulatory process 

	

24 	because they've been empowered to issue driver's 

	

25 	licenses. 	Everything else is in the regs and by 
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1 	their own determination on how they see fit to carry 

	

2 	out their duties. 

3 	 I find this somewhat analogous. YOU have a 

4 	situation where, you know, the statutes have 

	

5 	determined that for parole, for probation, there are 

6 	certain requirements; there are certain things, and 

	

7 	then they give additional requirements that have 

	

8 	been added obviously at some point more recently in 

	

9 	history. If it's a sex offense, certain conditions 

	

10 	for probation. 

	

11 	 when it comes to the lifetime supervision 

	

12 	special sentence, which comes into play after the 

	

13 	completion of probation and parole, for the 

	

14 	legislature to delegate to the board, you determine 

	

15 	what that program is; here are certain things that 

	

16 	we want, but you ultimately determine what that 

	

17 	program is, and then the board to go on and 

	

18 	determine what that program is. 

	

19 	 And let me be perfectly clear. All of 

	

20 	these 1 through 21 that you see on the lifetime 

	

21 	agreement is not included in the NAC either. It's 

	

22 	not in the Nevada Administrative code either. There 

	

23 	are some references to it 	But ultimately the 

	

24 	acknowledgment and the recognition and the receipt 

	

25 	of the authorization to develop this program, 
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1 	believe is what is carried out here. And I do not 

	

2 	find that it is unconditionally vague or 

	

3 	unconstitutional in any way. 

	

4 	 I just want to complete that record. But 

	

5 	appreciate the opportunity to have this discussion 

	

6 	today and have this argument. I think that there 

	

7 	has been a lot of development of the law of lifetime 

	

8 	supervision, and I think it will probably continue 

	

9 	to develop. And I don't know, perhaps maybe that 

	

10 	will be one of the ways in which it continues to 

	

11 	develop. I'm not making that call today. 

	

12 	 MS. HO)JAT: And I apologize. If the 

	

13 	court's ruling on all of them, the third thing that 

	

14 	i had raised was the separation of powers issue. 

	

15 	And just on that, just addressing the Court's 

	

16 	hypothetical -- 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Right. 

	

18 	 MS. HOJJAT: And I'm not trying to argue 

	

19 	with the Court. I'm just trying to complete my 

	

20 	record. 	I'm sorry. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: No, I appreciate it. And, 

	

22 	again, on that basis as well, I did -- 

	

23 	 Ms. HOJJAT: Yeah, yeah. 

	

24 
	

THE COURT: -- on the vague, overbroad. 

	

25 	 MS.. HOJJAT: And -- 

487 



90 

1 
	

THE COURT: -- separation of powers. 

	

2 
	

THE REPORTER: Excuse me. I'm sorry. When 

	

3 	the judge is talking .. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: we're both talking over each 

	

5 	other, and that's my fault too. 

6 	 MS. HOJJAT: And on the separation of 

	

7 	powers issue, the only distinction I draw with th
e 

	

8 	DMv example was, to make my separation of powers 

	

9 	record, would be that the DMV is not determining 

	

10 	what's a crime, and that's where the separation of 

	

11 	powers issue doesn't arise is that that is an 

	

12 	administrative agency putting together a proce
ss, 

	

13 	but it's not, at the end of it, they're not sayin
g: 

	

14 	All right, it's administrative agency. YOU get to 

	

15 	put together whatever process you want and its a
 

	

16 	crime if individuals don't follow it exactly the 
way 

	

17 	you say. That's where the separation of power
s 

	

18 	issues comes in. 

	

19 	 It's one thing to delegate to other 

	

20 	agencies the power to take care of administrat
ive 

	

21 	things. It's another to delegate to them t
he power 

	

22 	to make actions crimes. And so we'd argue that i
t's 

	

23 	a separation of powers issue. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. And your argument is 

	

25 	noted, and it's a compelling argument. I'm not 
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1 	going ultimately find it persuasive today, but 

	

2 	appreciate that. And so in light of that 

	

3 	discussion, I don't know if you have more that you 

4 	want to highlight from your memo again, we also 

	

5 	have it in the record now. 

	

6 	 Ms. HOJJAT: 	No, Your Honor. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: In light of that discussion, it 

	

8 	is the court's intention to predominantly proceed 

	

9 	with the jury instructions as proposed by the state. 

	

10 	The reason I say "predominantly" though is because 

	

11 	mean, there are certainly some instructions that you 

	

12 	have proposed that are not incorrect statements of 

	

13 	the law. 

	

14 	 But I think the way you have constructed 

	

15 	them, and your intent behind them was to instruct 

	

16 	the jury these are the only conditions, and 

	

17 	therefor, only the violations of these conditions 

	

18 	can sustain this charge and that only if they prove 

	

19 	beyond a reasonable doubt those violations can they 

	

20 	prevail. 

	

21 	 I am not going to instruct in that fashion. 

	

22 	However, you do have some instructions, sort of the 

	

23 	reverse instruction to they have to prove beyond a 

	

24 	reasonable doubt, where you say if they haven't 

	

25 	proven beyond reasonable doubt. i don't typically 

489 



92 

1 	give the reverse, but i want to hear the State's 

	

2 	comment on that. 

	

3 	 And then you also have some that go 

	

4 	specifically to that notification aspect of the 

	

5 	change of the address. The one that kind of stood 

	

6 	out to me the most was that if -- page 18 of your 

	

7 	proposed, "If the state has failed to prove beyond a 

	

8 	reasonable doubt that the defendant changed the 

	

9 	location where he habitually slept, then he is 

	

10 	entitled to a verdict of not guilty on Count 2." 

	

11 	 And I do want to have a discussion about 

	

12 	that. 

	

13 	 ms. HOJJAT: I actually have a motion to 

	

14 	make in regards to that, Your Honor, and I think 

	

15 	that clarifies Instruction Number 19 and 20 because 

	

16 	i am making a motion at this time. If the court 

	

17 	wants to do it now or -- 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Let's go ahead and do it now 

	

19 	then. 

	

20 	 ms. HOJJAT: Okay. We are moving for a 

	

21 	directed verdict as to both counts in this case. 

	

22 	obviously, the directed verdict as to Count 1 was, 

	

23 	in part, based upon the proposed instructions that 

	

24 	was suggesting, so you can understand if the court 

	

25 	would just -- 
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1 	 IT11 very briefly make that record in terms 

	

2 	of saying, if our reading of the law is c
orrect, 

	

3 	then we would be moving for a directed 
verdict 

	

4 	because the state has failed to prove b
eyond a 

	

5 	reasonable doubt, even in a light favorab
le to the 

	

6 	state, that the violations have been 
made. I do 

	

7 	understand the court's not granting us 
our jury 

	

8 	instruction. So that record is contin
gent upon our 

	

9 	interpretation of the law being correc
t, 

	

10 	essentially. 

	

11 	 As to Count 2, Your Honor, we are moving 

	

12 	for a directed verdict. we believe the
 state has 

	

13 	failed to meet its burden that he w
as registered at 

	

14 	an address and he wasn't living ther
e. In fact, 

	

15 	they've actually failed to meet thei
r burden that he 

	

16 	was registered at any address. They ha
ven't entered 

	

17 	any evidence that he was registered
 anywhere. 

	

18 	officer Mangan repeatedly told us she
 couldn't tell 

	

19 	us where he was registered bec
ause she's not that 

	

20 	law enforcement agency. 

	

21 	 The appropriate law enforcement agency for 

	

22 	saying where somebody is registered 
is metro. It's 

	

23 	the local law enforcement agency. T
hat's not P & P. 

	

24 	P & P is they regulate people on parole
, probation, 

	

25 	lifetime supervision. They are not t
he law 

491 



94 

1 	enforcement agency. The law enforcement agency is 

	

2 	the only one who can come in here and say he was 

	

3 	registered at x address on x date. we've had 

	

4 	absolutely no testimony or evidence from anybody 

	

5 	about where he was registered at any given time. 

	

6 	 They talked about the places that he was 

	

7 	reporting to them. But not a single shred of 

	

8 	evidence, not a certified document, nothing has been 

	

9 	entered showing where he was registered. Therefore, 

	

10 	the State has failed to meet its burden of, first, 

	

11 	showing'where he was registered to begin with. It's 

	

12 	two prongs: One showing he was registered; two, 

	

13 	showing he wasn't residing there. They haven't even 

	

14 	shown where he was registered. so they can't 

	

15 	possibly show that he wasn't residing there. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: well, as the charge, Count 2 

	

17 	prohibited acts is, at least listed in the 

	

18 	information, it is listed as, "He failed to appear 

	

19 	in person at the appropriate law enforcement agency 

	

20 	before three business days past since he changed his 

	

21 	address from his last registered address of main and 

	

22 	wyoming." 

	

23 
	

so you're indicating that he has not shown 

	

24 
	

that he was registered at main and wyoming and also 

	

25 	that he -- it has not been proven that he changed 
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1 	his address from that. 

	

2 	 Ms. HOJJAT: 1 mean, they haven't proven 

3 	anything. Nobody has gotten up there to say, "He 

4 	didn't show up and change." For all we know, he'd 

	

5 	been changing once a day. officer Mangan 

6 	specifically said, "1 can't tell you where he was 

	

7 	registered at any given time. I can't tell you how 

	

8 	many changes he made; I can't tell you anything; 

	

9 	have no information for you," and she made a point 

	

10 	of saying that over and over again during 

	

11 	cross-examination. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: I thought she more -- what 

	

13 	gleaned was her confusion over the constant use of 

	

14 	the word "registration" when he was -- when she was 

	

15 	being asked about where he was reporting. 

	

16 
	

Ms. HOMMT: Right. And she kept saying 

	

17 
	

that. she kept saying, "No, no, no. He reports to 

	

18 
	

me; he doesn't register to me. No, no, no. You 

	

19 
	

mean reporting. I don't do registration. I do 

	

20 	reporting." I agree with the court. she was 

	

21 	clarifying the miscommunication. But the point 

	

22 	that -- the clarification she was hammering home was 

	

23 	that she's not the appropriate person to be 

	

24 	testifying about registration at all. 

	

25 	 she can't tell us where he was registered. 
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1 	She can't tell us if he showed up and change
d his 

	

2 	address. The state -- our position is the
 State has 

	

3 	failed to prove that he changed his add
ress. They 

	

4 	haven't established that by anything in 
this case. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: okay. 

	

6 	 ms. NO37AT: They haven't shown that he 

	

7 	wasn't residing at that location. And b
y officer 

	

8 	mangan's own testimony, in a court perio
d of six 

	

9 	months, i believe it was, she did one 
visit to that 

	

10 	location and couldn't find him there
. And that was 

	

11 	on February, in February of 2014. 

	

12 	 Because the period that he supposedly 

	

13 	changed and didn't change his registrat
ion, that he 

14 

	

15 	my understanding of the allegation is aft
er August, 

	

16 	after he absconded, they're claiming he m
oved and 

	

17 	didn't change his registration. 

	

18 	 They haven't shown he didn't change his 

	

19 	registration. They haven't even sho
wn that he 

	

20 	moved. She only went out there once be
tween August 

	

21 	of 2013 and February of 2014, and he wasn
't standing 

	

22 	on the corner at that day when she went.
 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Let's let mr. cooper respond to 

	

24 	the motion for directed verdict on the 
two counts. 

	

25 	And of course, then if you want to add 
anything to 

moved and didn't change his registration -- at
 least 
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1 	the Court's determination not to give the 

	

2 	instructions as designed by the defense, but perhaps 

	

3 	we need to then address any adjustments we need to 

	

4 	make to the instructions as you have provided them 

	

5 	in light of some of the ones that they proposed. 

6 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. And, 

	

7 	Your Honor, I guess first on the directed verdict, 

	

8 	verdict issue, obviously the directed verdict on 

	

9 	Count 1 was based, my understanding was solely on 

	

10 	the argument that was previously given to the court, 

	

11 	and that argument is, I guess, is not appropriate, 

	

12 	not for a jury instructions, first; and foremost, 

	

13 	should be an argument that's made in a motion, in a 

	

14 	pretrial motion to dismiss or something of that 

	

15 	nature. Not jury instruction argument. 

	

16 	 But with that aside, I think the statute is 

	

17 	clear in terms of its ability to give the board the 

	

18 	ability to regulate the program of lifetime 

	

19 	supervision. The Court's already previously stated 

	

20 	the regulation number or regulation cite that goes 

	

21 	into details. And then just looking at the statute, 

	

22 	it does give forward some conditions. 

	

23 	 But obviously one of the conditions that 

	

24 	isn't said in here is reporting. So it wouldn't 

	

25 	make sense that he would have a probation officer 
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1 	but he wouldn't have to report to h
im, but he would 

	

2 	have to let them know of his addr
ess. None of those 

	

3 	things could be I guess, put -- it
 just makes no 

	

4 	sense. 

	

5 	 with that said, Your Honor, I mean, I'm 
not 

	

6 	going to belabor the point on co
unt 1. I think the 

	

7 	record is made for the defense's s
tandpoint, and 

	

8 	then the State would just echo the
 same concerns 

	

9 	that the court had in terms of not
 only the 

	

10 	procedural nature in which they'r
e trying to bring 

	

11 	this objection or motion and th
e actual substantive 

	

12 	arguments that they made as well.
 

	

13 	 THE COURT: count 2. 

	

14 	 MR. COOPER: I'm sorry. I made notes. 

	

15 	just wanted to make sure I made m
y -- 

	

16 	 THE COURT: No, you're fine. 

	

17 
	 MR. COOPER: -- argument on Count 1. I'

m 

	

18 	sorry. 

	

19 	 And, Your Honor, I mean, just reading of
f 

	

20 	my notes, for the record, esse
ntially the defense is 

	

21 	saying that every lifetime superv
ision agreement 

	

22 	ever put into place by the Depa
rtment of Probation 

	

23 	and Parole is invalid. It just 
makes no factual 

	

24 	sense. But I guess that's for an
other day to 

	

25 	decide. 
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1 	he made crazy statements, "I'm not going to listen 

	

2 	to anything you said," well, then you must have 

	

3 	moved because we went out there once and you weren't
 

	

4 	there. And we went out there once between August 

	

5 	and February. 

	

6 	 But without that statement, all we have is 

	

7 	an individual who went out there once between 

	

8 	August and February. She went out there, I think 

	

9 	two other times total. 

	

10 	 1 think a total of three times or four 

	

11 	times? Three times total that ever went out -- 

	

12 	 MS. FERRERA: Four. 

	

13 	 ms. HO3JAT: 	-- didn't see him. They just 

	

14 	can't establish. They don't have -- they didn't 

	

15 	call the right witness to establish he didn't change 

	

16 	his registration. The correct witness would have 

	

17 	been custodian of records from LVMPD. They didn't 

	

18 	call the right witness. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Anything further, Mr. cooper? 

	

20 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I was saying 

	

21 	I can proceed with my case any way I see fit. But 

	

22 	the facts still does remain that his statement did 

	

23 	come out -- and I'm sorry I didn't say that earlier
. 

	

24 	His statement did come out that he was going to liv
e 

	

25 	where he wanted to. He was going to move any time 
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1 	he wanted to, and everything like that. 

	

2 	 That statement combined with the fact that 

3 	she was unable to find him at what she knew to be 

4 	his registered address, at least at one point, is 

	

5 	sufficient to determine that he changed his address. 

6 	But I'll submit. 

	

7 	 Ms. HOJJAT: Her knowledge of his 

	

8 
	

registered address is not even -- that's not 

	

9 
	

evidence. It's not knowledge. 

	

10 
	

THE COURT: okay. 

	

11 
	

MS. HOJJAT: 	It's -- sorry. 	I apologize. 

	

12 
	

THE COURT: Like 	said earlier, like 

	

13 	said -- 

	

14 
	

Ms. HOJJAT: I apologize. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: -- you don't win because you're 

	

16 
	

the last person who speaks. It's just a matter of 

	

17 
	

let's get our record completed. 

	

18 
	

It is this court's determination, at this 

	

19 
	

time, that the state has failed to provide evidence 

	

20 
	

to survive the motion for directed verdict on 

	

21 
	

Count 2, the prohibited acts by sex offender. There 

	

22 
	

is not evidence in the record regarding his change 

	

23 
	

of address from the last registered address. 

	

24 	 There is sketchy evidence on the fact that 

	

25 	he even registered at any given time, as argued by 
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1 	the defense, But there is certainly not evidence 

	

2 	that is sufficient to go to the jury to make a 

	

3 	determination beyond a reasonable doubt that he, in 

4 	fact, changed his address and failed to notify the 

	

5 	law enforcement agency. 

	

6 	 I am going to grant the directed as to 

	

7 	Count 2. I am not going to grant the directed 

	

8 	verdict as to Count 1. There is ample evidence to 

	

9 	go to jury to make a determination on whether there 

	

10 	has been violation of lifetime supervision by 

	

11 	convicted sex offender, and for all the reasons I've 

	

12 	already stated. As far as how the statute and 

	

13 	regulations are set up, I believe that it is 

	

14 	appropriate to instruct and allow the jurors to 

	

15 	decide whether he is guilty of that charge. 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: And I'm sorry. Your Honor, 

	

17 	because this is my first directed verdict, so just 

	

18 	procedurally am I supposed to change the verdict 

	

19 	form, or how does that work? 

	

20 	 THE COURT: It's my first one too, 

	

21 	Mr. Cooper. But I am going to change the verdict 

	

22 	form for us. Yes, the verdict form will only 

	

23 	reflect the one charge, and I will, when we instruct 

	

24 	the Court -- instruct the jurors, we will -- I'll 

	

25 	note that we are only instructing as to Count 1 of 
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1 	the charge, and that is the onl
y one that they are 

	

2 	to deliberate on. 

	

3 	 MR. COOPER: Works for the State, 

	

4 	Your Honor. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

6 	 MS. HO33AT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. So the instruction
s that 

	

8 	then go to that issue now are
 moot and will not need 

	

9 	to be given. So we really a
re just down to if the 

	

10 	defense has any arguments with regard to the 

	

11 	State's proposed instructio
ns that the Court does 

	

12 	intend to give with regard t
o Count 1. 

	

13 	 MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, we did 
still 

	

14 	want -- I apologize. We di
d still want a couple of 

	

15 	those instructions just beca
use they -- one •of the 

	

16 	charges in Count 1 is that he failed to have his 

	

17 	residence approved, and so w
e think some of the 

	

18 	those instructions are a little bit overlapping in 

	

19 	terms of the location. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Which one is -- 

	

21 	 MS. HOJJAT: In terms of the, you kno
w, if 

	

22 	you're transient, it's the 
place that you habitually 

	

23 	sleep and things of that 
nature. Specifically, 

	

24 	Instruction Number 17. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: And what else? 

.41 
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1 	 At this point, I'm going to have to pull 

	

2 	the plug and get in there and finish up the 

	

3 	instructions. 

	

4 	 MS. HO3JAT: 	sorry. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: So I need you to wrap up your 

	

6 
	

arguments, and I will make a final completion, of 

	

7 
	

course, give you a set to review before we instruct. 

	

8 
	

MS. HOIJAT: 	think 17 is the one. 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: okay. 

	

10 
	

MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, my 

	

11 
	

understanding that that refers to the count that 

	

12 
	

just was stricken. So there's no reason to have it, 

	

13 
	

MS. HO3JAT: 	It does refer specifically to 

	

14 
	

the count that was stricken, but we think the 

	

15 
	

arguments also go towards the count 1, towards one 

	

16 
	

of the charges in Count 1. 

	

17 
	

THE COURT: Well, I'm looking at the, 

	

18 
	

again, the counts in count 1. we have refusal to 

	

19 
	

submit to urinalysis, failure to report -- 

	

20 
	 MS. HOnAT: Failing to have residence 

	

21 	approved. 

	

22 
	

THE COURT: Failing to have his residence 

	

23 	approved. 

	

24 
	

MS. HOJJAT: And it's indicative -- 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Failing to cooperate -- let me 
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1 	finish. If you keep talking over me, my reporter is 

	

2 	going to have another fit. okay? 

3 	 MS. H0,77AT: 	I'm sorry, Your Honor. 	Sorry. 

4 	 THE COURT: Failing to cooperate -- 

	

S 	 And rightfully so. 

6 	 Failing to cooperate with his supervising 

	

7 	officer, failing to maintain lifetime -- full-time 

	

8 	employment. Sorry. Failing to abide by curfew 

	

9 	and/or terminated from the counseling. so  you 

	

10 	believe that your 17 instruction, sex offender, no 

	

11 	fixed residence is still necessary to that? 

	

12 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 	I believe it's necessary 

	

13 	to the failing to have residence approved. Just the 

	

14 	language of failing to have residence approved 

	

15 	seems, sounds like it makes it a crime to be 

	

16 	transient and that it has -- that you have to be at 

	

17 	one place every day. This instruction shows no, the 

	

18 	law does take into account people can be transient, 

	

19 	and it does take into account it's not the same 

	

20 	location every single night. It's the habitually 

	

21 	language. 

	

22 
	

MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, we just went 

	

23 
	

over this long, I guess, discussion about the strict 

	

24 
	

reading of the statute, and the statute says that 

	

25 	they must have the residence approved. It doesn't 
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1 	go anything about, well, it has to be within 

	

2 	30 days. The other statute may refer to that, 

	

3 	talking about where they register at and stuff like 

	

4 	that. 

	

5 	 But having registered -- having their 

	

6 	residence approved, it doesn't matter if you're 

	

7 	homeless; it doesn't matter where you live at, you 

	

8 	have to have your residence approved. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: All right. Anything further 

	

10 	before I go and complete the instructions? 

	

11 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I think we 

	

12 	just -- we held Defendant's Instruction 7 in 

	

13 	abeyance, and I don't think you made a ruling on 

	

14 	that one. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: The ruling now that has been 

	

16 	made with regard to -- you're right. I did hold it 

	

17 	in abeyance but because it was tied into the others, 

	

18 	and I've now determined obviously further arguments 

	

19 	that we've made that we are not going to give that 

	

20 	instruction. So our goal -- we didn't give the 

	

21 	other instruction, so we're not going to give 

	

22 	Number 7 either. 

	

23 	 I will take under consideration number - - 

	

24 	page 17. 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT: And make a final version of the 

	

2 	instructions here as soon as we can take the break. 

	

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. And 

	

4 	the only -- 

	

S 	 THE COURT: Go ahead. 

	

6 
	

MS. HOJJAT: 	i apologize. 

	

7 
	

THE COURT: You're fine. 

	

8 
	

MS. HOJJAT: We are asking that our denied 

	

9 
	

instructions be entered as a Court's exhibit. And 

	

10 
	

the only thing I'd ask is -- I apologize. I noticed 

	

11 
	

one more typo. In my Proposed Instruction Number 9, 

12 
	

which has been denied by the Court, it says, 

13 
	

"9 through 12" for defense proposed instructions, 

	

14 
	

but I actually meant "10 through 13." 

15 
	

THE COURT: Okay. So what I would ask you 

	

16 
	

to do, counsel -- 

	

17 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 

	

18 
	

THE COURT: -- is because some of them 

	

19 
	

obviously were given -- 

	

20 
	

MS. HO3JAT: Yes. 

	

21 
	

THE COURT: -- rather than enter them as 

22 
	

Court's exhibits, what I prefer to do is have you 

23 
	put a caption on them, with the caption being, with 

	

24 
	

the title being "Defendant's Proposed, not given" 

25 	and then just include the ones that were excluded so 
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1 	that you have that complete set. File that with the 

	

2 	court, and that will complete the recordk 

	

3 	 ms. HOJJAT: Perfect. Can I bring that 

	

4 	after lunch to file with the caption? 

	

5 	 THE COURT: oh, yeah. That can be filed 

	

6 	anytime. It doesn't have to be filed today. 

	

7 	 ms. HOJJAT: perfect. Thank you very much, 

	

8 	Your Honor. 1 appreciate it. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Last assignment that 	think we 

	

10 
	

have to complete before we can break is to canvass 

	

11 
	

Mr. McNeil. 	so what I'd like to do first, and this 

	

12 	is of course regarding his intention whether or not 

	

13 	to invoke his rights or to testify. 

	

14 	 I'd like to ask first of counsel, can you 

	

15 	please make representation, for the record, if you 

	

16 	have discussed with Mr. McNeil what his rights are 

	

17 	in this area. 

	

18 	 ms. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. We have -- 

	

19 	have spoken with Mr. McNeil. I've discussed with 

	

20 	him his right to testify or his right not to 

	

21 	testify. I've informed him that if he chooses not 

	

22 	to testify, a jury instruction will be given telling 

	

23 	the jury that they cannot hold it against him that 

	

24 	he did not testify. 

	

25 	 I've informed him that, if he does testify, 
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1 	then the attempt lewdness with a minor conviction 

	

2 	could be used to impeach him and that the District 

	

3 	Attorney would have the opportunity to cross-examine 

4 	him. In speaking with him, it is my understanding 

	

5 	that, on the advice of counsel, he is choosing not 

	

6 	to testify. 

	

7 	 THE DEFENDANT: That would be correct. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Well, I still have to canvass 

	

9 	you, Mr. McNeil. But I like to get the counsel's 

	

10 	representations first that they have, in fact, had 

	

11 	these discussions. so I have some set questions 

	

12 	need to ask you. So I appreciate your patience 

	

13 	while we go through this. I need to read to you 

	

14 	some of your rights and then ask you if you 

	

15 	understand them. Okay. 

	

16 	 You have the right under the constitution 

	

17 	of the United States and the Constitution of the 

	

18 	State of Nevada not to be compelled to testify in 

	

19 	this case. 

	

20 	 Do you understand that. 

	

21 	 THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: That means no one can make you 

	

23 	take the witness stand and make you answer any 

	

24 	questions. 

	

25 	 Do you understand that. 
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THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

2 	 THE COURT: You may, if you wish, give up 

3 	this right and you may take the witness stand and 

4 	testify. If you do, you will be subject to 

5 	cross-examination by the District Attorney, as well 

6 	as your own attorney; and anything that you say, 

7 	whether it is in answers to questions put to you by 

8 	your attorney or by the District Attorney, will be 

9 	the subject of fair comment when the District 

10 	Attorney speaks to the jury in final argument. 

11 	 Do you understand that? 

12 	 THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

13 	 THE COURT: If you choose not to testify, 

14 	the court will not permit the District Attorney to 

15 	make any comments to the jury concerning the fact 

16 	that you have not testified. 

17 	 Do you understand that? 

18 	 THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

19 	 THE COURT: If you elect not to testify, 

20 	the court will instruct the jury, only if your 

21 	attorney specifically requests, and obviously that 

22 	instruction has, in fact, been proposed by your 

23 	counsel. An instruction that reads as follows: 

24 	 "It is a constitutional right of a 

25 	defendant in a criminal trial that he may not be 
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1 	compelled to testify. Thus the decision as to 

	

2 	whether he should testify is left to the defendant 

	

3 	on the advice and counsel of his attorney. YoU must 

	

4 	not draw any inference of guilt from the fact that 

	

5 	he does not testify; nor should this fact be 

	

6 	discussed by you or enter into your deliberations in 

	

7 	any way." 

	

8 
	

know that that was read obviously when we 

	

9 
	

were doing the jury selection, but -- 

	

10 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Couple of times, yes. 

	

11 
	

THE COURT: -- I wanted to make sure that 

	

12 
	

you understood that that is an instruction that will 

	

13 
	

given if you choose not to testify. 

	

14 
	

Are you aware of that? 

	

15 
	

THE DEFENDANT: I am. 

	

16 
	

THE COURT: Do you have any questions that 

	

17 
	

you would like to ask me about your constitutional 

	

18 
	

rights? 

	

19 
	

THE DEFENDANT: None that come to mind at 

	

20 
	

this time. 

	

21 
	

THE COURT: okay. Last little bit so that 

	

22 
	

you understand and can weigh when you give your 

	

23 
	

final decision, it's weighing all of these things 

	

24 
	

together. If you choose to testify and you have 

	

25 	been convicted of a felony within the past ten years 
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1 	and you have been on Parole or Probation for a 

	

2 	felony within the past -- or you have been on Parole 

	

3 	and Probation for a felony within the past ten 

	

4 	years, the District Attorney may ask if you've been 

	

5 	convicted of the felony, what was the felony and 

	

6 	when it happened, but no details may be gone into 

	

7 	regarding any prior felony convictions. 

	

8 	 we've obviously had a lot of discussion 

	

9 	about that because of the nature of the charge in 

	

10 	this case. But the only way he would be able to go 

	

11 	into any details or provide any kind of certified 

	

12 	copy of the conviction and get more information into 

	

13 	the record is if you were to deny the felony 

	

14 	conviction. 

	

15 	 So I know, I believe that you're already 

	

16 	aware of that. But are you aware of those rights? 

	

17 	 THE DEFENDANT: I am. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: okay. In light of all of this 

	

19 	information, what is your determination as to 

	

20 	whether or not you wish to invoke your rights under 

	

21 	the constitution to not be compelled to testify or 

	

22 	whether you wish to testify? 

	

23 	 THE DEFENDANT: I wish not to testify. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: You wish not to testify, okay. 

	

25 	 Then I appreciate the opportunity to 
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1 	canvass you on that. I think that that completes 

	

2 	everything. when we come back -- 

	

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: I apologize. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. ms. Hojjat. 

	

5 	 MS. HOJJAT: I need to lodge my objections 

	

6 	to four of their instructions that I'm objecting to. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Yeah, okay. I'm sorry. 

	

8 	thought we completed the discussion of the 

	

9 	objections. 

	

10 	 ms. HOnAT: I'm sorry. I thought too, and 

	

11 	then I looked and realized I forgot to -- 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Give me page numbers. 

	

13 	 MS. HOJJAT: The first one is page 

	

14 	number 12. Actually, no, I apologize. 	First one is 

	

15 	page number 7. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Page 7. Okay. 

	

17 	 ms. HOJJAT: This is not a relevant 

	

18 	instruction in this case; rather like the state made 

	

19 	about my mere presence instruction, it may be a 

	

20 	correct statement of the law, it's not applicable 

	

21 	here. There's nobody else here who may be innocent 

	

22 	or guilty of a crime. It's not applicable, and it 

	

23 	will confuse the jury. I'd ask -- 

	

24 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, it's stock. If we 

	

25 	don't need it, I don't care. 
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THE COURT: I'll remove it. 

	

2 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: That's state's page 7. 

4 	 Go ahead. 

	

5 	 Ms. HOJJAT: State's page 11, that's the 

	

6 	bad acts instruction. i don't think it's 

	

7 	appropriate here. It's talking about the fact that 

	

8 	they can consider the fact that he's a sex offender 

	

9 	for the limited purpose of determining knowledge, 

	

10 	intent, motive, or absence of mistake or accident. 

	

11 	That's not an accurate statement of law here. 

	

12 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, I'm okay with 

	

13 	removing that one too. I actually did it for the 

	

14 	defendant's benefit because it did come out that he 

	

15 	was a sex offender. so  i just wanted to make sure 

	

16 	they know that they can't use the fact that he's a 

	

17 	sex offender just against him. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: well, I've given that 

	

19 	admonishment significantly. 

	

20 	 MR. COOPER: I understand. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: I think this is, by the way, 

	

22 	counsel an accurate Tavarez instruction. I've given 

	

23 	this instruction before. 

	

24 	 Ms. HOJJAT: 	Yes. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: But I believe that there was 
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1 	quite a bit of discussion about going into some of 

	

2 	the information and a lot of objections on the bench 

	

3 	about information coming from the witnesses that 

	

4 	might pertain to other bad acts. But if you don't 

	

5 	wish to give this instruction, I won't force it. 

	

6 	 MS. HOJJAT: well, what I would propose to 

	

7 	the Court is if we were to cut it off, like the word 

	

8 	"such," everything after the worth "such" because I 

	

9 	don't have a problem with the first sentence. It's 

	

10 	saying, telling them that they can use the fact that 

	

11 	he's a sex offender for anything that I'm objecting 

	

12 	to. I agree it's a correct Tavarez instruction. 

	

13 	 I just don't believe that it's applicable 

	

14 	in this case because they're not supposed to use the 

	

15 	fact that he's a sex offender against him at all in 

	

16 	this case but for the fact that it satisfies an 

	

17 	element. So I'm okay with up through line 5. I 

	

18 	would just ask after the period, after the "crimes" 

	

19 	in line 5, everything after that be stricken. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: I don't think the Tavarez 

	

21 	instruction is necessary in this case. 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: okay. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: so I'm going to strike the or 

	

24 	take out State's page 11. 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: And then State's page 12, that 
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1 	objection just goes to the -- I'm objecting to it 

	

2 	officially, for the record, because I'm proposing my 

	

3 	own. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: You're proposing our own. 

	

5 	 MS. HEMAT: -- the ones that i proposed 

	

6 	that the State has denied -- or the Court has 

	

7 	denied. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Page 12 and page 13 both or 

	

9 	page -- yeah, page 12 and 12, 13 both? 

	

10 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Because you said you had two 

	

12 	others. 

	

13 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor -- well, no. 

	

14 
	

There's also page 14 that I'm objecting to. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: Okay. So 12 and 13 will be 

	

16 
	

given. Your objection is noted but overruled. 

	

17 	 MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: The page 14? 

	

19 	 MS. HOJJAT: Page 14 is, I mean, we've 

	

20 	already stipulated he's a sex offender. I'm not 

	

21 	sure. I mean, it's just confusing and redundant. 

	

22 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, I guess my 

	

23 	only argument is is that obviously the term "sex 

	

24 	offender" has a distinct meaning in the law, and 

	

25 	that term is actually used multiple times in the 
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1 	instructions. There's nothing that is prejudicial 

2 	to him by defining what the term "sex offender" is. 

3 	so I don't understand how it -- 

4 	 It's definitely an accurate statement of 

	

5 	the law. That's directly what the definition is. 

6 	It's not prejudicial to him. It doesn't hurt him in 

	

7 	any way. So i don't understand why we wouldn't give 

	

8 	it. But I mean, I would submit to the Court on it. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: All right. 1111  make a 

	

10 	determination on that as well and let you know what 

	

11 	the final set of instructions looks like, and 

	

12 	adjust the verdict form as we've discussed. 

	

13 	 Is there anything else we need to address 

	

14 	before we take -- we still got about an hour lunch. 

	

15 	so that's not too bad. 

	

16 	 Ms. HO3JAT: The only other thing we need 

	

17 	to address, I'm sorry, his ID number, we'd like his 

	

18 	ID number not to be on the -- what's given to the 

	

19 	jury. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: I don't put the ID number. 

	

21 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Perfect. Because it was on 

	

22 
	

the State's proposed, and I just want to -- 

	

23 
	

THE COURT: It's not going to look like the 

	

24 
	

State's proposed. I have a different version 

	

25 	entirely. 
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1 	 MS. H03)AT: Thank you very much, 

	

2 	Your Honor. 

	

3 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, I guess, just 

	

4 	procedurally -- again, this is my first directed 

	

5 	verdict -- is the fact that this Court gave the 

	

6 	directed verdict on Count 2, is that appropriate 

	

7 	argument for a defense counsel to make during 

	

8 	closing? Because I honestly, I don't know. 

THE COURT: NO. The appropriate argument, 

	

10 	to this Court's opinion, is argument with regard to 

	

11 	whatever charge is remaining in this case and what 

	

12 	the evidence showed or didn't show as to that 

	

13 	charge. The fact the Court has made a determination 

	

14 	that we're only going to proceed as to the one 

	

15 	charge will come out in the instructions, and that's 

	

16 	what the instructions will go to. 

	

17 	 But it is not subject of fair argument to 

	

18 	argue somehow and perhaps attempt to argue to the 

	

19 	jury that because the Court determined not to 

	

20 	proceed on that charge, that somehow the other 

	

21 	charge is faulty. So I would appreciate the 

	

22 	opportunity to give that clarification. 

	

23 	 MR. COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: That would not be appropriate 

	

25 	for argument. 
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1 	 Okay. Anything else? 

	

2 	 MR. COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: All right. Enjoy your lunches, 

	

4 	and we will be back here a at 2:00 o'clock. 

	

5 	 (Lunch recess.) 

THE COURT: As soon as Mr. McNeil is ready, 

	

7 	we'll go back on the record and we'll have a brief 

	

8 	discussion about the final version of the 

	

9 	instructions and what I changed and why. I didn't 

	

10 	know if any of you would need a copy to refer to the 

	

11 	actual numbered instruction in your closings or not, 

12 	but ... 

13 	 MS. HOJJAT: We're ready whenever the Court 

	

14 	is. 

15 	 THE COURT: Oh, okay. I just wanted to let 

	

16 	Mr. McNeil finish and get in place. 

	

17 	 THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor 

	

18 	 THE COURT: No problem. 

	

19 	 Okay. So a couple of changes in order in 

	

20 	which they appear in the final set of instructions. 

	

21 	You'll notice just my style, I like to only have the 

22 	first page say "Jury Instructions" but not actually 

	

23 	contain the first instruction. So we'll just go by 

	

24 	actual numbers of instructions now, since they are 

	

25 	in fact numbered, as opposed to the page number like 
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1 	we were doing when we settled them. Okay? 

	

2 	 So Instruction Number 3, I would note the 

	

3 	State's version -- well, obviously, I've made a 

	

4 	number of changes here because I've removed the 

	

5 	reference to Count 2. I did make a change to the 

6 	date. I think there was a date error contained in 

	

7 	the State's Proposed. It had the 24th day of 

	

8 	December, but the prior -- 

	

9 	 MR. COOPER: That must have been a typo. 

	

10 	That was my fault. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: It was a typo. The prior 

	

12 	information I had the 14th. So I corrected that to , 

	

13 	the 14th day of December. I then removed, of 

	

14 	course, again the Count 2. I also added the last 

	

15 	sentence, which is standard in these instructions 

	

16 	following the information or the indictment language 

	

17 	regarding the duty of the jury. It was not 

	

18 	contained in the State's Proposed, but i did add it 

	

19 	in. So do you see that last sentence? It wasn't 

	

20 	there before. But I did add it, so i just wanted to 

	

21 	make sure everybody was aware. 

	

22 	 I then moved the definitional sections and 

	

23 	the sections pertaining to the actual crime charge 

	

24 	up, after the information. So rather than having 

	

25 	done all the kind of basic instructional how-to's 
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1 	and then defining sex offender, et cetera, I brought 

	

2 	those forward. I did leave in the definition of 

	

3 	sex offender. I think it is necessary to complete 

	

4 	the scope of the instructions in terms of what the 

	

5 	charge is, as well as where it's used in the 

	

6 	subsequent provisions. 

	

7 	 i then -- the state's, what is now 

	

8 	Instruction Number 5 was proposed by the State, and 

	

9 	I don't believe I made any adjustments there. 

	

10 	believe that is the way it was originally worded. 

	

11 	 I did, however, change what is now 

	

12 	Instruction Number 6. The State was proposing, 

	

13 	would say more general language, with regard to 

	

14 	reporting requirements. This is actually an 

	

15 	instruction that was proposed by the defense in 

	

16 	terms of the discussion with regard to what the 

	

17 	sex offender residency, dwelling, habitual, sleep, 

	

18 	knowledge, I thought -- the reason I took out the 

	

19 	state's and the reason I did include this is because 

	

20 	I wanted -- 

	

21 	 If you go back to Instruction Number 5, 

	

22 	that is the sort of general instruction that if the 

	

23 	sex offender, under the sentence of lifetime 

	

24 	supervision who commits a violation of a condition 

	

25 	imposed is guilty of the violation, one of the 
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1 	underlying was this residency issue. But this -- 

	

2 	obviously, we don't have an instruction for each and 

	

3 	every one of the violations that could have 

	

4 	occurred. They're listed in the charging document, 

	

5 	but they're not listed in the instructions. 

	

6 	 So I didn't have want to have one 

	

7 	particular instruction that looked liked that's the 

	

8 	only violation that's being considered. so 

	

9 	removed the state's version because I thought that's 

	

10 	what that looked liked I hope this is making sense. 

	

11 	If you have your version, I think it will make more 

	

12 	sense. But what I did want to leave in was some 

	

13 	clarification with regard to what the residency and 

	

14 	registration requirement was. so  that's why the 

	

15 	defense's is in there and the State's is not. 

	

16 	 Does anybody have any questions about that? 

	

17 	 MR. COOPER: I don't have a question about 

	

18 	it, Your Honor. And I know there's -- do we object? 

	

19 	Do we object, or are we just settled or -- 

	

20 
	

THE COURT: You're welcome to object, at 

	

21 	this point, because I did make an additional change 

	

22 	from when we settled it before. I'm not going to 

	

23 	change it, but you're welcome to object; and if you 

	

24 	would like and you think it's appropriate, you might 

	

25 	want to do the same thing the defense will be doing, 
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1 	which is to have a caption with "State's Proposed, 

2 	not given" and then submitted in the record. 

3 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, I don't think 

4 	that's all necessary. My objection is just kind of 

5 	just a wording is that he's only charged, in my 

6 	understanding of the Complaint or the Information, 

7 	is that he's only charged with not having his 

8 	residence approved, not not registering his 

9 	residence. That was Count 2. 

10 	 My understanding is that this 

11 	Instruction 6 is referring to notifying local law 

12 	enforcement agency. well, even if he does that, 

13 	that still does not necessarily mean that his 

14 	probation officer approved his residence. So 

15 	don't believe this actually applies; but obviously, 

16 	if the Court's giving it, that's all I have. 

17 	 THE COURT: Well, go ahead. Did you want 

18 	to respond, either Ms. Hojjat or Ms. Bonaventure? 

19 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: well, Your Honor, if he 

20 	has a problem with where it says, "At least every 

21 	30 days, shall notify the local law enforcement 

22 	agency," we can do away with that language so that 

23 	it reads that "A sex offender who has no fixed 

24 	address shall" or -- basically to take that part out 

25 	where it has that requirement for Count 2 but to 
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1 	leave in the language where, if he doesn't have a 

	

2 	fixed address, he can register at a corner. 

	

3 	 Or in absent of that, Your Honor, we can, 

	

4 	if your preference is to get away with it -- or do 

	

5 	away with it, then we will deal with that as well. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: well, like I said, what I took 

	

7 	out was the -- again, following upon the general 

	

8 	sort of if you have conditions imposed upon you and 

	

9 	you don't comply with them, then that is a 

	

10 	violation. That is Instruction Number 5. I thought 

	

11 	it would be too confusing to have the very next 

	

12 	instruction, and the only other instruction imposed 

	

13 	by the State, to talk about sex offender is required 

	

14 	to keep parole and probation officer assigned to him 

	

15 	or her informed of the current address because that 

	

16 	makes it looks like that's the only condition that 

	

17 	we're talking about, and we're clearly not talking 

	

18 	about that. so I took that out. That was a 

	

19 	separate decision from including this one. 

	

20 	 The then decision to include this one, I'm 

	

21 	not trying to conflate -- and if I am inadvertently 

	

22 	doing that, I apologize -- a registration or other 

	

23 	requirement. But what you have in the charging 

	

24 	document is any number of requirements, and I think 

	

25 	the part where the jury needed -- any number of 
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1 	requirements. Sorry. Let me finish my thought 

	

2 	before I go forward. 

	

3 	 In terms of again, the U.A., the failing to 

4 	report, failing to have the residence approved, 

	

5 	failing to cooperate with the officer, I think all 

6 	of these things, the testimony that's come into the 

	

7 	trial has been about where was he; did he register? 

	

8 	Did he -- I'm sorry. Did he report where he was; 

	

9 	was he where he was supposed to be? 

	

10 	 And I think at least some clarification on 

	

11 	the requirements of advising of where he lives and 

	

12 	changing addresses and how that ties into someone 

	

13 	who is in fact homeless is necessary for this jury 

	

14 	to fully understand what was applicable in 

	

15 	Mr. mcNeil's case. 	So that why I included it. I'm 

	

16 	not, again, trying to conflate the two, and it is my 

	

17 	preference to leave it in. 

	

18 	 But I hear your potential concerns of, you 

	

19 	know, how this might overlap with the other charge 

	

20 	that was taken out. But, again, my goal here was 

	

21 	that the jury understand this charging document. 

	

22 	Here's how one may be guilty of that; and to the 

	

23 	extent that you're dealing with understanding what 

	

24 	alleged violations occurred and you have a question 

	

25 	about what the requirements were for reporting of 
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1 	where he is staying, this clarifies. So that's kind 

	

2 	of why that's the way it is. 

THE DEFENDANT: Court's indulgence. 

	

4 
	

MS. HOJJAT: 	No, no, no. 

	

5 
	

THE DEFENDANT: sorry. 

	

6 
	

THE COURT: Anything further? 

	

7 
	

MS. BONAVENTURE: No, Your Honor. 

	

8 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: Let me just finish up. 

	

10 
	

MS. HOJJAT: 	Oh, sorry. 

	

11 
	

THE COURT: So i.dotYt think I changed 

12 	anything else. I then picked up where the 

13 	instructions from the State, you know, continued 

	

14 	after the charging statement, which is with all of 

15 	the other sort of how-to's for the jury, and 

	

16 	deleted those ones that we discussed that I would 

	

17 
	

delete. I don't believe I made any other 

	

18 
	adjustments to the remainder of the instructions. 

	

19 
	

So I'm sorry. Go ahead, Ms. Hojjat. 

	

20 
	

MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, the defense's 

	

21 
	

only concern is -- and I don't have a verdict form 

	

22 
	

here, so I'm not sure if Your Honor left count 2 on 

	

23 
	

the verdict form. 

	

24 
	

THE COURT; No, I did not. 

	

25 
	

MS. HOJJAT: I think the defense, at this 
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1 	point, needs to object to that just because we need 

	

2 	a verdict from the jury on that count in order for 

	

3 	any sort of jeopardy or anything like that to attach 

	

4 	to that count. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: The directed verdict doesn't 

	

6 	suffice71 

	

7 	 ms. HOJJAT: Your Honor, unfortunately, 

	

8 	per statute, and there's case law on this 

	

9 	unfortunately because the state has appealed 

	

10 	directed verdicts before, and the Nevada Supreme 

	

11 	court has stated that they will consider the appeal 

	

12 	if there's no verdict from a jury. 

	

13 	 so if the State were to prefer to appeal 

	

14 	it, if the jury has not rendered a verdict, 

	

15 	Your Honor's verdict unfortunately would not allow 

	

16 	jeopardy to attach. so basically the defendant 

	

17 	would be prejudiced by not having the jury return a 

	

18 	verdict on this. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: I'm just not sure what that 

	

20 	looks like, ms. Hojjat, because obviously, I'm going 

	

21 	to indicate in the instructions that the 

	

22 	instructions are inclusive only of Count 1 and 

	

23 	instructed on the law as to count 1 because Count 2 

	

24 	has been determined by the court that we will not be 

	

25 	proceeding. I don't know how to then in turn -- 
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1 	 what am i supposed to tell the jury, just 

	

2 	check not guilty on the box? I mean -- 

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

4 	 MR. COOPER: I don't think that's 

	

5 	appropriate, Your Honor. 

6 	 THE COURT: I've never had occasion to 

	

7 	understand that to be the process. 

	

8 	 MR. COOPER: And in order to alleviate any 

	

9 	appellate issues, I can stipulate right now on the 

	

10 	record that the state is not going to be challenging 

	

11 	a directed verdict on count 2. so that's not going 

	

12 	to be an issue going forward in the future. And 

	

13 	 stipulate to that right now that we're not 

	

14 	going to challenge any issues regarding the count 2 

	

15 	and the directed verdict. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Well, I mean, we have that in 

	

17 	the record. 	I have to look into this, Nis. Hojjat. 

	

18 	Right now, obviously the verdict form is not going 

	

19 	to go to the jurors until they deliberate. 

	

20 	 MS. HOJJAT: 	Right. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: And once we instruct and once 

	

22 	you get started with your closings, 	send a 

	

23 	heads-up to my law clerk to see what she can find, 

	

24 	and ill go and check it out and we'll see, and 

	

25 	ultimately the verdict form we provide to them will 
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1 	be the one that we think we need to provide to them. 

	

2 	But we do have that stipulation, for the record, at 

	

3 	this time, if we needed it. 

	

4 	 ms. HOJJAT: Thank you. I would ask for 

	

5 	one further stipulation from the state then. In the 

	

6 	event that this case -- that we receive a not -- we 

	

7 	receive a guilty verdict as to Count 1, it goes up 

	

8 	on appeal, for some reason, if the case were to be 

	

9 	reversed and come back, we would also want a 

	

10 	stipulation that count 2 will not, at that time, be 

	

11 	added if we somehow end up on in a retrial on this 

	

12 	case. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: I'm not sure how you'd be able 

	

14 	to. But I -- is the state willing to make that 

	

15 	stipulation? 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, not on the -- 

	

17 	correct. The State will not proceed on Count 2, 

	

18 	again based on the same exact facts that we've 

	

19 	alleged in this count where the jeopardy would have 

	

20 	attached. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

22 	 Ms. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

23 	 'THE COURT: I think we got that covered 

	

24 	then I think I appreciate. I still will look into 

	

25 	it, regardless. 	Like I said, my understanding of 
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1 	how we proceed would not include providing that to 

2 	the verdict form to the jury in that fashion and 

	

3 	directing them how to fill it out. But we'll look 

	

4 	into that. 

	

5 	 Otherwise, are we ready for the jurors to 

	

6 	return? 

	

7 	 MS. HO3JAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: okay. Don't forget I'm going 

	

9 	to ask the defense whether or not they -- 

	

10 	 MS. HOJJAT: Oh, yes, that we rest. Yes, 

	

11 	Your Honor. 

	

12 	 (The following proceedings were held in the 

	

13 	presence of the jury:) 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

15 	 Thank you 	Go ahead and please do take 

	

16 	your seats as you reach them. Please make sure that 

	

17 	your cell phones are off or silenced. 

	

18 	 Resuming the trial in the matter of 

	

19 	State of Nevada vs. Steve McNeil. 

	

20 	 Don't worry, jurors, that podium will not 

	

21 	be remaining there for very long. Accept that it's 

	

22 	in your way. 

	

23 	 At this time, before we took the recess, 

	

24 	the state had rested. I ask, at this time now, if 

	

25 	the defense -- how the defense would like to 
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1 	proceed. 

	

2 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: Your Honor, the defense 

	

3 	would rest. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. Accepting that the 

	

5 	defense has also rested their case, I will now 

	

6 	proceed to instruct you on the law. 

	

7 
	

And actually, I'm going to ask you, 

	

8 
	

Mr. cooper, if you don't mind, can you assist us by 

	

9 
	

moving that podium. 

	

10 
	

MR. COOPER: NO problem, Your Honor. 

	

11 
	

THE COURT: I was thinking that you would 

	

12 
	

use it, obviously in your closings. But as I need 

	

13 
	

to instruct the jury first, let me do that without 

	

14 
	

it being in the way of us. 

	

15 
	

So at this time, Ladies and Gentleman, the 

	

16 
	

State and the defense have both rested their case. 

	

17 
	

And as I told you at the beginning of this trial on 

	

18 
	

Monday, the Court would need to instruct you on the 

	

19 
	

law to apply to the facts and the evidence as you 

	

20 
	

find it to be. what I'm going to do now is read you 

	

21 
	

these instructions. 

	

22 
	

YoU do not have a copy set at this time. 

	

23 
	

But when you go to deliberate, you will, in fact, 

	

24 
	

have a copy set at that time, each and every one of 

	

25 
	

you, so that you can refer to it. I do want to 
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1 	remind you, however, that, again, it's not about 

	

2 	necessarily -- and there's some instructions that go 

	

3 	to this point -- singling out any one instruction or 

4 	overemphasizing any one instruction but just having 

	

5 	them available to you should you have any need for 

	

6 	clarification. Okay? 

	

7 
	

so at this time, Ladies and Gentlemen of 

	

8 
	

the jury, it is now my duty as judge to instruct you 

	

9 
	

in the law that applies to this case. It is your 

	

10 
	

duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to 

	

11 
	

apply the rules of law to the facts as you find them 

	

12 	from the evidence. YOU must not be concerned with 

	

13 	the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these 

	

14 	instructions. 

	

15 	 Regardless of any opinion you may have as 

	

16 	to what the law ought to be, it would be a violation 

	

17 	of your oath to base a verdict upon any other view 

	

18 	of the law than that given in the instructions of 

	

19 	the Court. If in these instructions, any rule, 

	

20 	direction, or idea is repeated or stated in 

	

21 	different ways, no emphasis thereon is intended by 

	

22 	me and none may be inferred by you. 

	

23 	 For that reason, you are not to single out 

	

24 	any certain sentence or any individual point or 

	

25 	instruction and ignore the others, but you are to 
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1 	consider all the instructions as a whole and regard 

2 	each in the light of all the others. The order in 

3 	which the instructions are given has no significance 

4 	as to their relative importance. 

	

5 	 An Information is but a formal method of 

6 	accusing a person of a crime and is not of itself 

	

7 	any evidence of his guilt. In this case, it is 

	

8 	charged in a Second Amended Information that, on or 

	

9 	between the 14th day of December 2012 and the 10th 

	

10 	day of March 2014, within the county of Clark, 

	

11 	state of Nevada, Steven Dell McNeil, the defendant 

	

12 	above named, committed the crimes of -- "crime," 

	

13 	sorry -- a violation of lifetime supervision by 

	

14 	convicted sex offender, category B felony, 

	

15 	NRS 213.1243-53481 as follows: 

	

16 	 count 1, violation of lifetime supervision 

	

17 	by convicted sex offender. Did then and there 

	

18 	willfully, unlawfully, knowingly, and feloniously 

	

19 	violate the conditions of a lifetime supervision 

	

20 	agreement signed by the defendant in 2007 and/or 

	

21 	November 2012. Pursuant to having, in 2004, had 

	

22 	been convicted of a sex offense that requires 

	

23 	lifetime supervision in the Eighth judicial District 

	

24 	Court, Clark county, Nevada, to wit: By refusing to 

	

25 	submit to a urinalysis, failing to report, failing 
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1 	to have his residence approved, failing to cooperate 

2 	with his supervising officer, failing to maintain 

3 	full-time employment, failing to abide by a curfew, 

4 	and/or was terminated from his sex offender 

	

5 	counseling. 

	

6 	 It is the duty of the jury to apply the 

	

7 	rules of law contained in these instructions to the 

	

8 	facts of the case and determine whether or not the 

	

9 	defendant is guilty of the offense charged. 

	

10 	 I will note that the count 2 has been 

	

11 	removed from these instructions, and you will not be 

	

12 	given instructions on the law as to Count 2 because 

	

13 	you are not being asked, at this time, to return a 

	

14 	verdict as to Count 2. The court has determined 

	

15 	that that count will not proceed further in this 

	

16 	trial. so  you're only directed to return a verdict 

	

17 	as to count 1, and these following instructions will 

	

18 	be as to count 1. 

	

19 	 Sex offender is defined as a person who, 

	

20 	after July 1, 1956, is or has been convicted of a 

	

21 	statutorily categorized sexual offense. A sex 

	

22 	offender under a sentence of lifetime supervision 

	

23 	who commits a violation of a condition imposed on 

	

24 	him pursuant to the program of lifetime supervision 

	

25 	is guilty of violation of lifetime supervision by 
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1 	convicted sex offender. 

2 	 A sex offender who has no fixed residence 

	

3 	shall at least every 30 days, notify the local law 

	

4 	enforcement agency in whose jurisdiction the sex 

	

5 	offender resides if there are any changes in the 

6 	address of any dwelling that is providing the sex 

	

7 	offender temporary shelter or any changes in 

	

8 	location where the sex offender habitually sleeps. 

	

9 	 TO constitute the crime charged, there must 

	

10 	exist a union or joint operation of an act forbidden 

	

11 	by law and an intent to do the act. The intent with 

	

12 	which the act is done is shown by the facts and 

	

13 	circumstances surrounding the case. Do not confuse 

	

14 	intent with motive. motive is what prompts a person 

	

15 	to act. "Intent" refers only to the state of mind 

	

16 	with which the act is done. 

	

17 	 motive is not an element of the crime 

	

18 	charged, and the State is not required to prove a 

	

19 	motive on the part of the defendant in order to 

	

20 	convict; however, you may consider evidence of 

	

21 	motive or lack of motive as a circumstance in the 

	

22 	case. The intent of a person or the knowledge that 

	

23 	a person possesses at any given time may not 

	

24 	ordinarily be proved directly because there is no 

	

25 	way of directly scrutinizing the workings of the 
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1 	human mind. 

	

2 	 In determining the issue of what a person 

	

3 	knew or what a person intended at a particular time, 

	

4 	you may consider any statements made or acts done by 

	

5 	that person and all other facts and circumstances 

	

6 	received in evidence which may aid in your 

	

7 	determination of that person's knowledge or intent. 

	

8 	 You may infer, but you are certainly not 

	

9 	required to infer, that a person intends the natural 

	

10 	and probable consequences of acts knowingly done. 

	

11 	It is entirely up to you, however, to decide what 

	

12 	facts to find from the evidence received during thi
s 

	

13 	trial. 

	

14 	 The defendant is presumed innocent unless 

	

15 	the contrary is proved. This presumption places 

	

16 	upon the state the burden of proving, beyond a 

	

17 	reasonable doubt, every material element of the 

	

18 	crime charged and that the defendant is the pers
on 

	

19 	who committed the offense. 

	

20 	 A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. 

	

21 	It is not mere possible doubt but is such a 
doubt as 

	

22 	would govern or control a person in the more wei
ghty 

	

23 	affairs of life. If the minds of the jurors, 
after 

	

24 	the entire comparison and consideration of all o
f 

	

25 	the evidence, are in such a condition that the
y can 
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1 	say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of• 

	

2 	the charge, there is not a reasonable doubt. 

	

3 	 Doubt, to be reasonable, must be actual, 

	

4 	not mere possibility or speculation. If you have a 

	

5 	reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the defendant, 

	

6 	he is entitled to a verdict of not guilty. The 

	

7 	evidence which you are to consider in this case 

consists of the testimony of the witnesses, the 

	

9 	exhibits, and any facts admitted or agreed to by 

	

10 	counsel. 

	

11 	 There are two types of evidence, direct and 

	

12 	circumstantial. Direct evidence is the testimony of 

	

13 	a person who claims to have personal knowledge of 

	

14 	the commission of the crime which has been charged, 

	

15 	such as an eyewitness. circumstantial evidence is 

	

16 	the proof of a chain of facts and circumstances 

	

17 	which tend to show whether the defendant is guilty 

	

18 	or not guilty. 

	

19 	 The law makes no distinction between the 

	

20 	weight to be given either direct or circumstantial 

	

21 	evidence. Therefore, all of the evidence in the 

	

22 	case, including the circumstantial evidence, should 

	

23 	be considered by you in arriving at your verdict. 

	

24 	statements, arguments, and opinions of counsel are 

	

25 	not evidence in the case. However, if the attorneys 
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1 	stipulate to the existence of a fact, you must 

	

2 	accept the stipulation as evidence and regard that 

	

3 	fact as proved. 

	

4 	 You must not speculate to be true any 

	

5 	insinuations suggested by a question asked a 

	

6 	witness. A question is not evidence and may be 

	

7 	considered only as it supplies meaning to the 

	

8 	answer. You must disregard any evidence to which 

an objection was sustained by the Court and any 

	

10 	evidence ordered stricken by the court. Anything 

	

11 	you may have seen or heard outside the courtroom is 

	

12 	not evidence and must also be disregarded. 

	

13 	 The credibility or believability of a 

	

14 	witness should be determined by his manner upon the 

	

15 	stand, his relationship to the parties, his fears, 

	

16 	motives, interests or feelings, his opportunity to 

	

17 	have observed the matter to which he testified, the 

	

18 	reasonableness of his statements, and the strength 

	

19 	or weakness of his recollections. 

	

20 	 If you believe that a witness has lied 

	

21 	about any material fact in the case, you may 

	

22 	disregard the entire testimony of that witness or 

	

23 	any portion of his testimony which is not proved by 

	

24 	other evidence. 

	

25 	 It is a constitutional right of a defendant 

535 



140 

1 	in a criminal trial that he may not be compelled to 

	

2 	testify. Thus the decision as to whether he should 

	

3 	testify is left to the defendant on the advice of 

	

4 	counsel and counsel of his attorney. You must not 

	

5 	draw any inference of guilt from the fact that he 

	

6 	does not testify, nor should this fact be discussed 

	

7 	by you or enter into your deliberations in any way. 

	

8 	 Although your verdict must be unanimous as 

	

9 	to a charge, all 12 jurors do not have to agree on 

	

10 	the theory of criminal liability under which guilt 

	

11 	is established. Therefore, even if you cannot agree 

	

12 	on the theory of criminal liability, as long as each 

	

13 	of you believes beyond a reasonable doubt that the 

	

14 	defendant is guilty, you should return a verdict of 

	

15 	guilty as to that charge. 

	

16 	 Although you are to consider only the 

	

17 	evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you must 

	

18 	bring to the consideration of the evidence your 

	

19 	everyday common sense and judgment as reasonable men 

	

20 	and women. Thus you are not limited solely to what 

	

21 	you see and hear as the witnesses testify. You may 

	

22 	draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which 

	

23 	you feel are justified in the light of your common, 

	

24 	experience, keeping in mind that such inferences 

	

25 	should not be based on speculation or guess. 

536 



141 

I 	 A verdict may never be influenced by 

	

2 	sympathy, prejudice, or public opinion. Your 

	

3 	decision should be the product of sincere judgment 

	

4 	and sound discretion in accordance with these rules 

	

5 	of law. 

	

6 	 In your deliberations, you may not discuss 

	

7 	your consider the subject of punishment as that is a 

	

8 	matter which lies solely with the Court. Your duty 

	

9 	is confined to the determination of the guilt of 

	

10 	whether the defendant is guilty or not guilty. when 

	

11 	you retire to consider your verdict, you must select 

	

12 	one of your member to act as foreperson who will 

	

13 	preside over your deliberation and will be your 

	

14 	spokesperson here in court. 

	

15 	 During your deliberation, you will have all 

	

16 	the exhibits which were admitted into evidence, 

	

17 	these written instructions, and forms of verdict, 

	

18 	which have been prepared for your convenience. Your 

	

19 	verdict must be unanimous. As soon as you have 

	

20 	agreed upon a verdict, have it signed and dated by 

	

21 	your foreperson, and then return with it to this 

	

22 	room. 

	

23 	 If during your deliberation you should 

	

24 	desire to be further informed on any point of law or 

	

25 	hear again any portions of the testimony, you must 
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1 	reduce your request to writing signed by the 

	

2 	foreperson. The officer will then return you to 

	

3 	court where the information sought will be given 

	

4 	you in the presence of and after notice to the 

	

5 	District Attorney and the defendant and his counsel. 

	

6 	 Read-backs of testimony are time consuming 

	

7 	and are not encouraged unless you deem it a 

	

8 	necessity. should you require a read-back, you must 

	

9 	carefully describe the testimony to be read back so 

	

10 	that the court reporter can arrange her notes. 

	

11 	Remember the court is not at liberty to supplement 

	

12 	the evidence. 

	

13 	 Now you will listen to the arguments of 

	

14 	counsel who will endeavor to aid you to reach a 

	

15 	proper verdict by refreshing in your minds the 

	

16 	evidence and by showing the application thereof to 

	

17 	the law. But whatever counsel may say, you will 

	

18 	bear in mind that it is your duty to be governed in 

	

19 	your deliberation by the evidence, as you understand 

	

20 	it to be and remember it to be, and by the law as 

	

21 	given to you in these instructions with the sole, 

	

22 	fixed, and steadfast purpose of doing equal and 

	

23 	exact justice between the defendant and State of 

	

24 	Nevada. 

	

25 	 And the instructions have been signed by me 
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1 	and dated by me today's date. 

	

2 	 Again, you will each have a copy of these 

	

3 	instructions to refer to as need. 

	

4 	 And at this time, i will invite the state 

	

5 	to make closing remarks. 

	

6 	 MR. COOPER: Thank you, YOur Honor. 

7 

	

8 	 STATE'S CLOSING ARGUMENT 

9 

	

10 	 MR. COOPER: Ladies and Gentlemen, this is 

	

11 	not a difficult case. This is truly a case of the 

	

12 	facts speak for themselves. The facts, the 

	

13 	testimony of the witnesses and the exhibits that 

	

14 	have been admitted, those are the facts. It is my 

	

15 	job during closing argument to help you apply the 

	

16 	facts to the law. And I submit to you that once you 

	

17 	apply the facts to the law, you will return with the 

	

18 	only reasonable verdict, and that is a verdict of 

	

19 	guilty on the charge of violation of lifetime 

	

20 	supervision. 

	

21 	 Every criminal prosecution, the State must 

	

22 	prove two things: The state must prove that a crime 

	

23 	was committed, and the state must prove that the 

	

24 	defendant is the one that committed the crime. And 

	

25 	count -- Number 2 there is not really in question 

1 
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1 	here. I mean, the defendant is the one that was 

	

2 	being supervised. YOU heard from officer Mangan; 

	

3 	you heard from sergeant zanna; you heard from the 

4 	Marcia Lee, who was actually supervising him while 

	

5 	he was on his sex offender counseling. That's not 

	

6 	in question here 	we know who committed the crime. 

	

7 	 The state must prove these things beyond a 

	

8 	reasonable doubt. Guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. 

	

9 	we've all heard it in TV or in the movies. what 

	

10 	does that mean? It does not mean all doubt, merely 

	

11 	reasonable. For a doubt to be reasonable, it must 

	

12 	be actual, not based on just mere possibility or 

	

13 	speculation. 

	

14 	 The state must also prove that the 

	

15 	defendant intended to act, and this is one of your 

	

16 	jury instructions, and the judge has already read it 

	

17 	for you. And it says, "To constitute the crimes 

	

18 	charged, there must exist a union or joint operation 

	

19 	of an act forbidden by law and intent to do that 

	

20 	act." when we're talking about intent, it's very 

	

21 	narrow, only the defendant's state of mind when he 

	

22 	acted. 

	

23 	 He didn't just trip and fall and violate 

	

24 	his lifetime supervision. That's what we're talking 

	

25 	about. He knew what he was doing. He was acting on 
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1 
1 	purpose. The intent with which an act is done is 

2 	shown by the facts and circumstances surrounding the 

3 	case. so what does that mean? It means you can use 

4 	all the facts, all the exhibits, the testimony of 

	

5 	the witnesses in order to determine if you think the 

6 	defendant knew what he was doing or he just tripped 

7 	and fell. 

	

8 	 violation of lifetime supervision. Let's 

	

9 	get down to it. This is one of your jury 

	

10 	instructions, and the judge read it for you, and 

	

11 	it's the law on what a violation is. And I'm not 

	

12 	going to bore you because the jury -- the 

	

13 	instruction has already been read to you. But I do 

	

14 	want to point out a couple key points. 

	

15 	 In order to get a violation, you need to 

	

16 	have a sex offender. The defendant is a sex 

	

17 	offender. we need to have a violation of a 

	

18 	condition, and we'll talk about that in a moment, 

	

19 	but we have that here too, and we need to have a 

	

20 	program of lifetime supervision, and the defendant 

	

21 	is on lifetime supervision, we have those three 

	

22 	things, guilty. 

	

23 	 so let's talk about the violations, and I 

	

24 	don't know if you can read those because they're a 

	

25 	little blurry. 	so I'll read them a little bit. 
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1 	These are just little tidbits of the agreements that 

2 	you'll have when you go back to deliberate, and 

3 	there's three of them, and I encourage you to look 

4 	at them. And you'll see these instructions to the 

	

5 	defendant as conditions of what he needs to do while 

6 	on the lifetime supervision. 

	

7 	 And the first is these reportings/relieves: 

	

8 	You're required to submit a monthly report. The 

	

9 	report will be a true and correct. In addition, you 

	

10 	shall report in person as directed by your 

	

11 	supervising officer, and some other things that 

	

12 	don't really apply in this case. 

	

13 	 YOU heard from officer Mangan. she didn't 

	

14 	see the defendant for over seven months. From 

	

15 	August of 2013 to march of 2014, while he was still 

	

16 	on lifetime supervision, while he was still her 

	

17 	lifetime supervisionee or offender, he didn't call. 

	

18 	she went to go look for him. She couldn't find him. 

	

19 	He didn't go to P & P to look for her, didn't say 

	

20 	anything to her. she was unable to find him. He 

	

21 	was an absconder, as she said. Got that one right 

	

22 
	

there. He wasn't reporting. 

	

23 
	

The next one is residence. And it says, 

	

24 
	

"You shall reside at a location only if that has 

	

25 	been approved by your supervising officer. YOU 
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1 	shall not change your place of residence without 

	

2 	first obtaining permission from your supervising 

3 	officer." well, we have this one too. Again, he 

4 	heard from officer Mangan as she talked about she 

	

5 	went to the area he said he was living. 

6 	 She used the map that he gave her. she 

	

7 	used the map to try to find him. she looked for 

	

8 	over an hour on two separate occasions. Couldn't 

	

9 	find him. wasn't there. She actually surveyed the 

	

10 	area too. Never found him because he wasn't there. 

	

11 	Got that one too. 

	

12 	 Next it's titled "controlled substance" but 

	

13 	essentially says that you're not supposed to use 

	

14 	controlled substance and you're supposed to submit 

	

15 	to periodic testing to determine whether or not you 

	

16 	are using controlled substances. well, on this one, 

	

17 	we heard from Officer Mangan again. we also heard 

	

18 	from sergeant zanna. 

	

19 	 And do you recall what Officer mangan said? 

	

20 	she tried to give him a urinalysis, a drug test, and 

	

21 	he refused. It says right there that he has to 

	

22 	submit to the testing, but he refused. He said, 

	

23 	"I'm not going to do it." I mean, she can't make 

	

24 	him. she can't physically force him. He didn't do 

	

25 	it. Got that one easy. 
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1 	 The next one is: You're supposed to 

	

2 	cooperate with your supervising officer, and your 

	

3 	behavior should justify the opportunity granted to 

4 	you by this lifetime supervision. Again, we heard 

	

5 	from officer Mangan as she went into detail about 

	

6 	her interactions with the defendant and about -- and 

	

7 	particularly one interaction that he had with her. 

	

8 	she was calling him in June and trying to get him to 

	

9 	come in for his July report. 

	

10 	 And do you recall what she said? she said 

	

11 	she had to call him three different times because 

	

12 	twice he hung up on her. That's not really being 

	

13 	cooperative. He also, the final time when he 

	

14 	actually picked up that phone, said F-U, hung up 

	

15 	again. I don't know how that can be cooperative. 

	

16 	 curfew. officer Mangan talked to you about 

	

17 	how in march, she wanted to make sure that she was 

	

18 	going to know where he was going to be at a certain 

	

19 	time because she wanted to be able to check in on 

	

20 	him and see what he was doing, and she gave him a 

	

21 	5:00 pm. to 5:00 a.m. curfew. she talked about 

	

22 	that. Defendant came back the next month and said, 

	

23 	"Hey, it's kind of hot out here at 5:00 p.m." 

	

24 	 officer Mangan said, "You know, you're 

	

25 	right, it is hot. 	give it to you from 

544 



149 

1 	8:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m. so you don't have to actually 

2 	be at the area you told me you were going to be 

	

3 	until 8:00 p.m." She went out there after 

	

4 	8:00 p.m. I think she said about 9:45 or so when 

	

5 	she went out there she and surveyed it for an hour. 

	

6 	when she was driving around the alleys looking for 

	

7 	this defendant, he was nowhere to be found, nowhere 

	

8 	in that area. 

	

9 	 That's violation of his curfew. Not only 

	

10 	did when he go into Sergeant zanna's office and they 

	

11 	were talking about, you know, "You're not really 

	

12 	compliant with this curfew." He said, "I'm not 

	

13 	going to be on a curfew. I'm not going to do it. 

	

14 	I'm not going to be a dog on a leash." Exact words. 

	

15 	 counseling. You heard from Marcia Lee, and 

	

16 	it's pretty clear he got terminated from counseling. 

	

17 	He's supposed to do counseling and he was terminated 

	

18 	from counseling. That is a violation of lifetime 

	

19 	supervision. It's that easy. That's it. just that 

	

20 	alone is enough. YOU heard from Marcia Lee. She 

	

21 	explained why she had to terminate him. She 

	

22 	explained when he was terminated, how long he was in 

	

23 	the program, what the program consisted of, and that 

	

24 	he was making little to no progress and he was 

	

25 	terminated. That alone is enough. 
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1 	 I'm not talking about everything on the 

	

2 	screen, just one of those is enough. Then we have 

	

3 	the employment violation, but I'm not really going 

	

4 	to get into that. It's hard to find jobs. And easy 

	

5 	to understand, all violations are "and/or." That 

	

6 	means one violation is enough to be found guilty of 

	

7 	violation of lifetime supervision. 

	

8 	 Just one. Counseling or curfew or not 

	

9 	cooperating or not having the right residence or not 

	

10 	submitting to the U.A., urinalysis; or not 

	

11 	reporting, any one. And in your jury instructions, 

	

12 	you'll see this instruction. The judge already read 

	

13 	it to you. It talks about whether or not everyone 

	

14 	has to agree on which theory in which he's guilty 

	

15 	under. 

	

16 	 so if six people think that, well, he's 

	

17 	guilty because he got terminated from counseling and 

	

18 	then six different people think that he's guilty 

	

19 	because he wasn't reporting, that's it. He's done. 

	

20 	He's guilty. All 12 of you don't have to all agree 

	

21 	on counseling or all agree on reporting. You just 

	

22 	have to agree that he did one of those. That's it. 

	

23 	 And this is another portion of that form 

	

24 	that the defendant signed, and you'll have it again 

	

25 	when you go back to deliberate, and this is just one 
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1 	of them. we went through a little bit. There's 

	

2 	three different forms and three different dates, and 

	

3 	you'll have them all. And x want to focus on that 

4 	bold part, and it's bold for a reason. 	I didn't 

	

5 	make it bold. That's how it looks it looks on the 

	

6 	actual form. 

	

7 	 And it says, "I fully understand the 

	

8 	penalties involved should 1, in any manner, violate 

	

9 	the foregoing conditions." "1 fully understand the 

	

10 	penalties involved should 1, in any manner, violate 

	

11 	the foregoing conditions." well, he did. He did 

	

12 	violate them. He indicated he knew what was going 

	

13 	to happen when he violated them. This is a piece of 

	

14 	your verdict form. You'll have this, again, when 

	

15 	you go back to deliberate. And I submit to you that 

	

16 	the only reasonable verdict is a verdict of guilty. 

	

17 	 This is, again, I know in your jury 

	

18 	instructions, and it's what we refer to as the 

	

19 	"common-sense instruction," and the judge read it to 

	

20 	you. so I'm not going to read the whole thing. But 

	

21 	I do need you to understand that you must bring to 

	

22 	the consideration of the evidence your everyday 

	

23 	common sense and judgment of reasonable men and 

	

24 	women. You may draw reasonable inferences from the 

	

25 	evidence which you feel are justified in the light 
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1 	of common experience. This just means don't leave 

2 	your common sense at the courthouse steps. 

3 	 Based on the evidence, we know that the 

4 	defendant violated the terms of his lifetime 

	

5 	supervision agreement, and it's that simple. And, 

6 	again, this isn't a who-done-it. we know who did 

	

7 	what. 

	

8 	 And finally, this is your duty as a juror , 

	

9 	and the judge read this. "It is the duty of the 

	

10 
	

jury to apply the law contained to the facts of the 

	

11 	case and determine whether or not the defendant is 

	

12 	guilty of the offenses charged." And I submit to 

	

13 	you that the defendant is guilty of violation of 

	

14 	lifetime supervision under one of seven different 

	

15 	theories, but you only have to pick one. 

	

16 	 Thank you. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Ms. Bonaventure. 

	

18 	 BONAVENTURE: Thank you, Judge. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: We didn't turn off the -- can 

	

20 	you take down your -- 

	

21 	 MR. COOPER: Can I just turn the TV off. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: That's fine. 

	

23 	 MR. COOPER: It might make it easier. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

25 	 Please proceed. 
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1 

2 	 DEFENSE CLOSING ARGUMENT 

3 

4 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: Sex offender, sex 

	

5 	offender, sex offender. It sounds bad. I know it, 

6 	you know it, the D.A. knows it; and we know the D.A. 

	

7 	knows it because he spared absolutely no opportunity 

	

8 	to throw it around to get it in your head, and the 

reason he's done that is because he wants you to 

	

10 	hear that word. He wants you to hear it over and 

	

11 	over again in your head so that when you leave here 

	

12 	and you go back to deliberate that, if you've left 

	

13 	here with just one thought in your head, it's sex 

	

14 	offender, sex offender. 

	

15 	 He wants you to convict Steve based on the 

	

16 	fact that he's a convicted sex offender, but that 

	

17 	conviction all of us already know. The judge has 

	

18 	told us it's in the past. Nobody is to consider it 

	

19 	because what we're here for today are violations. 

	

20 	Because Steve is on lifetime supervision, he's 

	

21 	assigned to follow rules, and you're here to decide 

	

22 	whether or not he broke those rules, nothing else. 

	

23 	 so just to be clear, because I don't want 

	

24 	this nagging anybody in the back of their head when 

	

25 	you go back there, nothing that's decided in this 

549 



154 

1 	trial -- whether you go back there and you say 

	

2 	guilty, whether you go back there and you say not 

	

3 	guilty -- i don't want you to be confused, whatever 

4 	happens, whatever you decide, Steve is going to 

	

5 	remain on lifetime supervision. That does not 

6 	change. 

	

7 	 Now, you've seen the state's case, and make 

	

8 	no mistake that officer Mangan, that's the state's 

	

9 	star witness. All right. The State's asking you to 

	

10 	find Steve guilty based on her testimony, officer 

	

11 	Mangan, who is inexperienced. she's overzealous; 

	

12 	she's under prepared, and she is unreliable. 

	

13 	 NOW, I'm sure you've gotten the sense that 

	

14 	steve's not -- he doesn't have the easiest 

	

15 	personality in the world. He's a little bit 

	

16 	difficult, to say the least. You heard the 

	

17 	testimony officer Mangan had words with him at 

	

18 	several times. In fact, when supervisor zanna took 

	

19 	the stand, you heard that while they were in his 

	

20 	office, they're shooting NRS statutes at each other:
 

	

21 	what's the law, who knows the law; who knows the law 

	

22 	better. so  suffice it to say Steve's not the 

	

23 	easiest person to get along with. 

	

24 	 ms. Hojjat, my co-counsel, she told you 

	

25 	this case is about a personality conflict, and it 
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1 	is. The State wants you to focus on 2013, 

	

2 	specifically five months. As Ms. Hojjat told you in 

3 	opening, you have to take a step back from 2013. 

4 	You have to get a good idea of the big picture here 

	

5 	because Steve was in lifetime supervision starting 

6 	in 2007. He was on lifetime supervision for over 

	

7 	five years before he was supervised by Officer 

	

8 	Mangan for five months. There's a huge discrepancy 

	

9 	in that time period. 

	

10 	 So we have to put those five months into 

	

11 	context to get a better picture. So yep, Steve was 

	

12 	placed on lifetime supervision in 2007, and over 

	

13 	those five years before Officer mangan became his 

	

14 	lifetime supervision officer, he was getting it 

	

15 	done. He was trudging along. He was reporting 

	

16 	every month to P & P. He had never had one 

	

37 	violation. He had never been brought up on charges 

	

18 	before for violation of lifetime supervision. 

	

19 	 In the years before Officer Mangan, we all 

	

20 	know that Steve had various supervising officers. 

	

21 	He had four, in fact. And now Officer Mangan did 

	

22 	testify that officers get changed for various 

	

23 	reasons, various administrative reasons, and that's 

	

24 	not a reason to hold it against Steve. There's 

	

25 	nothing to indicate that he did anything wrong to 
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1 	get supervisors changed. Supervisors change, and 

	

2 	that's just the course of their employment. 

	

3 	 During those five years, you heard that at 

	

4 	times, he was employed; at times, he was unemployed. 

	

5 	During that period of time, he was submitting to 

	

6 	urinary analysis tests. He'd been reporting monthly 

	

7 	without fail. He'd been doing everything he was 

	

8 	supposed to be doing. In fact, before Officer 

	

9 	Mangan became his supervising officer, he was even
 

	

10 	able to maintain a stable residence for about five 

	

11 	years before becoming homeless. 

	

12 	 The most important thing to remember about 

	

13 	those five previous years is that, even with all 

	

14 	that he had never, never been charged with a 

	

15 	violation of his lifetime supervision. So when we 

	

16 	look at those five years, you see that there were a 

	

17 	lot of people moving in and out of his lifetime 

	

18 	supervision. But there was one constant, and tha
t 

	

19 	constant was Steve. 

	

20 	 He's a little bit older. 	He's probably set 

	

21 	in his ways, and Steve was the same difficult person 

	

22 	that he is today. He has never had a major issue in 

	

23 	the years before Officer mangan. He was -- the sam
e 

	

24 	difficult person he is today, he was that same 

	

25 	difficult person five years ago. He was that sam
e 
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1 	difficult person with supervising officer number 1, 

	

2 	number 2, number 3, number 4, and never had an issue 

	

3 	before up until Officer Mangan became his lifetime 

	

4 	supervision officer. 

	

5 	 So as I keep telling you, in march 2013, 

	

6 	the only thing that changed with his lifetime 

	

7 	supervision is that Officer Mangan became his 

	

8 	lifetime supervision officer, and officer Mangan is 

	

9 	inexperienced, 	she is overzealous. She's under 

	

10 	prepared, and she is unreliable. She is 

	

11 	inexperienced. we all know that. It was obvious. 

	

12 	She was a rookie. she almost still is a rookie. 

	

13 	 She became his officer in march, 2013. She 

	

14 	was fresh out of the academy. she had just 

	

15 	completed her training. In fact, Steve, she even 

	

16 	testified was one of her first cases. so  suffice it 

	

17 	to say, she didn't have very much experience. 

	

18 	officer Mangan is very overzealous as a new officer, 

	

19 	that's to be expected. But from day 1, she saw 

	

20 	steve as an absconder. 

	

21 	 Steven is a man who had never been charged 

	

22 	with a violation. 	He'd been consistently making his 

	

23 	monthly reports for the whole five years before she 

	

24 	became his probation officer. officer Mangan made 

	

25 	one call to steve's cell phone that didn't go 
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1 	through, and based on that one call that didn't go 

	

2 	through, she marked him a potential absconder. 

	

3 	 She began with this perception of him. She 

	

4 	had already gone into this supervision thinking that 

	

5 	there was going to be a problem. She didn't wait to 

	

6 	see him, to talk to him, to meet with him. She 

	

7 	didn't know him at all. But he was a problem. In 

	

8 	fact, she testified that she was surprised that 

	

9 	steve showed up for his first monthly report, which 

	

10 	actually brings me to my next point that she's under 

	

11 	prepared. 

	

12 	 She actually testified that when she 

	

13 	received Steve's file, she reviewed the prior case 

	

14 	history notes and she reviewed what the other 

	

15 	probation officers had said about Steve; yet she was 

	

16 	surprised that he showed up for monthly visit in 

	

17 	March 2013? A review of the case notes would have 

	

18 	made it clear to her that here is a guy who has not 

	

19 	missed his monthly reports for five years. 

	

20 	 what would lead anybody who had read that 

	

21 	before to think that he would not show up for his 

	

22 	March 2013 monthly report. In fact, it's not 

	

23 	surprising at all that Steve would show up. And the 

	

24 	fact that she jumped to that conclusion, that's a 

	

25 	direct result of her inexperience of the fact that 

554 



159 

1 	she's got an overzealous attitude and the fact that 

	

2 	she is constantly unprepared. Had she been 

3 	prepared, she would have known, but she didn't. So 

4 	she jumped to a conclusion. And that is the exactly 

	

5 	the reason why she is unreliable. 

6 	 In fact, the D.A. couldn't even ignore the 

	

7 	fact that she was unreliable. she admitted to you 

	

8 	on the stand is that she testified one way at this 

	

9 	trial and that she testified a different way at the 

	

10 	preliminary hearing. At preliminary hearing, 

	

11 	officer Mangan testified under oath. she took the 

	

12 	stand. she raised her right hand, and she said, "1 

	

13 	promise to tell the truth." 

	

14 	 She told you that the way she answered the 

	

15 	questions the preliminary hearing, they were 

	

16 	different than what you heard here. But the truth, 

	

17 	the truth never changes. The truth doesn't change 

	

18 	if i ask you a question two months ago or if I ask 

	

19 	you yesterday. The truth remains the same. She 

	

20 	told you it was the first time that she had 

	

21 	testified. But what difference does that make? 

	

22 	Absolutely none. 

	

23 	 Every person who takes that oath is 

	

24 	expected to testify accurately and truthfully, 

	

25 	whether it's the first time they've taken that stand 
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1 	or whether they've taken that stand 100 times. In 

	

2 	fact, you saw yesterday answers like, "I don't 

	

3 	recall," "1 don't know,' I don't -- "I'd have to 

	

4 	look at my notes." They're all perfectly reasonable 

	

5 	responses. If you don't know an answer, you're not 

	

6 	expected to give one. You're not expected to create 

	

7 	an answer or make an answer up. 

	

8 	 She said that her testimony was different 

	

9 	at the preliminary hearing because she didn't hav
e 

	

10 	her notes. well, who had her notes? why didn't sh
e 

	

11 	have her notes? she knew she was testifying. why 

	

12 	didn't she bring them with her to court? she is 

	

13 	constantly unprepared, and that's obvious with the 

	

14 	fact that she continuously was unable to answer 

	

15 	direct questions. 

	

16 	 In fact, several, several occasions during 

	

17 	her testimony yesterday here, I had to show her 

	

18 	notes, and it wasn't a big deal. I showed them to 

	

19 	her when she didn't remember something to refresh 

	

20 	her memory. when she wasn't certain, "I'm not 

	

21 	certain." I gave her her notes. You all saw it. 

	

22 	And even sometimes when she was just flat-out wrong
 

	

23 	and she wasn't testifying accurately, i went, 

	

24 	showed her her notes, and sure enough she was able 

	

25 	to find the answer in her notes. 
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1 	 Now, just for some examples, at preliminary 

	

2 	hearing, I had asked her, and you all already know 

	

3 	this, "Did he ever draw you a map as to where he 

	

4 	actually slept?" Her answer at preliminary hearing 

	

5 	was, "No, he did not draw me a map," So imagine my 

	

6 	shock when heading into trial, we have not just one 

	

7 	map that Steve drew but two maps that he drew her on 

	

8 	two separate occasions. 

	

9 	 The fact remains that Officer mangan's 

	

10 	testimony is unreliable. Her testimony at the 

	

11 	preliminary hearing was unreliable, and her 

	

12 	testimony here at trial was unreliable. Now, 

	

13 	don't want to beat a dead horse here, and I don't 

	

14 	want to go through every single inconsistency that 

	

15 	we heard here in trial yesterday. But one prime 

	

16 	example of just how unreliable her testimony is is 

	

17 	that she had said that she waited seven months to 

	

18 	file charges, the charges that led to this instant 

	

19 	case. 

	

20 
	

she waited seven months. For what reason? 

	

21 
	

To try to contact Steve. To try and to get him in, 

	

22 
	

to try to, I guess figure something out, get him 

	

23 
	

back on track. I don't know. I had asked her, "If 

	

24 
	

you had made those attempts, if you had driven out 

	

25 	there, if you had called him, would those 
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1 	occurrences be noted in your case files?" she said, 

	

2 	"Yes, they would be." 

	

3 	 so i said, "If I showed you your case 

	

4 	notes, would you be able to tell me how many calls 

	

5 	you made and how many times you went out?" And she 

6 	said yes. so  i showed hem to her. She took her 

7 	time; she reviewed her notes, and how many times did 

	

8 	she call Steve in those seven months when she was 

	

9 	purportedly trying to contact him? zero. zero 

	

10 	times. she called him zero times. 

	

11 	 In fact, she said she tried multiple times 

	

12 	to go out and find him where he was reporting to be 

	

13 	living on the corner. How many times did she 

	

14 	actually go out? she went out once. she went out 

	

15 	once in February 2014 to go look for him, two weeks 

	

16 	before she filed the charges in the instant case. 

	

17 	so she was just wrong. she was wrong, and her 

	

18 	testimony is unreliable. 

	

19 	 so for the sake of argument, maybe she 

	

20 	didn't intentionally lie. maybe she's not 

	

21 	intentionally misrepresenting the facts in this 

	

22 	case. I don't know exactly why officer Mangan had 

	

23 	so many issues with her testimony. That's actually 

	

24 	for you to decide. what we all do know is that she 

	

25 	is unexperienced; she is overzealous, under prepared 
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1 	and unreliable. I am asking you to question her 

	

2 	credibility, not only based on the discrepancies 

	

3 	what i pointed out just now but based on the 

	

4 	multiple discrepancies I'm sure you, as witnesses 

	

5 	sitting in the box, saw for yourselves. 

	

6 	 Okay. I'm going to move on. Let's talk 

	

7 	about the charge in the case at this point. He's 

	

8 	being charged with violation of lifetime 

	

9 	supervision. There are seven different reasons that 

	

10 	the State is alleging that he violated his lifetime 

	

11 	supervision, three of which were to have occurred o
n 

	

12 	August 15th: That was refusing to take a urinary 

	

13 	analysis test; refusing to abide by curfew, or 

	

14 	refusing to have a curfew set; failing to cooperate 

	

15 	with the supervising officer. 

	

16 	 The act of saying no is not enough because, 

	

17 	as I told you in this case, we have to put it in 

	

18 	context. Because by this time, August 2013, the 

	

19 	communications between these two had already 

	

20 	deteriorated. They did not have a good workin
g 

	

21 	relationship, to say the very least. officer 

	

22 	Mangan, at that point, had only been his supervisin
g 

	

23 	officer for five months, and a lot had happened in 

	

24 	those five months. 

	

25 	 In fact in march, the first month that he 
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1 	reported with her, she branded him a potential 

	

2 	absconder. she assigned him a curfew. she knew he 

	

3 	was homeless, but she assigned him a curfew to be at 

	

4 	the corner where he is reporting to sleep from 

	

5 	5:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m. 	That's a 12-hour block, 

	

6 	which for a homeless person is unreasonable. 

	

7 	Imagine how hot it is outside here in Las Vegas 

	

8 	sometimes. what if he has to go to the bathroom; 

	

9 	what if he gets hungry, what is he supposed to do? 

	

10 	 In April she threatens him with criminal 

	

11 	charges. she says, "If you don't get your act 

	

12 	together, I'm going to arrest you." This is the 

	

13 	second month she had supervised him. In may, she 

	

14 	had him draw her a map because by that time, she had 

	

15 	tried to go out one time to try to find him standing 

	

16 	on the corner, and she couldn't find him. 

	

17 	 In June -- in June, it was officer white. 

	

18 	we remember, I'm sure, that officer white, there was 

	

19 	one month that she was not his probation -- or 

	

20 	lifetime supervision officer. so  we get to July. 

	

21 	Prior to their July meeting, the D.A. already told 

	

22 	you they had words over the phone. Steve called her 

	

23 	a bad name, we all know that. He comes into the 

	

24 	office, and she arrests him, she arrests him. she 

	

25 	arrests him and charges him with violating his 
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1 	lifetime supervision. This is the first time she's 

	

2 	seen him since that. 

	

3 	 This is the fourth month that she's been 

	

4 	his supervising officer. And keep in mind, he has 

	

5 	been reporting for over five years at this point in 

	

6 	time. she has had him for four months, and she's 

	

7 	already arresting him. Now, I know that all of you 

	

8 	guys remember nothing came of those charges. 

	

9 	Nothing came of those charges. He was released to 

	

10 	the street. Nothing happened. 

	

11 	 But things had already started to escalate 

	

12 	at this point in time, and things further escalated 

	

13 	once the state decided not to file those charges. 

	

14 	she was likely upset. He's more than likely upset 

	

15 	because he's never had any problems with his 

	

16 	lifetime supervision officer; and here, five months 

	

17 	into having this Officer Mangan as his lifetime 

	

18 	supervision officer, he's arrested after basically 

	

19 	five-and--a-half years of reporting; and now he is 

	

20 	being arrested by his P.O. who's only been his P.O. 

	

21 	for five months. 

	

22 	 Neither of them are getting what they want, 

	

23 	at this point, which results in a clash at the next 

	

24 	monthly reporting, which is August 15th. In August 

	

25 	she came in here and she testified that Steve walked 

561 



166 

1 	in; she told him he had to take a U.A., the urinary 

	

2 	analysis, that he refused, and she went and took him 

	

3 	straight up to her supervisor's office, officer 

4 	zanna's office. 

	

5 	 Now, they both testified that oh, he just 

	

6 	refused to take the U.A. and he didn't want to be on 

	

7 	a curfew. But neither of them handed Steve a cup. 

	

8 	Neither of them attempted to put him under a curfew. 

	

9 	The curfew was never set. In fact, there was 

	

10 	already a curfew in place, she testified, and there 

	

11 	was no testimony that he ever broke that curfew. So 

	

12 	by all accounts, he'd been abiding by that curfew. 

	

13 	 And, you know, officer Mangan still wants 

	

14 	to violate him and have him arrested. so  that's all 

	

15 	that happened on August 15th. And don't forget, 

	

16 	even though they're alleging that he violated three 

	

17 	of his conditions on August 15th, he walked out the 

	

18 	door. They didn't arrest him. They didn't cite 

	

19 	him. They did nothing. He walked out the door. 

	

20 	 NOW, another theory of their -- of the 

	

21 	violations is that he failed to report. Now, you 

	

22 	know that he has -- they have to prove that he 

	

23 	intentionally and knowingly failed to report. 

	

24 	However, in late August, you know all know that 

	

25 	Officer Mangan and both -- and Officer zanna, they 
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1 	both testified that they were shown a cease and 

	

2 	Desist letter sent to their offices by steve. 

	

3 	 i know that Officer zanna sat there, he 

	

4 	testified that, "You know what, that means nothing 

	

5 	to me. It didn't relieve steve of any responsibility 

	

6 	for his lifetime supervision. As far as I'm 

	

7 	concerned, nothing changed; everything remained the 

	

8 	same." However, Steve didn't know that. Steve was 

	

9 	now in a bad situation with Officer Mangan, and 

	

10 	after five years of complying with his lifetime 

	

11 	supervision, everything was falling apart. And, 

	

12 	again, the only difference was officer Mangan. 

	

13 	 He sent the cease and Desist letter. And 

	

14 	as we talked about in voir dire, in jury selection 

	

15 	legal issues are very difficult. It's very 

	

16 	difficult for highly educated people to understand 

	

17 	the law, nevermind steve, who has very little access 

	

18 	to things. He's a homeless man. He doesn't have 

	

19 	access to money, and he doesn't have access to 

	

20 	attorneys. 

	

21 	 So Steve did what he thought was right and 

	

22 	sent a cease and Desist letter asking them, "You 

	

23 	know what, just leave me alone. Don't bother me 

	

24 	anymore; I don't want to deal with it," You're 

	

25 	going to see in the exhibits that's going to be wit
h 
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1 	you in the deliberation room. You're going to see 

2 	the attached a ucc filing letter saying that -- 

3 	declaring himself as a corporation. Another legal 

4 	document in there. 

	

5 	 He thought that he had done something to 

6 	comply to actually get P & P off his back. So when 

	

7 	he didn't make those monthly reports anymore, that's 

	

8 	because he thought he didn't have to. In fact, you 

	

9 	already know that officer mangan didn't call him 

	

10 	after August of 2013. officer Mangan didn't go 

	

11 	looking for him. 	By all accounts, Steve didn't 

	

12 	think anyone was looking for him. He thought this 

	

13 	had worked. so  he continued not to report, but he 

	

14 	didn't know that he had to continue to report. He 

	

15 	didn't intentionally fall to report. 

	

16 	 Failing to have his residence approved. 

	

17 	Steve is homeless. Steve does not have a residence. 

	

18 	You're going to see in your jury instructions, the 

	

19 	law says that if a sex offender does not have a 

	

20 	fixed address, they have to register at a street 

	

21 	corner closest to where they habitually sleep. Now, 

	

22 	habitually, "habitually" means regularly. It means 

	

23 	repeatedly. It does not mean always. It means the 

	

24 	place where I go most the time. And there was 

	

25 	actually no evidence proffered by the state that his 
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1 	residence or the street corner he registered at was 

	

2 	disapproved. 

	

3 	 NOW, failing to maintain full-time 

4 	employment. The D.A. himself recognizes that it's 

	

5 	hard to find a job, especially in the current 

6 	economic situation we have found ourselves in the 

	

7 	last practically decade at this point in time. But 

	

8 	what this shows you, it's another indication of the 

	

9 	personal struggle between officer Mangan and Steve. 

	

10 	She's throwing everything in, everything and the 

	

11 	kitchen sink including this because -- and he hadn't 

	

12 	always been unemployed. He had moments of being 

	

13 	unemployed with his previous lifetime supervision 

	

14 	officers, and he didn't get a violation then. 

	

15 	 He was terminated from counseling. He was 

	

16 	terminated from counseling. He doesn't control 

	

17 	that. YOU heard Marcia Lee testify this morning 

	

18 	that he had been in counseling for four years. He 

	

19 	had been doing weekly counseling for four years. He 

	

20 	was not terminated for lack of participation. He 

	

21 	was showing up; he was participating, and he had 

	

22 	been doing that for four years. He doesn't have 

	

23 	control over whether or not he gets terminated. So 

	

24 	that's not a willing violation of one of his 

	

25 	conditions. 
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1 	 so now I'm going to thank you for your 

2 	time. YOU guys have been really patient. The state 

3 	is going to get up here one more time. They get to 

4 	have the last word, and that's because they have the 

	

5 	burden of proof here, which is beyond a reasonable 

6 	doubt, to prove that Steve violated his lifetime 

	

7 	supervision. Just remember that they have to prove 

	

8 	his guilt beyond a reasonable doubt when you go back 

	

9 	there to deliberate. 

	

10 	 The state at this case has hung their case 

	

11 	on the testimony of officer Mangan. It's your 

	

12 	responsibility to measure officer mangan's 

	

13 	credibility at this point and decide how much faith 

	

14 	you really want to put in her testimony. Think 

	

15 	about it like this: Picture your favorite food. 

	

16 	love hamburgers, so I'm going to picture a 

	

17 	hamburger. 

	

18 	 This hamburger represents officer mangan's 

	

19 	testimony. Now, imagine that every inconsistency, 

	

20 	every inaccuracy that she testified to is a dead 

	

21 	cockroach, and ask yourself how many dead 

	

22 	cockroaches am I willing to pick out of this 

	

23 	hamburger and still eat it? How many inconsistencies 

	

24 	in officer mangan's testimony do you need before you 

	

25 	throw out her entire testimony? And you have the 
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1 	ability to do that. 

2 	 If you don't believe her testimony, if you 

3 	don't find it credible, you get to throw it away. 

4 	YOU don't have to listen to it. And once you've 

5 	done that, I am certain that you're going to see 

6 	that this entire case is built on her unreliable 

7 	testimony and that you're going to return a verdict 

8 	of not guilty because Steve is not guilty. 

9 	 Thank you very much. 

10 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Excuse me. Thank 

11 	you, Ms. Bonaventure. 

12 
	

Mr. Cooper. 

13 
	

MR. COOPER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

14 
	

And could you associate the Elmo for me, 

15 	please. 

16 
	

THE REPORTER: It should still be on. 

17 
	

MR. COOPER: The Elmo, not the -- 

18 
	

THE COURT: It's coming up. It just takes 

19 	a minute. 

20 

21 
	

STATE'S FINAL CLOSING ARGUMENT 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. COOPER: Ladies and Gentlemen, the 

defense focused a lot on officer Mangan, and they 

wanted to talk about -- they wanted to talk about 
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1 	her for about 20 minutes. So we're not going to 

2 	talk about her at all. We're not going to talk 

about any of the violations that she observed or the 

4 	violations that Sergeant Zanna observed. 

5 	 Let's focus on just one violation, and 

6 	you'll see this when you go back to deliberate. 

7 
	

This is a Jury Instruction Number 3. 

8 
	

It's comes in full 

9 
	

THE COURT: It needs to focus. It will 

10 
	

take a second. Usually it does it on its own. 

11 
	

MR. COOPER: See if that works. I hate 

12 
	

technology. 

13 
	

THE COURT: It usually auto-focuses, but it 

14 	doesn't seem to be doing that, Jonathan. I don't 

15 	know if you can assist us. 

16 	 MR. COOPER: There we go. 

17 	 THE COURT: All right. Looks like we got 

18 	it. 	Nevermind. 

19 	 MR. COOPER: Yes. Let's just focus on one 

20 	there. Let's just focus on termination from his 

21 	sex offender counseling. You'll have the 

22 	Termination Summary when you go back to deliberate, 

23 	and you'll see on there that he was terminated in 

24 	December of 2012. Well, the Defense talked a lot 

25 	about Officer Mangan. Officer mangan wasn't even 
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1 	his officer in December of 2012. So how did this 

	

2 	personality conflict create this whole issue? 

	

3 	 Because he already wasn't doing what he was 

4 	supposed to do in December of 2012. Before she was 

	

5 	in the sex offender unit, he was already in 

	

6 	violation. But he got a couple more chances, you 

	

7 	know. 	she didn't just violate him for this. It 

	

8 	wasn't just that. It wasn't just the failure to get 

	

9 	his residence approved or the failure to go to a 

	

10 	curfew or to take the urinalysis. It was the 

	

11 	combination of everything. 

	

12 	 But I need you to understand, Ladies and 

	

13 	Gentlemen, that it only takes one. You'll have the 

	

14 	jury instruction when you go back and deliberate. 

	

15 	It only takes one. If you believe it's just the 

	

16 	termination from sex offender counseling, guilty. 

	

17 	If you believe it's just the reporting, guilty. 

	

18 	only takes one. 

	

19 	 But for the sex offender counseling, it 

	

20 	wasn't the defendant's fault; it was Marcia Lee's 

	

21 	fault because with her 20 years of experience as a 

	

22 	sex offense counselor and her doing groups and 

	

23 	individual sessions, it was her fault that the 

	

24 	defendant was not doing what he was supposed to do. 

	

25 	It was her fault that he showed little or no 
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1 	progress. That wasn't -- that wasn't on him. 

	

2 	 Just like when he was being supervised by 

3 	Officer Mangan, it wasn't on him either. It was on 

4 	her. It was her fault because she's a new officer. 

	

5 	It was her fault that he didn't do the curfew. 

6 	Doesn't really seem right. But like I said when 

7 	started in the very beginning, this is not a 

	

8 	difficult case. so  I'm not going to take your time 

	

9 	any further and go through all the other different 

	

10 	things. 

	

11 	 I would just say that the Defense was 

	

12 	talking about the years before in 2007, when he was 

	

13 	actually reporting, and 2008 when he was actually 

	

14 	reporting and stuff like that. That doesn't matter. 

	

15 	we're talking about 2012 through 2014. And it makes 

	

16 	sense that he would report at first; right? He 

	

17 	wanted to show that he could complete those 

	

18 	requirements. But he got fed up. That's what it 

	

19 	is. 

	

20 	 He was tired of the requirements. He 

	

21 	thought they were too stringent, didn't want to do 

	

22 	them anymore; he was fed up and said, "Enough is 

	

23 	enough, I'm not doing anything else, and you guys 

	

24 	can't make me." That's why we're here. 

	

25 	 Thank you. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Cooper. 

	

2 	 I'm going to invite the officers of the 

	

3 	court forward now to take charge of the jurors. The 

4 	clerk will now swear the officers. 

	

5 	 (Clerk administers oath to Court Officers.) 

6 	 THE COURT: The reason we have two officers 

	

7 	at this time to take charge of the jurors is 

	

8 	because, as you know, we have 12 jurors who are 

	

9 	going to deliberate and will proceed with Officer 

	

10 	Crenshaw. 

	

11 	 But we also have two jurors who are 

	

12 	alternates. Now, you are not discharged from your 

	

13 	duties at this time. You will only discharged upon 

	

14 	notification of the Court that a verdict has been 

	

15 	reached or the case has been resolved. But in the 

	

16 	meantime, those alternate jurors will need to 

	

17 	proceed with Ms. Springberg to get further 

	

18 	instructions. And I can tell you, at this time, 

	

19 	that the jurors that are the alternates who will 

	

20 	proceed with ms. Springberg are jurors Bonnie 

	

21 	Schultz and Joey Hamilton. You'll proceed with 

	

22 	ms. Springberg. 

	

23 	 Everyone else please take direction from 

	

24 	marshal Crenshaw, and we'll see you back when we're 

	

25 	ready -- when you're ready. 
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1 	 (The following proceedings were held 

	

2 	outside the presence of the jury:) 

	

3 	 THE COURT: I do have one thing for the 

	

4 	record. They never shut the door. It makes me 

	

5 	crazy. Go ahead and have a seat. They'll figure it 

	

6 	out or somebody will get it. 

	

7 	 Thank you, ms. Bonaventure. I appreciate 

	

8 	that. 

	

9 	 I did take a moment -- well, I shouldn't 

	

10 	say I did, my law clerk did -- take a moment to do 

	

11 	some quick research on the issue that was raised in 

	

12 	terms of the verdict form and the circumstances of 

	

13 	how the verdict should be pursued when the Court had 

	

14 	issued the directed verdict. And my interesting 

	

15 	perhaps conclusion is going to be that the Defense 

	

16 	is correct; however, I'm not going to do it 

	

17 	differently than what we had already discussed doing 

	

18 	it. 	tell you why. 

	

19 	 I found a couple of cases, or my law clerk 

	

20 	provided me with a couple of case, one recently 

	

21 	unpublished, "Battle vs. state of Nevada"; and one 

	

22 	published back in 2000, "state of Nevada vs. combs." 

	

23 	And basically what these cases make clear -- they 

	

24 	discuss a situation where the party asked for the 

	

25 	court to render a different verdict than guilty that 
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1 	the jury had reached based on insufficiency of the 

	

2 	evidence. And the court determined that -- the 

	

3 	Supreme Court determined that the District Court 

	

4 	would be in error in doing so, that that's something 

	

5 	that has to be determined on appeal. 

	

6 	 But these cases do speak to, and there is a 

	

7 	specific statute, NRS 175.381, that speaks to if the 

	

8 	Court does determine at the close of either side's 

	

9 	case that there is insufficient evidence to warrant 

	

10 	a conviction on one or more of the charges, that the 

	

11 	court is supposed to give an instruction to the jury 

	

12 	regarding acquittal, which the jury is not required 

	

13 	to follow, but that they should give that 

	

14 	instruction rather than making that determination 

	

15 	for the jury. 

	

16 	 The reason I'm not going to change it, 

	

17 	however, is that these cases -- and i specifically 

	

18 	refer you back to "combs" and "Battle" -- make it 

	

19 	clear that regardless of what occurred, the double 

	

20 	jeopardy does attach, that the state cannot pursue 

	

21 	the charge again once the -- even if it's the 

	

22 	Court's determination and even if the court erred in 

	

23 	how it instructed or failed to instruct the jury, 

	

24 	that the double jeopardy, once the court makes that 

	

25 	determination of the insufficiency of the evidence, 
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1 
1 
 the double jeopardy does attach. 

2 	 So because it's not going to have a 

3 	different outcome and because I did not instruct 

4 	them with regard to that second count and then 

	

5 	further instruct them that I would designate that my 

6 	review of the evidence is that it's insufficient and 

	

7 	recommend acquittal, I didn't want to further 

	

8 	confuse them by trying to somehow put it back in or 

	

9 	reinstruct or have it on the verdict form. 

	

10 	 So because double jeopardy attaches 

	

11 	regardless and because mr. Cooper has already 

	

12 	stipulated that the State does not intend to pursue 

	

13 	it, I am going to sort of acknowledge my own error 

	

14 	but ultimately determine that it doesn't warrant us 

	

15 	changing the direction which we've proceeded, so 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: Your Honor, one just -- one 

	

17 	issue. On my -- I don't know if my instructions 

	

18 	were the same, but the wrong information was being 

	

19 	used in Count 3. It was the information that talks 

	

20 	about the agreement date and everything like that, 

	

21 	and I'm not going to object to it. It is what it 

	

22 	is, at this point. 	I just didn't know -- 

	

23 	 THE COURT: HOld on. I've got the original 

	

24 	here. 

	

25 	 ms. HOJJAT: 	Oh. 
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1 	 THE COURT: I made the change to the one 

	

2 	language, but I didn't -- 

	

3 	 what else did we need to change? 

	

4 	 MR. COOPER: Because I did file that 

	

5 	second, that actually strikes that language about 

	

6 	the lifetime supervision, lifetime supervision dates 

	

7 	or lifetime supervision agreement dates that it was 

	

8 	signed on and stuff like that, that was stricken in 

	

9 	the Second Amended Information, but it is contained 

	

10 	in that document. But I mean I -- 

	

11 	 THE COURT: I apologize. I think what 

	

12 	ended up happening was when you sent us the first 

	

13 	version and then you sent us the second version, 

	

14 	when I went back in and I made the adjustments, 

	

15 	only adjusted -- 

	

16 	 MR. COOPER: Yes. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: -- a portion of it and not all 

	

18 	of it. 

	

19 	 MR. COOPER: 	I don't -- I don't think it's 

	

20 	going to create an issue. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: But it was a change that you 

	

22 	made; it wasn't necessarily one that you were 

	

23 	advocating for. correct me if I'm wrong. so  

	

24 	think in the long run, it's again a harmless -- 

	

25 	 MR. COOPER: It is -- yeah, it is what it 
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1 	is, Your Honor. 

	

2 
	

THE COURT: -- mistake more than an error, 

	

3 	I think in anything. what i did was I changed the 

	

4 	sex offense that requires lifetime supervision 

	

5 	language, and I forgot about the discussion and 

	

6 	didn't see the other changes. So appreciate you 

	

7 	pointing that out. 

	

8 	 Ms. Hojjat. 

	

9 	 MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor, we'll submit it on 

	

10 	what the court said. my only inquiries to the Court 

	

11 	would be, because we had submitted a proposed jury 

	

12 	instruction about the directed verdict, I didn't end 

	

13 	up putting that in my packet because I thought the 

	

14 	jury was going to be instructed. 

	

15 	 Would the Court like me to file that? I 

	

16 	didn't file it as of now. whatever the court's 

	

17 	preference is. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: I don't that we need it now 

	

19 	that I have the record of the Court's determination 

	

20 	of where it erred, but again, why we're not 

	

21 	proceeding further -- 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: -- to make a different change 

	

24 	and, again, further confuse the jury or bring 

	

25 	anything else into the jury's purview. I think what 
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1 	we have right now is what we should have ultimately, 

	

2 	which is the jury has instructions on the one charge 

	

3 	that's still, you know, really available to them 

	

4 	potentially for conviction and let them deliberate 

	

5 	and let them come to a conclusion on that, and we'll 

	

6 	see. But this was not without error, the handling 

	

7 
	

of the directed verdict, and i appreciate the 

	

8 
	

opportunity to clarify that, and we'll take care of 

	

9 
	

it from there. 

	

10 
	

But go ahead and give your cell numbers, or 

	

11 
	

however you want us to reach you, and we'll advise 

	

12 
	

you as soon as the jury has returned with a verdict. 

	

13 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

14 
	

THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

15 
	

(Jury deliberates.) 

	

16 
	

(The following proceedings were held in the 

	

17 
	

presence of the jury:) 

	

18 
	

THE COURT: Thank you, everybody. Please 

	

19 
	

have a seat. 

	

20 
	

Please let the record reflect the presence 

	

21 
	

of the defendant, his counsel, and the deputy 

	

22 
	

district attorney. 

	

23 
	

will the parties, at this time, please 

	

24 
	

stipulate, for the record, of the presence of the 

	

25 
	

jury. 
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1 	 MS. BONAvENTURE: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

2 	 MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much. 

	

4 	 Has the jury elected a foreperson, and if 

	

5 	that foreperson could please identify themselves by 

	

6 	juror number at this time. 

	

7 
	

JUROR No. 1: Yes, Your Honor. Myself, 

	

8 
	

Jason Alper. 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: Juror No. 1. Thank you. 

	

10 
	

Has the jury reached a verdict? 

	

11 
	

JUROR NO. 1: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

12 
	

THE COURT: Would you please provide the 

	

13 
	

verdict to the marshal so he can bring it forward 

	

14 
	

for the Court's review. 

	

15 
	

Will the defendant and his attorneys please 

	

16 
	

stand, and the clerk will now read the verdict out 

	

17 
	

loud. 

	

18 
	

THE CLERK: District Court, Clark County, 

	

19 
	

Nevada, State of Nevada, Plaintiff vs. Steve Dell 

	

20 
	

McNeil, Defendant, Case No. C-14-297725-1, 

	

21 
	

Department No. 25. Verdict. We, the jury in the 

	

22 
	

above-entitled case, find the Defendant, Steve 

	

23 	Dell McNeil, as follows: 

	

24 	 Count 1, violation of lifetime supervision 

	

25 	by convicted sex offender, guilty. Dated 
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1 	July 9th, 2014, signed by the foreperson, 

	

2 	Juror No. 1. 

	

3 	 Ladies and Gentlemen of the Jury, is this 

	

4 	your verdict as read? So say you one, so say 

	

5 	you all. 

	

6 
	

THE COURT: YOU have to -- 

	

7 
	

THE JURY: Yes. 

	

8 
	

THE COURT: -- say so. 

	

9 
	

Would either side wish to have the jury 

	

10 	polled? 

	

11 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: Yes, Your Honor. Please. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: All right. Let me just clarify 

	

13 	because sometimes this is confusing. That wa
s your 

	

14 	group statement that that was your verdic
t. 

	

15 	 At this time, the clerk will read off your 

	

16 	juror number, one by one, and ask you if t
his is in 

	

17 	fact your individual verdict to confirm whether that 

	

18 	is the case. 

	

19 	 THE CLERK: 	Juror No. 1, is this your 

	

20 	verdict as read? 

	

21 	 JUROR NO. 1: Yes. 

	

22 	 THE CLERK: •Juror No. 2, is this your 

	

23 	verdict as read? 

	

24 	 JUROR NO. 2: Yes. 

	

25 	 THE CLERK: 	Juror No. 3, is this your 
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1 	verdict as read? 

	

2 	 JUROR NO. 3: Yes. 

	

3 	 THE CLERK: Juror No. 4, is this your 

	

4 	verdict as read? 

	

5 	 JUROR NO. 4: Yes. 

	

6 	 THE CLERK: 	Juror No. 5, is this your 

	

7 	verdict as read? 

	

8 	 JUROR NO. 5: Yes. 

	

9 	 THE CLERK: Juror No. 6, is this your 

	

10 	verdict as read? 

	

11 	 JUROR NO. 6: Yeah. 

	

12 	 THE CLERK: 	Juror No. 7, is this your 

	

13 	verdict as read? 

	

14 	 JUROR NO. 7: Yes. 

	

15 	 THE CLERK: 	Juror No. 8, is this your 

	

16 	verdict as read? 

	

17 	 JUROR NO. 8: Yes. 

	

18 	 THE CLERK: Juror No. 9, is this your 

	

19 	verdict as read? 

	

20 	 JUROR NO. 9: Yes. 

	

21 	 THE CLERK: Juror No. 10, is this your 

	

22 	verdict as read? 

	

23 	 JUROR NO. 10: Yes. 

	

24 	 THE CLERK: Juror No. 11, is this your 

	

25 	verdict as read? 
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1 	 JUROR NO. 11: Yes. 

	

2 	 THE CLERK: And, Juror No. 12, is this your 

	

3 	verdict as read? 

	

4 	 JUROR NO. 12: Yes. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Thank you, You may have a seat 

	

6 	while I discharge the jury. 

	

7 	 i just want to let you know, at this time, 

	

8 	first and foremost, of course how much the State, 

	

9 	the Defense and the court appreciates your serv
ice. 

	

10 	Any case, no matter how long, is incredibly 

	

11 	important, and your service is incredibly valuable 

	

12 	to this community. 

	

13 	 Of course, I've instructed you throughout 

	

-14 	the course of this trial that you are not to discus
s 

	

15 	the case with anyone, including yourselves, until 

	

16 	you had a chance to deliberate and reach a verdict.
 

	

17 	Now that you have completed,  your duties, you are of 

	

18 	course able to speak with anyone you wish to spea
k 

	

19 	to about this trial, about your verdict, and the 

	

20 	circumstances in the case. 

	

21 	 Sometimes counsel will like to speak to the 

	

22 	jury to help better learn their skills and learn 

	

23 	what worked and did not work, as the case may be in
 

	

24 	the trial. So you're certainly welcome to speak 

	

25 	with counsel. There's no reason not to, but you're 
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1 	certainly not required to either. 

	

2 	 If anybody wishes to speak with you and you 

	

3 	don't wish to speak with them, just let them know. 

	

4 	If anybody persists, which I don't anticipate; but 

	

5 	if that were to happen and you needed any assistance 

	

6 	in that regard, just have the Court -- let the Court 

	

7 	know, and we'll take care of it. 

	

8 	 But, again, I just want to thank you for 

	

9 	your service. I want to let you know, again, that 

	

10 	you are welcome now to speak with anyone you see 

	

11 	fit. And at this time, you are discharged, and the 

	

12 	marshal will have any additional information you may 

	

13 	need. 

	

14 	 Thank you very much. 

	

15 	 (The following proceedings were held 

	

16 	outside the presence of the jury:) 

	

17 	 THE COURT: In case I didn't say it 

	

18 	previously, of course the clerk needs to record the 

	

19 	verdict in the minutes of the court, and that will 

	

20 	be done, and the defendant will be returned to 

	

21 	custody and remanded back to custody for a 

	

22 	sentencing date in 60 days. 

	

23 	 MR. COOPER: And, Your Honor, the State 

	

24 	would just ask that he be held without bail at this 

	

25 	point. Obviously, any issue in terms of whether or 
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1 	not he was guilty has already been determined. And 

	

2 	i think that's the State's right pursuant to 

	

3 	Nevada law. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Counsel. 

	

5 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: Your Honor, I would ask 

	

6 	for bail to remain the same. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. The Court will remand 

	

8 	the defendant without bail. Any presumption of 

	

9 	innocence is now resolved by the jury's verdict, and 

	

10 	the Court will set the matter for sentencing on the 

	

11 	date that would be the soonest we could get for 

	

12 	anyone who remains in custody, which would be 

	

13 	60 days. 

	

14 	 THE CLERK: September 10th, 9:00 a.m. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: All right. Thank you all very 

	

16 	much. We'll see you then. 

	

17 	 MR. COOPER: Thank you very much, 

	

18 	Your Honor. 

	

19 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

20 	 MR. COOPER: Always a pleasure. It is what 

	

21 	it is. 

22 

	

23 	 (The proceedings concluded at 3:55 p.m.) 

	

24 
	 -000 -  

25 
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1 
	

LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

	

2 
	

WEDNESDAY, JULY 30, 2014, 9:00 A.M. 

	

3 
	

PROCEEDINGS 

* * * 

	

5 
	 THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Steve McNeill. 

	

6 
	

I see Mr. McNeill present in custody. 

	

7 
	

I had asked for you earlier because I had matters 

	

8 
	on the calendar interestingly enough, and I just kind of 

	

9 
	want to give this background for you and for Mr. McNeill's 

	

10 
	edification. But there were four matters on the calendar 

	

11 
	

this morning where an attorney had successfully applied to 

	

12 
	

the court, my predecessor Judge Mosley, to have their 

	

1 3 
	client released from lifetime supervision -- certain 

	

14 	conditions of lifetime supervision, let me be clear -- and 

	

15 
	

the Court agreed to allow the release from those 

	

16 
	conditions. 

	

17 
	 I am not sure on what basis they did it, but 

	

18 
	

here's what happened. The State then appealed to the 

	

19 
	supreme court that those certain conditions 1 through 23 

	

20 
	

be placed on the lifetime supervisor's Parole Board 

	

21 
	similar to those in this case. And they were then removed 

	

22 
	

by Judge Mosley at the request of counsel. 

	

23 
	 It was done. The vehicle that was used to do 

	

24 
	

that was a postconviction petition for writ of habeas 

	

25 
	corpus. And what happened was the supreme court said 

2 
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1 
	

that's the wrong vehicle, that unless the individual is 

	

2 
	still under a term of incarceration that the Petition For 

	

3 
	

Writ of Habeas Corpus isn't available to them and anybody 

	

4 	who is under lifetime supervision is no longer under a 

	

5 
	

term of incarceration. 

	

6 
	 So the supreme court reversed solely on those 

	

7 	grounds, the procedural grounds. But what was interesting 

	

8 
	

to me is the supreme court mandated this court to 

	

9 
	reinstate those conditions. And there was a footnote 

	

1 0 
	where the supreme court speculated that to the extent 

because there was no findings of fact and conclusions of 

	

12 
	

law, as all the reasons we don't know what the basis for 

	

13 
	the ruling was, that to the extent that there was any 

	

14 
	

determination by the court made that 176.0931(3) would 

	

15 
	apply which is when you could apply to release from 

	

16 
	

lifetime supervision conditions after a certain period of 

	

17 
	time and comply with a certain condition, that that was 

	

18 
	not applicable to any of these defendants either. 

So the supreme court -- 

	

20 
	 THE DEFENDANT: Begging the Court's pardon. Just 

	

21 
	exactly how much time is that? What does the date start 

	

22 
	and what is the final date? 

	

23 
	 THE COURT: I believe it's ten years. 

	

24 
	 THE DEFENDANT: Okay. From the date of 

	

25 	conviction? 

3 

587 



THE COURT: Mr. McNeill, let me have that 

	

2 
	

confirmation with the counsel. I don't want to misspeak. 

	

3 
	

I'm not trying not to answer your question. My 

	

4 	recollection is it is from the start of the lifetime 

	

5 
	

supervision through to conclusion. After ten years you 

	

6 
	

can apply. It is not an automatic. And there are certain 

	

7 
	

conditions that have to be met. 

	

8 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Right. I had the conversation 

	

9 
	

with counsel last time we met. They were not sure. 

	

1 0 
	

have no way to check. 

	

11 
	

THE COURT: It has changed. And there were times 

	

12 
	

when that was suspended because of appeals that were 

	

13 
	

happening. 

	

14 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Right. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: And so there is a lot of confusion on 

	

16 
	

that point, so that's not your counsel's fault. You can 

	

17 
	

see I don't want to misspeak either. 

	

18 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Right. 

	

19 
	

THE COURT: But generally, my recollection of the 

	

20 
	

cases that have come on the calendar if certain conditions 

	

21 
	

have been met and a minimum is at least served on lifetime 

	

22 
	

supervision without problems for at least ten years, then 

	

23 
	

there is the possibility to apply. But that's kind of a 

	

24 
	

side note. 

	

25 
	

So to finish my thoughts here, Ms. Bonaventure, 
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1 
	so what I thought was interesting was the supreme court 

	

2 
	wasn't just saying, you know, procedurally the Court did 

	

3 
	

this wrong so reinstate the conditions. They clearly had 

	

4 
	

thought it through and it seems to me that there would 

	

5 
	

have been an opportunity there for them to say, you know, 

	

6 
	although this was an argument by a good counsel and maybe 

will be and maybe should be so that the supreme court can 

	

8 
	

determine these particular arguments. But they didn't 

	

9 
	say, Oh, by the way, these conditions shouldn't be 

	

10 
	reinstated. They in fact did reinstate them. 

	

11 
	 So for interest sake, if you ever want to look 

	

12 
	and see, based on the calendar, how those cases went down, 

	

13 
	

found them kind of interesting. 

	

14 
	

But you have filed your postconviction motions, 

	

15 
	and to the extent the briefings, and I will of course 

	

16 
	absolutely let you make any representations or argument 

	

17 
	you want to make for the record. But to the extent that 

	

18 
	you were seeking the relief under NRS 176.525, it does 

	

19 
	appear that there is a time constraint on that which is 

	

20 
	seven days after determination of guilt. 

	

21 
	 The verdict, of course, is on the 9th. The 

	

22 
	

judgment of conviction was subsequent to that. I do not 

	

23 
	

have guidance on which date of those two is operative, but 

	

24 
	would assume that perhaps it should be the judgment of 

	

25 
	conviction date, which would not make that untimely. But 
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1 	if it is to be determined that it was to be the verdict 

	

2 	date, because that was when the determination of guilt was 

	

3 	made, then it would be untimely. 

	

4 	 So I am just raising that there could potentially 

	

5 	be a time constraint. So just out of an abundance of 

	

6 	caution for these types of motions in the future, I don't 

	

7 	know the answer to that. But it is not necessarily going 

	

8 	to be the driving force on any decision today. I just 

	

9 	wanted to point out but to the extent that there is a 

	

10 	potential for the untimeliness of that particular motion 

	

11 	aspect, the NRS 176.525, I am going to for today's 

	

12 	purposes hear that motion basis as well as the other 

	

13 	motion basis because I believe that it should be seven 

	

14 	days from the judgment of conviction entry not from the 

	

15 	verdict entry, but who knows. 

	

16 	 So based on the fact that you have made two 

	

17 	arguments for relief, is there anything you want to add 

	

18 	for the record? 

	

19 	 MS. BONAVENTURE: No, Your Honor. Everything is 

	

20 	in the motion. I would just submit on the arguments in 

	

21 	the motion. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Cannizzaro, the State's 

	

23 	Opposition covered the ground that the Court had already 

	

24 	covered during trial, and I certainly think it preserved 

	

25 	these matters for the record. I have no qualms with this 
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1 	matter being addressed in a postconviction motion so that 

	

2 	it is in the record and thoroughly determined. But do you 

	

3 	have anything you wish to add? 

	

4 	 MS. CANNIZZARO: No, Your Honor. We would submit 

	

5 	it on the State's Opposition. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: All right. For the reasons stated in 

	

7 	the State's Opposition which do conform with what the 

	

8 	Court determined during the course of the trial, the Court 

	

9 	is going to deny the motion, which again sought relief on 

	

10 	bases; one, the Motion For Arrest of Judgment Pursuant to 

	

11 	176.525, Or in the Alternative, Motion For Judgment of 

	

12 	Acquittal Pursuant to NRS 175.381, the Court does believe 

	

13 	that the legislature has properly conferred authority to 

	

14 	the Board, and the Board then has properly carried out 

	

15 	that authority to determine that lifetime supervision 

	

16 	conditions can and are applicable and can provide the 

	

17 	bases for charges of violation if they are not complied 

	

18 	with. 

	

19 
	 guess the only thing I would add for the record 

	

20 
	is in hindsight on the verdict form it probably would have 

	

21 
	

been beneficial to have specific boxes as to each of the 

	

22 
	bases for the violation so that we would know which one or 

	

23 
	ones the jurors found to be the basis, but we didn't have 

	

24 
	that and it is not typical to have that. But in the civil 

	

25 
	world it certainly would have been required to have that 
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1 
	as a special verdict form because then on appeal when the 

	

2 
	court looks at this they will not necessarily know from 

	

3 
	the jury what the bases was and because some of the bases 

	

4 
	

that were alleged, correct me if I'm wrong, 

	

5 
	

Ms. Bonaventure, some of the bases or at least one of the 

	

6 
	

bases that was alleged would be from the statute. But the 

	

7 
	vast majority of them were from the Parole Board's added 

	

8 
	conditions, if you will. 

	

9 
	 So it might have been helpful to know. We won't 

	

10 
	

know that. But we will at least know when the supreme 

	

11 
	court takes a look at this whether or not that authority 

	

12 
	

is there or whether or not in order to have a violation of 

	

13 
	

lifetime supervision charge it has to be just within the 

	

14 
	statute. 

	

15 
	 T am intrigued as anyone to see if the supreme 

	

16 
	court agrees with my analysis, but my analysis has already 

	

17 
	

been made and I think the State set that out clearly. So 

	

18 
	will ask the State to prepare the order denying the 

	

19 
	motion on those bases. And then obviously give you a 

	

20 
	chance to review it so we do have a clear record. 

	

21 
	 MS. BONAVENTURE: All right. Thank you so much. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

23 
	 (Proceedings were concluded.) 

24 

25 
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1 
	

LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

	

2 
	

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2014, 9:00 A.M. 

	

3 
	

PROCEEDINGS 

4 

	

5 
	

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Steve 

	

6 
	

McNeill. Seeing Mr. McNeill present in custody. 

	

7 
	

This matter Is on for sentencing today. Is 

there any legal cause or reason why we cannot proceed 

	

9 	with sentencing? 

	

1 0 
	

MS. BONAVENTURE: No, Your Honor. 

	

11 
	

THE COURT: All right. This of course was a 

	

12 
	

jury verdict so we need to hear from the State their 

	

13 
	

argument. 

	

14 
	

MS. RHOADES: Yes, Your Honor. The Court sat 

	

15 
	

through the trial, knows the facts of the case. The 

	

16 
	

State is asking for the maximum sentence on this 

	

17 
	

defendant; 28 to 72 months in the Nevada Department of 

	

18 
	

Corrections. He has 158 days credit for time served. 

	

19 
	

I do realize that P and P recommends a minimum 

	

20 
	

front end 12 to 48. I am kind of surprised about that. 

	

21 
	

I mean, his criminal history dates back to 1986, and it 

	

22 
	

is not small things that he is doing. These are very 

	

23 
	scary crimes against children in different states. 

	

24 
	

So he starts off 1986, California, he has a 

	

25 
	

lewdness with a minor. He violates parole in that case. 

2 
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1 
	

1993 in Idaho, he is picked up for carrying a concealed 

weapon. 1995 he is in Texas and has picked up a 

	

3 
	misdemeanor assault charge with injury. He was convicted 

	

4 	of that charge in Texas. In 2004 he comes to Nevada, h
e 

	

5 
	picks up more sexual assault charges against minors and 

	

6 
	

is sentenced to prison in that case. 

	

7 
	 Now, we have him for a violation of lifetime 

	

8 
	supervision. He is not doing what he should, he is not 

	

9 	reporting as he should. And, you know, I know that
 these 

	

10 
	charges are not as serious as the prior crimes that he 

	

11 
	has but his criminal history has shown that he is never 

	

12 
	going to change. He is never going to change. And we 

	

13 
	are asking for the 28 to 72 in this case. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

15 
	 Ms. Bonaventure. 

	

16 
	 MS. BONAVENTURE: Yes, Your Honor. Obviously, 

	

17 
	Ms. Rhoades has not had the ability to watch the trial at 

	

18 
	this point. First of all, Your Honor, I want to give you 

	

19 
	an idea of the procedural history in this case because at 

	

20 
	any particular point in time there was never the same 

	

21 
	District Attorney standing in the District Attorney spot. 

	

22 
	 When we first started this case in arraignment 

	

23 
	there was -- it's actually really funny to me that the 

	

24 
	State is now asking for the maximum which there was an 

	

25 
	early offer relayed in court at his arraignment for the 
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1 
	

defendant, which was actually never relayed to him 

	

2 
	

because of the events that took place in justice court 

	

3 
	

that morning. 

	

4 
	

However, that early offer was a misdemeanor and 

	

5 
	six months in the Clark County Detention Center. Like I 

	

6 
	said, that was never relayed to him. It was set for 

preliminary hearing. I was assigned as his attorney. 

asked the DA to reextend that same offer, misdemeanor, 

	

9 
	six months. My client was willing to take that offer. 

	

1 0 
	 We show up for prelim -- and that was Alicia 

	

11 
	

Albritton -- she said absolutely not. She said at that 

	

12 
	point in time she thought this case was worth a gross 

	

13 
	misdemeanor and refused to extend the misdemeanor offer. 

	

14 
	 We left the preliminary hearing on and at 

	

15 
	preliminary hearing it was then Mr. Zadrowski, at which 

	

16 
	point he reextended the initial six months offer which 

	

17 
	

Mr. McNeill said, Yes, I will take that six-month offer. 

	

18 
	 And right before the judge called the case, 

	

19 	right before Judge Lippis called the case for prelim, in 

	

20 
	walks a camera crew, Officer Mangan and her supervisor 

	

21 
	who also testified at the trial, at which point the offer 

	

22 
	

for the misdemeanor six months was rescinded. He was no 

	

23 
	

longer able to take that offer and the preliminary 

	

24 
	

hearing was forced forward for the cameras. 

	

25 
	 Later on that night I did see on the news -- it 
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1 
	was some story about how the State of Nevada goes too 

	

2 
	

light or offer misdemeanors. So they used Mr. McNeill as 

	

3 
	a test case and used him to go forward and fulfill their 

	

4 
	political agenda at this point in time when this case 

	

5 
	should have never even made it to your courtroom, Your 

	

6 
	

Honor, had that camera not come into court. 

	

7 
	 And then we're set for trial, at which point, 

	

8 
	

Mr. Zadrowski is on another case and Mr. Cooper picks up 

	

9 
	

the case. Mr. Cooper refuses to give a misdemeanor 

	

10 
	offer. I tried to explain to him the procedure of the 

	

11 
	entire case beforehand. He didn't care one way or the 

	

12 
	other. His offer I believe was a felony minimum. Of 

	

13 
	course my client is not willing to take that at this 

	

14 
	time, so we proceed with trial. 

	

15 
	

• 	 And at trial, Your Honor, you saw what an awful 

	

16 
	witness their probation officer was. In fact, after 

	

17 
	preliminary hearing, Mr. Zadrowski said this case will 

	

18 
	absolutely deal, which is why I counted on that in order 

	

19 
	

to talk to Mr. Cooper. Nobody cared. Nobody listened. 

	

20 
	

That is why we did go forward with trial, Your Honor. 

	

21 
	 Like I was saying, Officer Mangan took the 

	

22 
	stand. She had so many inconsistent statements, Your 

	

23 
	

Honor, that when we went to talk to the grand jury they 

	

24 
	

had nothing good to say about her. They said the reason 

	

25 
	they convicted him was because prior to Officer Mangan 

5 
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1 	was the fact that he did get terminated from his sex 

	

2 	offense counseling. 

	

3 
	

And so they hung their hat on that in order to 

	

4 	convict him. Nothing that Officer Mangan had said even 

	

5 
	

rang true with them. And that just goes to show how 

	

6 
	

aggressive Officer Mangan was with Mr. McNeill. 

	

7 
	

Something that happened even prior to the fact that he 

	

8 
	

was even in her supervisory capacity over him -a— his 

	

9 	prior POs, two POs that he went through before he even 

	

10 	got to him, didn't see fit to terminate him based on 

	

11 
	

those grounds. Only when she became his officer. Only 

	

12 
	when she is trying to revoke and revoke and revoke him, 

	

13 
	and is unsuccessful, her charges are denied does she then 

	

14 
	

take that one thing that was in the past and throw it in 

	

15 
	

to the mix now. 

	

16 
	

I think the maximums are absolutely not 

	

17 
	appropriate in this, especially considering the fact the 

	

18 
	

initial offer in this case was a misdemeanor, six months. 

	

19 
	

I am not going to stand here and ask for 

	

20 
	probation, Your Honor, but the State is saying that he is 

	

21 
	a terrible, terrible person. Yes, he has committed 

	

22 
	sexual offenses. That's why he is on lifetime 

	

23 
	supervision. But what he is being convicted of now, Your 

	

24 
	

Honor, has nothing to do with -- it is nowhere in the 

	

25 
	

ballpark of his priors, of his sex offenses. This is not 

6 
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1 	a new sex offense. 

	

2 	 This is a situation where the PO didn't like 

	

3 	him, they didn't get along, there was a personality 

	

4 	conflict and so she wanted to get rid of him. 

	

5 	 At this point, Your Honor, what I would ask for 

	

6 	would be the minimums in this case, which is recommended 

	

7 	by Parole and Probation. They ask for 12 to 48. I would 

	

8 	ask for 12 to 36, Your Honor, because quite honestly 1 

	

9 	think that the case was just a mess from the beginning. 

	

10 	He has been in custody for this long. To punish him 

	

11 	further for the actions that were misrepresented by PO 

	

12 	Mangan would just be injustice across the board. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Bonaventure. 

	

14 	 Mr. McNeill, did you want to address the Court? 

	

15 	We haven't had the chance before obviously, but this is 

	

16 	your date for sentencing. 

	

17 	 THE DEFENDANT: Only for the record and with all 

	

18 	due respect, in recognition of your service to our 

	

19 	community, I would like to accept your oath of office as 

	

20 	a lawful binding contract between the two of us. 

	

21 	 I would like to motion this court at this time 

	

22 	to drop the charges in light that the State has failed to 

	

23 	present a cause of action for which relief can be granted
 

	

24 	in that there is no victim so who would you grant relief 

	

25 	to. 

I 
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1 
	

Furthermore, there is also the fact that, well, 

	

2 
	quite frankly, I would like to see some proof of 

	

3 
	

jurisdiction, not just jurisdiction of me but over the 

	

4 
	

subject matter and subject of course because I have heard 

	

5 
	

Your Honor on several different cases say that this is a 

	

6 
	criminal court and I have been convicted of a contract 

	

7 	violation. That's a civil matter. 

	

8 
	 And then I would like to also see some proof 

	

9 
	

that the prosecution actually obtained leave of court 

	

10 
	giving Your Honor jurisdiction to even hear their side of 

	

11 
	

the case. 

	

12 
	 And then there was the fact that T was forced to 

	

13 
	take an attorney. I am told by the first judge or 

	

14 
	magistrate, whoever she was -- I never even get the 

	

15 
	chance to read her nameplate on the desk. I wasn't in 

	

16 
	the courtroom for more than 30 seconds before she forced 

	

17 
	an attorney on me. 

	

18 
	 And then when I vehemently objected for the 

	

19 
	record, she simply just bailed from the courtroom and had 

	

20 
	me dragged out. 

	

21 
	 THE COURT: Mr. McNeill, I gave the same 

	

22 
	

instruction to another defendant earlier today, this is 

	

23 
	your time for sentencing. This is not to revisit 

	

24 
	anything that has happened before today. If you want to 

	

25 
	advocate for your sentencing and what your sentencing 

8 
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1 	should be, your attorney has already very passionately 

	

2 
	argued on your behalf for something lesser than what was 

	

3 
	recommended in the PSI. 

	

4 
	 appreciate that you have questions and 

	

5 
	concerns about this Court's jurisdiction. I can say for 

	

6 
	

the record that we have the jurisdiction. This is a 

	

7 
	criminal case. It has been tried in front of a jury that 

	

8 
	

has reached a verdict. This is now the time for 

	

9 
	sentencing. So if you have anything relevant to 

	

10 
	sentencing, I am happy to hear it, if not, then we need 

	

11 
	to move on. 

	

12 
	 THE DEFENDANT: It says in Joyce versus US that 

	

13 
	there is no discretion to ignore the lack of 

	

14 
	

jurisdiction. It also says in US versus Well that 

	

15 
	without jurisdiction you can't make a ruling against me 

	

16 
	of any kind or even pass sentence on me. 

	

17 
	 THE COURT: Mr. McNeill, as we have already 

	

18 
	established that there is jurisdiction in this case -- 

	

19 
	 THE DEFENDANT: I haven't seen it established. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: You don't need to see it, 

	

21 
	

Mr. McNeill, T stated it for the record. We are complete 

	

22 
	now. 

	

23 
	 I am going to at this time adjudicate 

	

24 
	Mr. McNeill guilty of the violation of lifetime 

	

25 
	supervision -- 

9 
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1 	 THE DEFENDANT: So you don't have to follow the 

law? 

	

3 
	 THE COURT: Mr. McNeill, sit down if you are 

	

4 	going to stay in the courtroom, otherwise I will have you 

	

5 
	removed. I have to complete the sentencing today. The 

	

6 
	

law is what the law is. We have already had a trial. I 

have already told you T have jurisdiction. If you want 

	

8 
	

to in a postconviction petition research and explore that 

	

9 
	

issue you are welcome to do so. I am telling you there 

	

1 0 
	

is jurisdiction. 

	

1 1 
	 So you are not speaking about sentencing, we do 

	

12 
	not have anything further to talk about. 

	

13 
	 You are adjudicated guilty of violation of 

	

14 
	

lifetime supervision by a convicted sex offender. I am 

	

15 
	going to sentence you as requested by your attorney 

	

16 
	

because I do know the totality of the circumstances in 

this case, to a minimum of 12, maximum of 36 months in 

	

18 
	the Nevada Department of Corrections, and impose a $25 

	

19 
	administrative assessment fee, and I am going to give you 

	

20 
	

150 days credit for time served. Good luck, sir. 

	

21 
	 (Proceedings were concluded.) 
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six [e] - 4:5, 4:9, 4:16, 

4:17,4:22, 6:18 

six-month [1] -4:17 

small [1] - 2:22 

speaking 0) - 10:11 
spot [1] - 3:21 

stand RI - 5:22, 6:19 

standing [1] - 3:21 

started 0] - 3:22 

starts - 2:24 

State [7] - 2:5, 2:12, 

2:16, 3:24, 5:1, 6:20, 

7:22 

statements [1] - 5:22 

states pi - 2:23 

Stay Li)-  10:4 

Steve [1] - 2:5 

Story - 5:1 

Subject [2] - 8:4 

supervision [4] - 3:8, 

6:23, 9:25, 10:14 

supervisor pi -4:20 

supervisory [1] - 6:8 

surprised [1] - 2:20 

terminate [1] - 6:10 

terminated pi - 6:1 

terrible [2] - 6:21 

test - 5:3 

testified ij - 4:21 

Texas [2] - 3:2, 3:4 

throw (1)- 6:14 

today [4] - 2:7, 8:22, 

8:24, 10:5 

took - 4:2, 5:21 

totality [1] 1016 

trial [8] - 2:15, 3:17, 

4:21,5:7, 5:14, 5:15, 

5:20, 10:6 

tried (21- 5:10,9:7 

true [1] - 6:5 

trying oi - 6:12 
two [2] - 6:9, 7:20 

unsuccessful [1] - 

6:13 

up [5]- 3:1, 3:2, 3:5, 

4:10, 5:8 
US (23- 9:12, 9:14 

V 

VEGAS [1) - 2:1 

vehemently [1] - 8:18 

verdict [2] - 2:12, 9:8 

versus [3] - 2:5, 9:12, 
9:14 

victim 03 - 7:24 
violates [1 - 2:25 

violation [a] - 3:7, 8:7, 

9:24,10:13  

walks [1] - 4:20 

watch 01- 3:17 

weapon [1] - 3:2 

wEDNESDAY [1] - 2:2 

welcome [1] - 10:9 

willing [2] - 4:9, 5:13 

witness [I] - 5:16 

worth rti - 4:12 

Zadrowski [3] - 4:15, 

5:8, 5:17 

13 

608 



IJUIN 1 LIO 1 

CASE NO, 	C297725 
	

TRIAL DATE: 	July 7, 2014  

DEPT. NO. 	XXV 
	

JUDGE: 	KATHLEEN DELANEY  

CLERK: 	KRISTEN BROWN  

STATE OF NEVADA 
	

REPORTER: BRENDA SCHROEDER 

PLAINTIFF, 	J. COOPER 

VS. 	 COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF 

MCNEILL, STEVE DELL 

X. BONAVENTURE / N. HOJJAT 

DEFENDANT, 
COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT 

EXCUSED 

Badge No. Name of Jurors State Defendant 

008 1.  HOSS, DARRELL 

003 2.  ALPER, JASON 

055 3.  MANDE, JACE 

060 4.  RIVERA, JOE 

166 . CARDOZA, GIANNI 

001 6. LAGOIVIARSINO, BRIAN 

679 7. SWAIN, JEFFREY 

- 	708 8. SPOONER, JACOB 41- 

883 9. VILCHEZ, ISAAC 16 
885 10. MOORE, JASON i 

906 11. RICE-WILSON, IDALIA 

907 12. MORALES, JORGE 

909 13. WHISENANT, WINDELL Li. 

985 14 WALKER, JUSTIN 

924 15 TOWERS, SHIRLEY 

927 16. BENSON, RICHARD 

930 17. CANALES, GILBERT 1 

005 18. POLLARD, GARY . 

987 19. MANNING, STEVEN 1! 

940 20. BAKKEDAHL, JAMES  

000 21. BURGESS, MARTIN 

t‘ 

1/111••'"wmaistaaukzu44Am,. - , 

958 22. SCHULTZ, BONNIE 

971 23, HAMILTON, JOEY 
• 	• 	••..,.. 

006 24. BURRIS, JOHN -1.,. 
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CASE NO. 

	C297725 

DEPT NO. 

X.X17  

HEARING DATE: 	7/7/14 	 

JUDGE: 	Judge Delaney 	  

CLERK: 	Kristen Brown 

RECORDER: B. Schroeder 	  

Jonathan Cooper 	 

COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF 

Xiomara Bonaventure 

COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT 

PLAINTIFF_ State of Nevada 	 

-VS 

DEFENDANT Steve Dell McNeill 

No. 	 Date Offered 
	

Ob 
	

Date Admitte 

1 Cease and Desist Letter . voinipeka 

2 Lifetime Supervision Agreement dated 11-8-07  

3 Lifetime Supervision Agreement dated 12-4-07 -7/g, 0 	 - 7/g, 

4 	. Lifetime Supervision Agreement dated 11-7-12 -77s  0 60- 7/g  

5 Probation and Parole monthly report dated 3-29-13 -vg. ijo 7/g  

Probation and Parole monthly report dated 4-12-13 7/g  N 0 7/g 

7 Probation and Parole monthly report dated 5-8-13 7/8, al)  

8 Probation and Parole monthly report dated 6-6-13  

9 Probation and Parole monthly report dated 7-11-13 7/g  0  0  74  

10 Probation and Parole monthly report dated 8-15-13 --//g  06a- ve  

11 7e-2 m i A.) e-Tfon.) .g urn alp-ry ao 71 
12 

_ _ 
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Date Activated: NOVEIvIDER 6,2007 
	Board of Parole Commissioners 	

NDOCNo: N/A LIFETME. SUPERVISION AGREEMENT 
	

File No.: L308-0537 
CC No.: C204263 

On the 10TH day of NOVElvll3ER, 2004, tVICNBILL, STEVE was sentenced by JOHNS MCGPOARTY. t ,"4",  5TH Judicial Diem' t Coot in and for the County of CLARK. State of Nevada, to System, for the crime of. 	
.. The sentencing coon, in adanion to your sentence, ordered 

that you be placed on Limnme oupervision 	Lauer or arte Division of Parole and Probation. The Board of Parole Coromislionere, by vittue of the authority vested in it by Motown of the State of Nevada, hereby assigns the conditions of -Lifetime 
Supervision, 
I. ReportingAtcrease: You are required to stdsmit a written report as directed by your supervising officer. The report will be true and correct in all respeots. In addition, you hsll report in person as directed by your supervising officer and submit DNA samplo as required. 
2. Residence: YoLl Shall resident c lo cation only if it has been approved by your supervising officer. You shall not change your place of residence without first obtaining permission from your supervising officer. 3. Intoxicants: YOU Shall not drink Or partake fairy alcoholic beverages whatsoever. Upon tequest by the any Parole orPeaco Officer, you shall submit to a medically recognized teat for blood alcohol content. Failure to submit shall constitute a violation of your lifetime supervision. Test results of .08 blood alcohol or higher shall be auffloient proof - dams. 4. Controlled Substonces: You shall not use, purchase or 17i0CeS$ sny oarcolic drugs, nor any dangerous drugs, unless first prescribed by a licensed physician; you shall submit to periodic tests to determine whether you arc usitig a unlimited master:Esc, as required by your supervising officer. 5. Weapons: YOU shall not possess, Own, carry, or have under your control, any type of &aeon or these/ weapon. 6. Associates: You shall not associate with ex-Solons or any person who is required to register as a sex offender under Nevada law without permission from your supervising officer. 7. Cooperation: You shall, at all times. cooperate with your supervising officer arid your behavior shall justify the opportunity granted to youbythis Lifetime Supervision. 

8, Laws and Condnet; You shall comply with all municipal, county, slate and federal laws, and ontinances; and conduct yourself as a good eidzen. You shall comply with all offender registration roquirements. 9. Out-of-State Travel: You shall not loave the State without first obtaining writtisupernissiati fromyour supervising officer, 10. Employment/Program: You shall s eekand m situate employment, ormaintain a program approved by the Division of Parole and Probation and not &engem:eh employment or program without first obtaining permission. You shall accept a position, of employment only if it has been approved by your supervising officer. 1, Supervision Pass; Pay all applicable fees, fines and restitution on a schedule as detennined by to Division of Parolo and Probation. 
12, Curfew; You shall abide by any curfew imposed by year supervising officer. 13. Counseling: Participate in professional counseling if deemed nooOggary by the Division of Parole and Probation. 	. 14, Polygraph Examination: You shall submit to perloclio polygraph examination, as required by your supervision officer. 15. No Contact: You shall not have oontact or communicate with a victim of the offense who testified against you, or solicit anotberpereon to engage in suchuontaot or communication on yourbehalf withourpermissionfrornyaursupavising officer. 16, Alias NaMe$: YOU shall not use aliases or Aotitious carets without permission fromyour supervising officer. 17. Post Office Box: Youghall not obtain apost offiocboxunless you have obtainedpermission fromyour supervising officer. 18. No Contact With PerSOBE Under IS Years of Ages You shall nothave contact with a person less than 18 rare of again a secluded environment tudese another adult who has never bean convicted dart offense listed in NES 179D.410 is presont. 19. Presence: You shall not be in or near: 

a) A playground, school Or school grounds: 
b) A motion picture theater; 
c) A business that primarily has children as customers or conducts events that primarily children attend. 20. Search: You obeli submit to c search ofyour person. property under your control, Orplaco ofresidenoc, by a Parole Officer, at any time of dm day or night without a warrant, upon reasonable MUM os asoorlained by the Parolo Officer, 21. Special Conditions of Your Lifetime Supervision: PENDING PAROLE BOARD ORDER 

This Lifetime Supervision is granted to and accepted by you, subject to the conditions atated herein, and with the Imowledge that the Board of Parole Cormuissioners has the power, at any time, to modify the conditions of sup ervision, Pursuant  to  lag 213.1243(3), failure to comply with the conditions as set forth may result in felony charges being filed, 
Chief Parole Officer: 	  

Dated: 	77 ki  
AGREEME.NT BY MENDER Ida hereby waive extradition to the State of Nevada from any state in ill e United Stoics, end from any territory orcotintry °Male the continental United Slates, Ind also agree that! will not contest any effort to return roots the United Statue or the State Of Nevada. I have read or had read to me, the conditions of my landinc Supervision, and I billy understand them and 1 agree to abide by and strictly follow them. I fully understand the penalties involved should I, in any manner, violate the Ongoing condition& 

Offend= 	yffei'vd 
	

defr. 

Witness:  re's_g 	 Dated:  41  
Mat' 	A007 

MA 
ST 

TION 
IBIT 
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Board of Parole Commissioners 
Date Activated: NOVEMBER 16, 2007 

LINETEVIE SUPERVISION AGREEMENT 
NDOC No: N/A ; 

Fite No.: 1,508-0537 
CC No.: C204263 

On the 10TH day of NOVEMBER, 2004, MCNEILL, STEVE was sentenced by JOHN S MCGROARTY, District Judge of the 
8TH Judicial District Court in and for the County of CLARK, State of Nevada, to 
System, for the crime of. 	 The sentencing court, in addition to your sentence, ordered 
that you be placed on Lifetime Supervision under the Cluet of the Division of Parole and Probation. The Board of Parole 
Commissioners, by virtue of the authorityvested in it by the laws of the State of Nevada, hereby assigns the conditions of Lifetime 
Supervision. 
1. Reporting/Release: You are required to submit a written report as directed by your supervising officer. The report will be 

true and correct in all respects. In addition, you shall report in person as directed by your supervising officer and submit a 
DNA sample as required. 

2. Residence: You shall reside at a location only if it has been approved by your supervising officer. You shall not change your 
place of residence without first obtaining permission from your supervising officer. 

3. Intoxicants: You shall not drinlcor partake of any alcoholic beverages whatsoever. Upon request by the any Parole or Peace 
Officer, you shall submit to a medically, recognized test for blood alcohol content. Failure to submit shall constitute a 
'violation of your lifetime supervision. Test results of .08 blood alcohol or higher shall be sufficient proof of excess. 

4. Controlled Substances: You shall not use, purchase or process any narcotic drugs, nor any dangerous drugs, unless first 
prescribed by a licensed physician; you shall submit to periodic tests to determine whether you are using a controlled 
substance, as required by your supervising officer, 

5. Weapons: You shall not possess, own, carry, or have under your control, any type of firearm or illegal weapon. 
6. Associates: You shall not associate with ex-felons or any person who is required to register as a sex offender under Nevada 

law without permission from your supervising officer. 
7. Cooperation: You shall, at all times, cooperate with your supervising officer and your behavior shall justify the opportunity 

granted to you by this Lifetime Supervision. 
8. Laws and Conduct: You shall comply with all municipal, county, state and federal laws, and ordinances; and conduct 

yourself as a good citizen. You shall comply with all offender registration requirements. 
9. Out-of-State Travel: You shall not leave the State without first obtaining written permission from your supervising officer. 
10. Employment/Program: You shall seek and maintain employment, or maintain a program approved by the Division ofParole 

and Probation and not change such employment or program without first obtaining permission. You shall accept a position 
' of employment only if it has been approved by your supervising officer. 

11. Supervision Fees: Pay all applicable fees, fines and restitution on a schedule as determined by the Division of Parole and 
Probation. 

This Lifetime Supervision is granted to and accepted by you, subject to the conditions stated herein, and with the knowledge that 
the Board of Parole Commissioners has the power, at any time, to modify the conditions of supervision. Pursuant to NRS 
213.1243(3), failure to comply with the conditions as set forth may result in felony charges being filed. 

	

42' 4 ?Chief Parole Officer: 		-•  
Dated: 	—14  

AGREEMENT BY OrtIENDER 
I do hereby waive extradition to the State of Nevada from any state in the United States, and from any territory or country outside 
the continental United States, and also agree that I will not contest any effort to return me to the United States or the State of 
Nevada. I have read or bad read to me, the conditions of my Lifetime Supervision, and I fully understand them and I agree to 
abide by and strictly follow(them. I fully understand the penalties involved should I, in any manner, violate the foregoing 
conditions. 

. 	•• 
12. Curfew: You shall abide by any curfew imposed by your supervising officer. 
13. Counseling: Participate in professional counseling if deemed necessary by the Division of Parole and Probation. 
1-4. Polygraph Examination: You shall submit to periodic polygraph examination, as required by your supervising officer. 
15. No Contact: You shall not have contact or communicate with a victim of the offense who testified against you, or solicit 

another person to engage in such contact or communication on your behalf without permission from your supervising officer. 
16. Alias Names: You shall not use aliases or fictitious names without permission from your supervising officer. 
17. Post Office Box: You shall not obtain a post office box unless you have obtained permission from your supervisineofficer. 
18. No Contact With Persons Under 18 Years of Age: You shall not have contact with a person less than 18 years of age in 

a secluded environment unless another adult who has never been convicted of an offense listed in NRS 179D.410 is present. 
19. Presence: You shall not be in or near: 

a) A playground, school or school grounds; 
b) A motion pictute theater; 
c) A business that primarily has children as customers or conducts events that primarily children attend. 

20. Search: You shall submit to a search of your person, property under your control, or place of residence, by a Parole Officer, 
at any time of the day or night without a warrant, upon reasonable cause as ascertained by the Parole Officer. 

21. Special Conditions of Your Lifetime Supervision: PENDING PAROLE BOARD ORDER 

Offender: 	 °'42fa.ere"  
Dated: + 	e/e -C.) 7  
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+ AAA A Ivg'ii J1 r UMW SAFETY 
Board of Parole Commissioners Date Activated: NOVEMBER 16,2007 
	

NDOC No: N/A LIFETIME SUPERVISION AGREENTENT 
	

File No.: LS08-0537 
CC No.: C204263 

On the 10TH day of NOVEMBER, 2004, MCNEILL, STEVE was sentenced by JOHN S MCGROARTY, District Judge of the 8TH Judicial District Court in and for the County of CLARK, State of Nevada, to i for the crime of 	 The sentencing court, in addition to your sentence, ordered that you be placed on Lifetime Supervision under the Chief of the Division of Parole and Probation. The Board of Parole Commissioners, by virtue of the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of Nevada, hereby assigns the conditions of Lifetime Supervision. 1. Reporting/Release: You are required to submit a written report as directed by your supervising officer. The report will be true and correct in all respects. In addition, you shall report in person as directed by your supervising officer and submit a DNA sample as required. 
2. Residence: You shall reside at a location only if it has been approved by your supervising officer. You shall not change your place of residence without first obtaining permission from your supervising officer. 3. Intoxicants: You shall not drink or partake of any alcoholic beverages whatsoever. Upon request by the anyParole or Peace Officer, you shall submit to a medically recognized test for blood alcohol content. Failure to submit shall constitute a violation of your lifetime supervision. Test results of .08 blood alcohol or higher shall be sufficient proof of excess. 
4. Controlled Substances: You shall not use, purchase or process any narcotic drugs, nor any dangerous drugs, unless first prescribed by a licensed physician; you shall submit to periodic tests to determine whether you are using a controlled substance, as required by your supervising officer. 5. Weapons: You shall not possess, own, carry, or have under your control, any type of firearm or illegal weapon. 6. Associates: You shall not associate with ex-felons or any person who is required to register as a sex offender under Nevada law without permission from your supervising officer. 7. Cooperation: You shall, at all times, cooperate with your supervising officer and your behavior shall justify the opportunity granted to you by this Lifetime Supervision. 8. Laws and Conduct: You shall comply with all municipal, county, state and federal laws, and ordinances; and conduct yourself as a good citizen. You shall comply with all offender registration requirements. 9. Out,of-State Travel: You shall not leave the State without first obtaining written permission from your supervising officer. 

10. Employment/Program: You shall seek and maintain employment, or maintain a program approved bythe Division of Parole and Probation and not change such employment or program without first obtaining permission. You shall accept a position of employment only if it has been approved by your supervising officer. 11. Supervision Fees: Pay all applicable fees, fines and restitution on a schedule as determined by the Division of Parole and Probation. 
12. Curfew: You shall abide by any curfew imposed by your supervising officer. 13. Counseling: Participate in professional counseling if deemed necessary by the Division of Parole and Probation. 14. Polygraph Examination: You shall submit to periodic polygraph examination, as required by your supervising officer. 
15. No Contact: You shall not have contact or communicate with a victim of the offense who testified against you, or solicit another person to engage in such contact or communication on your behalf without permission from your supervising officer. 
16. Alias Names: You shall not use aliases or fictitious names without permission from your supervising officer. 17. Post Office Box: You shall not obtain a post office box unless you have obtained permission from your dipervising officer. 
18. No Contact With Persons Under 18 Years of Age: You shall not have contact with a person less than 18 years of age in a secluded environment unless another adult who has never been convicted of an offense listed in NRS 179D.410 is present. 
19. Presence: You shall not be in or near: 

a) A playground, school or school grounds; 
b) A motion picture theater; 
c) A business that primarily has children as customers or conducts events that primarily children attend. 20. Search: You shall submit to a search of your person, property under your control, or place of residence, by a Parole Officer, at any time of the day or night without a warrant, upon reasonable cause as ascertained by the Parole Officer. 

21. Special Conditions of Your Lifetime Supervision: EFFECTIVE 5/24/11: I) Not to patronize a business which offers a sexually related form of entertainment and which is deemed inappropriateby the supervising officer; 2) Not possess any electronic device capable of accessing the Internet and not access the Internet through any such device of any other means, unless possession of a such a device or such access is approved by the supervising officer. An Internet monitoring service provider approved by the supervising officer will be the only means allowed for any and all Internet access device or service. 3) Abstain from consuming, possessing or having under your control any alcohol; 4) Not possess any sexually explicit material that is deemed inappropriate by the supervising officer; 5)Not possess any sexually explicit material that is deemed inappropriate by the supervising officer; 5) Comply with any protocol concerning the prescription medication prescribed by the treating physician, including, without limitation, any protocol concerning the use of psychotropie medication; 
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This Lifetime Supervision is granted to and accepted by you, subject to the conditions stated herein, and with the knowledge that the Board of Parole Commissioners has the power, at any time, to modify the conditions of supervision. Pursuant to NRS 213.1243(3), failure to comply with the conditions as set forth may result in felony charges being Bled. 

Chief Parole Officer: 

Dated: 

AGREEMENT BY OFFENDER 
I do hereby waive extradition to the State of Nevada from any state in the United States, and from any territory or country outside the continental United States, and also agree that I will not contest any effort to return mete the United States or the State of Nevada. I have read or had read to me, the conditions of my Lifetime Supervision, and I fully understand them and I agree to abide by and strictly follow them. I fully understand the penalties involved should 1, in any manner, violate the foregoing conditions. 

Witness: 

Offender: 

Dated: 	///7/;.7.---  
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Cam F155t111r& 6..ndid GRANT • 
CNirraaro C Biobeto GRANT 

Cumrassioner S. ..lacirAin GRANT 
f.:Wmisslaner T. Cortla GRANT 

VcIkw - LS CO Wet 
Pink -)PS Oftx 

Odd OPS P&P 1-10 

STATE OF NEVADA 
CERTIFICATION OF 

BOARD OF PAROLE COMMISSIONERS ACTION 

.CONDITIONS OF LIFETIME SUPERVISION - NRS 213.1243 
PAC:NEIL, STEVE LS06,-13537 

 

J-lig•de Bonrd 65/24r201 
Dale of Ie.clion 

Name NDOCNCriminal Case U 

 

The hoard has excluded, amended or added the foilcikt information to the standard conditions of iifsliiros Was/vision; 

Not to patronize a business which offers a sexually related form of estaininent and yviiich 
Is deemed 	pie date by the supervising Ater. 

2 Not possess any electronic device mashie of accessing the Internal and riot access the 
Internet through any such device or any other aeons, unless posseaskm of such a device or such amass is approved by the supervising officer. An Internet ewe/goring service provider approved by the supervising officer will be the only means a wed for any and all Internet access 
device or servbe. 

3 Abstain from soma-liming, possessing or having under your control any atcohol, 
4 Not possess any seminally explicit maltedsl that Is deemed inappropriate by the supervising officer. 5 Comply with any protocol concerning the use of prescription medication prescribed bye treating physician, including, without imkalion, any prolotxticoncerning the use of psychoiropic 
6 Do not enter a bar Cr lounge for any purpose expect for employment 

riIr T4 1Y 	won cif f.A.RoLncegatIZVON511s. 

%- 
Recommendation of the panel: 

Ccomiseicrur T. Oardu GRANT 
Commissioner S -facie= GRANT 

	
Connimlaner A. Entfal GRANT 

Tne tinal action was ratified by the following parole COVrAiWarars: 
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PAROLE/PROBATION MONTHLY SUPERVISION REPORT FOR: I Mon 

MY PAROLE/PROBATION OFFICER IS: 

Check One: 

Did you move this month? 

If a (4  
No 121: bid you changejobthis month? Yes Di No 

ii 
DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION MONTHLY REPORT 

Your Name: WEENENIFEMI Phone #: 
Your Address: ,444--. - 	— _ 	4/ 	zi - If ...e 

Mullin Address: 6114e- 

Relationshi : 
HEIMIIIIIIIIIIIMIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 11=111 Adult 	Juvenile 

fl  
Stora e Unit/#: 
I live with: 0 Ch4t, 
I live with: 
I live with: 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 
11111111111111111.11111111111 

Relationshi : 
Adult El Juvenile 

El 

Relationshi : 
Adult 
t: 

Juvenile 
• 

Dive with: .111111111111111111111111111 Relationship: IIIIIII 
Adult 	Juvenile 

El 	• 

IIIMIIIIIIIIIIIII 
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII 

MEI  

Your Em 1 10 er:  Phone # 
Su ervisor Name: q-k.1 r 	\.. 5 	2—a-rS. Work Schedule: 
Address: • _ A • ._ - 	- 	' ■‘%_, • 	. 

List all vehicles ou own or drive: —5-1r-c---  

Year Make Model Color _ License # Owner Insured by  

1...., 
-- L___.  \CIt...05— 

Counseling  
Yes No  

1'4 
o 

Provider: "CNC\ °LC- c.:-.; co-- 	\g...e.,..- 	̀.....suk—s. 	\k",61.1€;>.% CO k-- • 
Counseling  Schedule: 

Computer? 
Yes 
0 

No Email 
Address(s): 

Screen Name(s) / Service 

Other (Social Networking?): 

Did you visit a doctor this month: 

   

Medication prescribed:  

 

 

    

 

Community  service work hours completed this month:  

Restitution amount paid this month: $ 0 C)W 2--S, ',ZOO • °C) 

Supervision fee amount paid this month: $ a) eS%-&10.- n 16 . 00 

Fc, 	 Page 1 of 2 - Front 

fi 
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Report approved by: 

If I wish to succeed on Supervision: 
I will begin with obeying all institutional regulations and start planning for my future as a productive, law-abiding citizen; 

I will fully accept responsibility for my actions; 
I will understand the harm my actions have caused and acknowledge that I have done something wrong; 

I will offer an apology to my victims and community; 
I will repair the harm I have caused and will make restitution to my victims 

Nevada law allows for an offender who has been convicted of a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor within the state of Nevada to 

shorten their term of probation by 20 days for every month they are employed and pay their financial obligations to the Court 

and to the Division of Parole and Probation. 

No credit will be given to a probationer that are not employed and currently working or have complied with all Court ordered 

financial obligations and payment of Supervision Fees monthly to the Division. A payment of $30 must be received by the 

Division each and every month in order to ensure you collect your credit, 

Upon successful completion of specialty court, the probationer will receive any credits that would have been earned while in 

specialty court, retroactive to the date the probationer entered the program. This date will not be backdated any further than 

the date the supervising officer was notified of the completion of specialty court. 

Those probationers that are removed from specialty court due to non-compliance will not be given any retroactive credit. 

Financial Obligations: 
Any excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, tines and/or restitution, even if it is discovered after 

your discharge, 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE; THE INFORMATION I HAVE SUBMITTED IN THIS 

REPORT IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

Your Signature 

NNtN.k. 	94 V 7 
Parole and Probation Employee 

• 

Today's Date 
C°c"ANT 

rrNss—A.s- 

Page 2 of 2 - Back 

ID 
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DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION MONTHLY REPORT 

PAROLE/PROBATION MONTHLY SUPERVISION REPORT FOR: Z.- Year:  /31 Month: Day: 

MY PAROLE/PROBATION OFFICER IS:  leer  It 
Check One: 

Your Name: 	---q.  ebt Mqied ( Phone #: 702-zioZ-1.123 	cf2,..\-\__ 

Your Address: 04,l6 cityistaterzip: 76P 1"' -) 13 '-' G43151 

Mailing Address: CiViState/Zip: )00 ' 583 ' co a tel 

Storage Unit/#: City/State/Zip: -7 Id ' 32S'ST 

I live with: /6 1 Relationship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile  • 
I live with: Relationship: 

Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
0 

I live with: Relationship: ' 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
0 

I live with: Relationship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
0 

Your En_tployer: oa-e_ Phone # 

Supervisor Name: Work Schedule: 

Address: City/State/Zip: 	_ 
4 

List all vehicles you own or drive: 

Year 
	Make 
	Model 
	Color 
	License # 	Owner 	Insured by 

titaka 

Provider: 
cs,\■\.  Nvik CceA.  

Counseling 
Yes 	No 

Yes 
	Email 

Computer? 
	

0 
	

Address(s): 

Screen  Name(s) / Service 

Other  (Social Networking?): 

Yes 
IJ Did you visit a doctor this month: Medication_prescribed: 

Community service work hours completed this month: 

Restitution amount ' aid this month: ' 

Supervision fee amount paid this month: 
&PP 
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Your Signature 

Today's Date 

Report approved by: 

Parole and Probation Employee 

If I wish to succeed on Supervision: 
I will begin with obeying all institutional regulations and start planning for my future as a productive, law-abiding citizen; I will fully accept responsibility for my actions; 
I will understand the harm my actions have caused and aclmowledge that I have done something wrong; 7 1 will offer an apology to my victims and community;• 

I will repair the harm I have caused and will make restitution to my victims 

Nevada law allows for an offender who has been convicted of a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor within the state of Nevada to shorten their term of probation by 20 days for every month they are employed and pay their financial obligations to the Court and to the Division of Parole and Probation. 

No credit will be given to a probationer that are not employed and currently working or have complied with all Court ordered financial obligations and payment of Supervision Fees monthly to the Division. A payment of $30 must be received by the Division each and every month in order to ensure you collect your credit. 

Upon successful completion of specialty court, the probationer will receive any credits that would have been earned while in specialty court, retroactive to the date the probationer entered the program. This date will not he backdated any further than the date the supervising officer was notified of the completion of specialty court. 

Those probationers that are removed from specialty court due to non-compliance will not be given any retroactive credit. 

Financial Obligations: 
Arty excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, fines and/or restitution, even if it is discovered after your discharge. 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE; ME INFORMATION I HAVE SUBMITTED IN THIS REPORT IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

14c1 (  

atqe c- 
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PAROLE/PROBATION MONTHLY SUPERVISION REPORT FOR: 

MY PAROLE/PROBATION OFFICER  IS: 

Check One: 

Month: Day: Day: g • Year: /  

 

 

 

Did you move this month? Did you change lobs this month? Yes J  0 N 

Your Name: lea( Phone #: 

Mailing Address: 

Your Address: City/State/Zip: 

City/State/Zip: 

Storage Unit/#: City/State/Zip: 

lave with: 

I live with: 

Relationship: 

Relationship: 
Juvenile 
0 

Juvenile 

Juvenile 

I live with: RelailonsWo: 

Your Employer: 

I live with: 
Relationship: 

Phone # 

Mutt 	Juvenile 
	 I 0 

Address: 

Supervisor Name: Work Schedule: 

City/State/Zip:  

List all vehicles, you own or driye: 

Year Make Model Color License #  Owner Insured by 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION MONTHLY REPORT F- 
1 

Yes N. 
Counselln 0 102 Provider: 

Counseling Schedule: 
 

I Computer? 
Yes 

LO  

Email 
Address(s):  

Screen Name(s)/ Service 

Other (Social Networking): I 

Did you visit a doctor  this month: '6 a Medication prescribed: 

 

 
 

 

 

Community service work hours conlpleted this month: 

Restitution amount paid this month: 

Supervision fee amount paid this month: 
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If I wish to succeed on Supervision: 
I will begin with obeying all institutional regulations and start planning for my future as a productive, law-abiding citizen; 
I will fully accept responsibility for my actions; 
I will understand the harm my actions have caused and acknowledge that I have done something wrong; 
I will offer an apology to my victims and community; 
I will repair the harm I have caused and will make restitution to my victims 

Nevada law allows for an offender who has been convicted of a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor within the state of Nevada to 
shorten their term of probation by 20 days for every month they are employed and pay their financial obligations to the Court 
and to the Division of Parole and Probation. 

No credit will be given to a probationer that are not employed and currently working or have complied with all Court ordered 
financial obligations and payment of Supervision Fees monthly to the Division. A payment of $30 must be received by the 
Division each and every month in order to ensure you collect your credit. 

Upon successful completion of specialty court, the probationer will receive any credits that would have been earned while in 
specialty court, retroactive to the date the probationer entered the program. This date will not be backdated any further than 
the date the supervising officer was notified of the completion of specialty court. 

Those probationers that are removed ftom specialty court due to non-compliance will not be given any retroactive credit. 

Financial Obligations: 
Any excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, fines and/or restitution, even if it is discovered after 
your discharge. 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE; THE INFORMATION I HAVE SUBMITTED IN THIS REPORT IS TRITE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

Report approved by: 

Parole and Probation Employee 

Your Signature 

/j 
Today's Date 

Page 2 of 2 - Back 
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DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION MONTHLY REPORT 

PAROLE/PROBATION MONTHLY SUPERVISION  REPORT FOR: month: b Day: 67 ye_s_13  
MY SLE/PROBAAR 

Check One: 

Did you move this month? 	Yes 

Your Name: 01 Phone #: 702,—gt‘Zt,  /33,3 

Your Address: 
s 	• 

Cotz a 4*
8 Ci istatemi: L , 11 /Ulf,  A/09 

Mailing Address: City/State/Zip:  

City/State/Zip: Storage Unit/#: 

Hive with: Wel CO 14 e, Relationship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile • 
I live with: Relationship: 

Adult 
0 

Juvenile • 
I live with: Relationship: 

Adult 
El 

Juvenile 
0 

I live with: Reladonship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
0 

Your Employer: Phone # — 
Supervisor Name: Work Schedule: . 
Address: City/State/Zip: _ 

List all vehicles  you  own or drive: 

Year Make Model Color License # Owner Insured by 

 
 

   
 

 
 

aft 

Yes 
Counseling 	 Provider: 

Counseling Schedule: 

Computer? 
Yes 
0 

Email 
Address(s): 

Screen Name(s) / Service 

Other (Social Netwarkiae): 

 

   

 
 

Did you visit a doctor this month: 

 

Yes 
0 Medication_prescribed: 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

,_---- 	  
Community service work hours completed this month: C:27  
Restitution amount paid this month: 6 

Supervision fee amount paid this month: $ er, 
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Didyou Iangt o 111his month? 
	

Yes 

E- 

! 



Your Signature 

If I wish to succeed on Supervision: 
I will begin with obeying all institutional regulations and start planning for my future as a productive, law-abiding citizen; 

will fully accept responsibility for my actions; 
I will understand the harm my actions have caused and acknowledge that I have done something wrong; 
I will offer an apology to my victims and community; 
I will repair the harm I have caused and will make restitution to my victims 

Nevada law allows for an offender who has been convicted of a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor within the state of Nevada to 
shorten their term of probation by 20 days for every month they are employed and pay their financial obligations to the Court 
and to the Division of Parole and Probation. 

No credit will be given to a probationer that are not employed and currently working or have complied with all Court ordered 
financial obligations and payment of Supervision Fees monthly to the Division. A payment of $30 must be received by the 
Division each and every month in order to ensure you collect your credit. 

Upon successful completion of specialty court, the probationer will receive any credits that would have been earned while in 
specialty court, retroactive to the date the probationer entered the program. This date will not be backdated any further than 
the date the supervising officer was notified of the completion of specialty court. 

Those probationers that are removed from specialty court due to non-compliance will not be given any retroactive credit. 

Financial Obligations: 
Any excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, fines and/or restitution, even if it is discovered after 
your discharge. 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE; THE INFORMATION I HAVE SUBMITTED IN THIS 
REPORT IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

Report approved by: 

Parole and Probation Employee 

Page 2 of 2 Back 
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DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION MONTHLY REPORT 

h.! 

Yes 

Did ou visit a doctor this month: Medication reseribed: 

PAROLE/PROBATION MONTHLY SUPERVISION REPORT FOR: Month: 

MY PAROLE/PROBATION OFFICER Is KCIA1  

Pa: 
	Year: 43 

Your Name: 71 	
, 	1 i Phone #: 702• 

Your Address: Al& ;' oni 	4.— 	0  .., CI 	/State/Zi i : 

City/State/Zip: 

L 	Ai 
Mailing Address: 

Storage Unit/#: City/State/Zip:  

Relationship: 
Adult Juvenile 

El 
I live with: A/0'0;0e a 

I live with: Relationship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
0 

I live with: Relationship: 
Adult Juvenile 

0 X 

I live with: Relationship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
D 

Your Employer: 0 14 e..., +ki Phone # 

Supervisor Name: Work Schedule: 

Address: City/State/Zip: 	,. 

List all vehicles you own or drive: 

Year Make Model Color License # Owner Insured by 

NC We 

Yes No 
Counseling 0 [1,5 Provider: 

Counseling Schedule: 

Yes 
	Email 

Computer? 
	 Address(s): 

Screen Name(s) / Service 

Other (Social Networking?): 

Community service work hours completed this month: <9  

Restitution amount paid this month: 

Supervision fee amount pid this month: $ Ca_ 
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, 

Your Signature 

Report approved by: 

If I wish to succeed on Super ision: 

I will begin with obeying all institutional regulations and start planning for my future as a productive, law-abiding citizen; 

I will fully accept responsibility for my actions; 

I will understand the harm my actions have caused and acknowledge that I have done something wrong; 

I will offer an apology to my victims and community; 

I will repair the harm ! have caused and will make restitution to my victims 

Nevada law allows for an offender who has been convicted of a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor within the state of Nevada to 

shorten their term of probation by 20 days for every month they are employed and pay their financial obligations to the Court 

and to the Division of Parole and Probation. 

No credit will be given to a probationer that are not employed and currently working or have complied with all Court ordered 

financial obligations and payment of Supervision Fees monthly to the Division. A payment of $30 must he received by the 

Division each and every month in order to ensure you collect your credit. 

Upon successful completion of specialty court, the probationer will receive any credits that would have been earned while in 

specialty court, retroactive to the date the probationer entered the program. This date will not be backdated any further than 

the date the supervising officer was notified of the completion of specialty court. 

Those probationers that are removed from specialty court due to non-compliance will not be given any retroactive credit. 

Financial Obligations: 
Any excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, fines and/or restitution, even if it is discovered after 

your discharge. 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE; THE INFORMATION I HAVE SUBMITTED IN THIS 

REPORT IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

Parole and Probation Employee 
	 Today's Date 

Page 2 of 2 - Back 
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PAROLE/PROBATION MONTHLY SUPERVISION REPORT FOR: Month: 

MY PAROLE/PROBATION OFFICER IS: 

Day: 	Year: / 3 

aq 

Yes Yes Did von move this month? Did you change jobs this month? 

DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION MONTHLY REPORT 

Check One: 

Your Name: `KLLLe.," / 1\(6/ V j  Phone #: 702-4/62-4.3_33 	

_ 

(-- :-V. Hi/ c-/All  
Your Address: ex-er 	1-- 	0 lUc.-1 0 	/State/Zi : 

Mailing Address: City/State/Zip: 

Storage Unit/#: City/State/Zip: 

I live with: Relationship:  

Adult Juvenile 

I live with: Relationship: 
Adult 
0 

Juvenile 
0 

I live with: Relationship: 
Adult Juvenile 

0 • 
I live with: Relationship: 

Adult 
Ei 

Juvenile 
0 — 

Your Employer: Phone # 

Supervisor Name: Work Schedule: _ 

Address: City/State/Zip: 

List all vehicles you  own or drive: 

Year Make Model Color License # Owner Insured by 

   

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

   

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Yes No 
Counseling • Provider: 

Counseling Schedule: 

Yes No Email 
Computer? 0 Address(s): 

Screen Name() / Service 

Other (Social NetworkIng?): 

[Did  you visit a doctor this month: 	 
Yes 

 

Medication prescribed: 

 

   

 

Community service work hours completed this month: 

Restitution amount paid this month: ___ 

Supervision fee amount paid this month: 
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Report approved by: 

Parole and Probation Employee 

Your Signature 

k 	/C:73 
Today's Date 

It I Tilsit to succeed on upervision: 
I will begin with obeying all institutional regulations and start planning for my future as a productive, law-abiding citizen; 
I will fully accept responsibility for my actions; 
I will understand the harm my actions have caused and acknowledge that I have done something wrong; 
I will offer an apology to my victims and community; 
I will repair the harm I have caused and will make restitution to my victims 

Nevada law allows for an offender who has been convicted of a Felony or Gross Misdemeanor within the state of Nevada to 
shorten their term of probation by 20 days for every month they are employed and pay their financial obligations to the Court 
and to the Division of Parole and Probation. 

No credit will be given to a probationer that are not employed and currently working or have complied with all Court ordered 
financial obligations and payment of Supervision Fees monthly to the Division. A payment of $30 must be received by the 
Division each and every month in order to ensure you collect your credit. 

Upon successful completion of specialty court, the probationer will receive any credits that would have been earned while in 
specialty court, retroactive to the date the probationer entered the program. This date will not be backdated any further than 
the date the supervising officer was notified of the completion of specialty court. 

Those probationers that are removed from specialty court due to non-compliance will not be given any retroactive credit. 

Financial Obligations: 
Any excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, fines and/or restitution, even if it is discovered after 

your discharge. 

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE; THE INFORMATION I HAVE SUBMITTED IN THIS 
REPORT IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 

Se, 
-re—  

O 
	

(-)\ 

-e--0-0-1 	0A-1 
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Date of last session: 14b4ZA 
Owe's 	C:o° 

MARCIA LEE, MS MFT 
5862 S. Pecos Road H-2 

Las Vegas, NV 89120 
(702) 435 2212 

FAX (702) 732 2227 
marcialeemftd cox,net 

44t 9461 L- 

TERMINATION SUMMARY 

uent  a7giA6 pla/016/1„.  

Signature of Therapist 

A. Reason for termination: 

   

.44 . _Treat nent_completed_successfulty--- -- 
[ ] 	Client refused or didn't participate in services 

Client couldn't make payments 
Little or no progress in treatment 

[ ] Client moved 
[ ] Client changed therapist 
[ ] Client needs services not available here and was referred to: 

B. Source of Termination decision: 

[ ] 	Client initiated 
b.4 Therapist initiated 
[ ] A mutual decision 
[ ] Client arrested 

C. Treatment 

Date of Intake: 	a/p/oi 

Number of sessions: 	Scheduled: 
Attended: 
Cancelled 
NCNS 

D. Kinds of services Rendered: 
Individual psychotherapy 
Group Therapy 
Other  

[ j  CoupleTamily Therapy 
EA. Psycho-education 
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS CASE NO 	o wri -72,5 

   

OFFERED OBJ ADMITT 

A. CE-tc<F, Aiio  

_ 
_ 
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Courtesy Notice, to Cease and Desist 	 / OF 3 

COURTESY NOTICE 
VIA AFFIDAVIT FORMAT 

TO CEASE AND DESIST IN RESTRICTIONS AND HARRASSMENTS 

NOTICE TO AGENT IS NOTICE TO PRINCIPAL 

NOTICE TO PRINCIPAL IS NOTICE TO AGENT 

"Indeed, no more than (affidavits) is necessary to make the prima facie case.' United States—vs- Kis, 

658 Rd 526, 536 (C.A. 7 (W15) 1981): Cert. Denied, 50 U.S.L.W. 2169;5. Ct. March 22, 1982. 

ALL NOTICES ARE SUBJECT TO LIABILITY, WAIVER OF IMMUNITY, THIS MAY INCLUDE JUDICIAL OFFICERS. 

BE ADVISED:  If any one desire to respond or rebut to this Courtesy Notice via Affidavit Format, the 

individual 'MUST" do so in Affidavit Format, or anything else will be considered as a waste of limited 

and valuable resources of the respondent, it will be worthless. The Response/Rebuttal "MUST" be done 

within 30 days of receipt or this NOTICE will uphold in the Court in the event this will proceed to a Court 

Remedy and this will be used as Evidence for waiver of immunity. 

SILENCE IS ACQUIESCENCE agreement, to the terms within. This is a SELF-EXECUTING CONTRACT. 

I, Steve Dell McNeill@ hereinafter "Affiant", a living, breathing, flesh-and-blood, sentient "real" human 

being Man, proclaimed and stated within N.R.S. 0.039 and 15 U.S.C. § 1127, being first duly bound in 

conscience by deeply held spiritual convictions to perform this Act Faithfully and Truthfully; corpore et 

animo, sealed by and under authority of the Affiant's own hand, having firsthand knowledge of the Facts 

contained herein and within, do DECLARE and ATTEST the following FACTS are TRUE, CORRECT, and 

COMPLETE, and NOT Meant to Mislead, to cause Embarrassment, Dis-Honor, and NOT to Defraud any 

one in any way shape or form to the Best of Affiant's Belief, Knowledge, and Conviction Herein and 

Within. 

The Want is of legal Statute age of over 21 years old, is competent standing to state the matters 

contained herein, and has Declared and Attested that in the Affiant's knowledge and conviction, the 

statements made within are True, Correct, Complete, and NOT Meant to Mislead, cause 

Embarrassment, Defraud, or Dis-Honor on/to any one in any way shape or form. 

The Affiant agrees to perform to the contracted limited liberty of movement, pursuit of happiness, lob  

entitlement, Defamation of Character, harassment from authorities stated within the statutes of 

limitations to what Affiant is contracted with and comply with the authority (f  es) requests, etc..  

"PREDICATED" upon Proofs of Claim of substantial conclusive evidence, that supersedes the established, 

filed Papers of the Affiant, that is stated.  
Affiant believes the so-called Authority (ies1Third-Party Intervenor(s) do NOT have legal and lawful  

gapers/documents that supersede Affiant's papers/documents, and there is NO Evidence to the' 

"CONTRARY." This will be considered and taken as substantial conclusive evidence of the so-called 

Authority subjecting themselves to Misconduct, and committing: Dishonor in Commerce, Fraud upon 

the Affiant and Public, Conspiracy, Traitorous Acts on the People, and Affiant, and violating the R.I.C.O. 

act. 
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TO SUPPERIORS AND MANAGING PERSONNEL: 

BE ADVISED,  You are being Noticed in writing to Cease and Desist to Contact and/or attempt to 
contract withiReve Dell McNeill in anyway shape or form,  unless the authority had seen or 
there is a signed Affidavit with two or more countable witnesses (that are NOT part of the authority 
for it will be a conflict of interest) that He had physically cause an injury. He will NOT register with 
the authority as he has been doing, so now, Steve Dell McNeill will be living as a free man, as he was 
before he was enslaved without Full Disclosure, without Clean Hands, Good Faith, and Fair Business 
Dealings of what he will encounter of submission to the authorities of the Artificial Corporation 
Entity as stated within N.R.S. 205.4611 in which the State Representatives have subverted Steve 
Dell McNeill into without His knowledge. 

The attached document is a UCC Financing Statement, filed with the Secretary of State, of California, 
in which is Zone One and THE STATE OF NEVADA is covered, Registered in Zone One. The UCC 
Financing Statement is recorded and as 'a matter of public record, with the CLARK COUNTY 
RECORDER'S office of Nevada. I'm now forwarding this document to you with this Courtesy 
Notice, and to inform you of a few things you may not know. As per N.RS. 104.9402,1 am now 
referred to as a secured party/creditor, [no longer the corporate entity; as defined by N.R.S. 
205.4611]. Attached are: 

Corporate Ownership document/title 

Power of attorney (unlimited) 

Hold harmless and indemnity agreement 

Legal Notice and Demand 

The Affiant is calling special attention to Legal Notice and Demand because if in the course of future 
events the Affiant should be molested, accosted or otherwise Dis-Honored in any way shape or form 
by one or more of your agents, and/or representatives, Your office and the individual in his/her 
official capacity, and THE STATE OF NEVADA will be receiving an invoice for the listed fines & fees 
THIS IS NOT A THREAT!  I am only putting you on  NOTICE,  and serving you with the Substantial 
Conclusive Evidence of Fact that You need to understand and be aware that I am no longer under 
your jurisdiction. 

Courtesy Notice, to Cease and Desist 	 1 OF 3 
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Submitted by; 	 
Steve Dell McNeill 

-DEBOR.A14:SCHOFF 
Notary Public, State ot.Nevak 
Appointment No, !*51.174t-..1 

Appt, Expires ,  Qtt'.11-2.0.1.4 

Notary Signature 

COMMERCIAL AFFIDAVIT OATH AND VERIFICATION 

State of Nevada } 
1 ss, Commercial Oath and Verification 

County of Clark } 

I, Steve Dell McNeill©, having first-hand knowledge of the Facts Contained herein are True, Correct, 

Complete and NOT to be Misleading, under penalty of commercial law. 

EXPRESS SPECIFIC RESERVATIONS OF RIGHTS 

The Affiant Steve Dell McNeill), reserve all my Natural Rights as an American under Contract Law 

of the Divine Creator without prejudice and without recourse to me. I do NOT consent to any 

compelled performance under Contract that I did NOT enter Knowingly, Voluntarily, Intelligently. 

I do NOT accept the liability of the benefits or privileges of any unrevealed contract or commercial 

agreement 

JURAT 

State of Nevada } 
} ss. 

County of Clark ) 

The above named Affiant Steve Dell McNeill©, appeared before me, a Notary, subscribed, sworn to 

the truth of this Courtesy Notice in Affidavit. 

Under Oath this  t CI day of August, 2013. 

4114410061P4IrglomPRIFF41•01111.404P91p4 

Courtesy Notice, to Cease and Desist 
	 3 0F3 
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FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS (Irorg and back)  CAREFULLY • 

11111111111111111111111 
U CC FINANCING STATEMENT 

12-7319192085 
66/29/2012 17;00 

E. SEND/ ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO: Mares terd Addtaree) 

rSTEVEN DELL MCNEILL 
1130 SO. CASINO CENTER #7 
LAS VEGAS,NEVADA 89104 

A. NAME As PHONE OF CONTACT AT FILER tcplIcM IJ  

isgin rEID  SUM MIT c e VATS 

101101111111  

la. ORGANIZATION'S NAME 

STEVE 	DELL MCNEILL 
OR 11 b. INDIVIDUAL'S LASTNAME SUFFIX 

Am INFO RE I la. TYPE OF ORGANZATION 1iUR5ONOORCAHIZM1ON 

ORGANIZATION 
ceaToR 	ENS LEGIS/TRUST PRIVATE 

lg. ORGANIZATIONAL IDIL gaily 

NONE 

cournar 

USA 
Id. a Eff INSTRUC7IONE 

ADM INFO RE [22. TYPE OF °MIN MOON 	121. JURISPDTI ON OF on ANizA-roN 

ORGANIZATION 
DEBTOR 

kg. ORANIZATIF-0.1.10# IT may 

1 
2d. AWN31RLIC1TONg.  

n NONE 

OR 3b. WOW LIA1'S LAST NM 

3s. MAILINGACOAESS 

—  cia 1130 So. Ca.sine Center #7 
4. /Ma FIN/YONG STATEMENT caves the Weems eaktand: 

FIRST NAME 

Steven 
ciTY 

Las Vegas 

MIDDLE NAME 

Dell  
STATE POSTAL cOOE 

Nev. i 89104 

sUFFst 

COUNTRY 

USE 
eemermeem. 

'''LESSE'ETLESSD.-'—TZ—rrt —rr--T1OO SIGNEE1CONEGNOFI BAILEEIRMLOR  SELLERISUYER  

1111(1 121 S. ALTERNATIVE  cEslaNATioN 
S. 
	SIEFZIEUSTATESEe 

AG. LIEN 
	

NONAJOCFILING 

AS Wore Deer.L_Eer OOP 

THE AIME SPACE IS FOR FILING  OFFICE USE ONLY 

1. DEBTOR'S EXACT FULL LEGAL NAMSdnialt Imuidebtorname aco I b).40 notablerveasareambea eaten 

2. ADCXT IONA/ DEBTOR'S EXACT FULL LEGAL NAME Inuit sely mg debtor name (22 or 2b)-cla nat abbreviate or umbias moot 

3. SECURED RARreS NAME faiNANEarroTAL ASSMNEEdASSIGNORS/Fry•insatonlyanaascunWpadynornallacab)  

3a ORGANOATiONS IONE 

ALL PROPERTY BELONGING TO DEBTOR BELONGS TO SECURED PARTY 

DEBTOR IS A TRANSMITTING UilLITY 

DEBTOR IS A TRUST 

8.OF717=FILEr.'REFEREME DATA 
 

SECURED PARTY 
• 

RUNG OFFICE COPY — U00 FINANCING STATEMENT (FORPA UCO1) (REV. 05/22102) 
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rAC 

Inst 0: 201207120001959 
Fees: $54.00 
NM Fee: $25.00 
0711212012 02:58:12 PIM 

Receipt 0: 1231834 
Request= 
STEVEN MCNEILL 
Recorded By: OSA Pus: 38 

DEBBIE CONWAY 
CLARK COUNTY RECORDER 

AFFIDAVIT OF POLITICAL STATUS 

I declare this is an Affidavit of Political Status and this includes all attached 

documents. 

GRANTOR: STEVEN DELL MCNEILL 

Grantee: 	Steven Dell McNeil 

LS: 	 • 	
•  

Steven Dell McNeill 
Secured Party Creditor 

Date 

RETURN TO 

NAME Steven Deli McNeill 

.-.DDRESS 113Q So2,s!nc.,  Center #7 

cITY •ST,,LJElIF Lasci Vegas Nevacia 89 1 G4 
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1 
	

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

2 

3 STEVE DELL MCNEILL, 

4 	 Appellant, 

5 
V. 

6 

7 THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

8 	 Respondent. 

9 
	) 

No. 66697 

10 
APPELLANT'S APPENDIX VOLUME III PAGES 399-642 

STEVEN B. WOLFSON 
Clark County District,Attorney 
200 Lewis Avenue, 3' Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 

ADAM LAXALT 
Attorney General 
100 North Carson Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 
(702) 687-3538 

Counsel for Respondent 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that this document was filed electronically with the Nevada 
17 

18 
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